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Profit for the year rose by 12.9% to HK$50.7 million (2023:
HK$44.9 million). Excluding the Government subsidies of HK$1.4
million (2023: HK$41.6 million), profit for the year was HK$49.3
million (2023: HK$3.3 million), representing an increase of
HK$46.0 million.

Revenue was HK$3,136.9 million (2023: HK$3,024.2 million),
increased by 3.7%.

The Group maintained a healthy financial position with bank
deposits, cash and cash equivalents of HK$641.0 million (2023:
HK$646.8 million) as at 31 March 2024.

The Group had no bank borrowings and nil gearing ratio as at 31
March 2024.

Basic earnings per share were HK39.10 cents (2023: HK34.64
cents), increased by 12.9%.

Final dividend of HK30.0 cents per share was proposed,
representing a total dividend per share for the year of HK41.0
cents and a payout ratio of approximately 105%.
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Interim results announcement
29 November 2023

Paid date of the interim dividend
28 December 2023

Annual results announcement
28 June 2024

Closure of Register of Members
— Annual general meeting

4 September 2024 to

10 September 2024

(both days inclusive)
— Proposed final dividend

17 September 2024 to

20 September 2024

(both days inclusive)

Annual general meeting
10 September 2024

Payable date of the final dividend
On or before 3 October 2024
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TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to
present the annual results of Fairwood Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2024.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March 2024, revenue of the Group
increased by 3.7% year-on-year, to HK$3,136.9 million (2023:
HK$3,024.2 million). Profit attributable to equity shareholders rose
by 12.9% to HK$50.7 million (2023: HK$44.9 million). Excluding
the Government subsidies of HK$1.4 million (2023: HK$41.6
million), profit for the year was HK$49.3 million, as against
HK$3.3 million in 2023. The Group's gross profit margin increased
to 8.6% (2023: 8.5%). Basic earnings per share amounted to
HK39.10 cents (2023: HK34.64 cents).
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DIVIDEND

The Board recommends to pay a final dividend of HK30.0 cents
(2023: HK40.0 cents) per share and a special final dividend of nil
(2023: HK5.0 cents) per share for the year ended 31 March 2024.
Together with the interim dividend of HK11.0 cents (2023:
HK18.0 cents) per share paid during the year, the total dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2024 amounts to HK41.0 cents (2023:
HK63.0 cents) per share, representing a total distribution of
approximately 105% of the Group’s profit for the year. The
proposed final dividend will be paid on or before Thursday, 3
October 2024 to shareholders whose names appear on the
Register of Members of the Company at the close of business on
Friday, 20 September 2024.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Despite post-pandemic hopes for a rapid rebound, Hong Kong
experienced muted growth over the year under review, as it
struggled with a falling housing market, an underperforming stock
market and widespread worries about employment. Visitor
numbers to Hong Kong have also been disappointing. These large-
scale concerns combined to rein in consumer spending and put
brakes on growth.

Despite this unpromising context, the Group delivered a modestly
successful performance for the year, following a solid first half
performance. Its results were attributable partly to its attractive
value proposition in a depressed market, and partly to a number
of proactive initiatives undertaken to attract and retain customers,
target new demographics, control costs and boost efficiencies. It
has long been a noted phenomenon that diners tend to 'trade
down’ in a tougher economic environment, seeking for
comparable food quality and experience at a lower price. The
Group’s well-priced and high-value dining options are attractive
for many people in this position, and we have continued to devote
marketing efforts to drawing attention to the quality and value of
our premium dining options.
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Apart from this, we have pushed ahead with initiatives to bring in
new customers and expand our customer base, especially
targeting those from a younger demographic. This has involved
introducing some innovative new products that appeal specifically
to younger diners, which have proved very effective in enhancing
the frequency of visits to our restaurants. Alongside this, we have
been assiduous in managing rising food costs, embracing a raft of
measures that have not only slowed rising food costs but have
actually reduced them on a year-on-year basis. As a result of these
initiatives, Same Store Sales Growth (SSSG) for Fairwood’s fast
food restaurants rose by approximately 2% year on year.

Meanwhile, despite a muted Mainland economic environment, we
have made continuing efforts to push ahead in developing our
fledgling Greater Bay Area (GBA) operations. These operations
have made good progress in the year, moving them closer to our
goal of long-term profitability. SSSG for our Mainland stores
amounted to approximately 16% year on year, a positive
achievement.

During the year, the Group continued with its effective strategy of
introducing new product innovations, limited time offers, and
local delicacies to extend its menu offerings and attract a wider
range of customers. Among our successful limited time offers
were a new Thai series of dishes, Japanese Teriyaki Beef, and a
Laksa Noodles lunch set. Some new products were added to
strengthen the appeal of specific day parts; for example, we
introduced a new Thai Style Volcano Pork Bones and a value-for
money Combo for Two that were specifically aimed at the evening
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dinner segment. We also launched a popular Double-boiled Soup
offer, providing a quick and convenient alternative to time-
consuming traditional home-prepared soup. Alongside this, we
continued to offer a range of special value dishes at attractive low
prices to meet the expectations of budget-conscious diners. We
also continued to emphasise our ability to deliver local delicacies
that have long been favourites among Hong Kong people, but
which have in the past not been associated with fast-food dining.
For example, we offer Claypot Rice dishes, presented in a
refundable claypot, in collaboration with a local enterprise, Koon
Chun Sauce Factory. This initiative has strongly associated the
Fairwood brand with Hong Kong's unique claypot cuisine and
successfully reasserted our 'home-grown’ connections with the
city. The connection has been reinforced through an award-
winning advertising campaign featuring Australian YouTuber
Brendan, a fluent Cantonese speaker and ardent admirer of Hong
Kong's local food culture. The video series for our Claypot Rice
Campaign won a Silver Award for ‘Best Idea — Video' at the
prestigious MARKies Awards 2024.

Efforts to target new demographic segments continued. For
example, we expanded the range of ‘croffles’ we offer, a menu
item that appeals especially to younger café lovers, by adding
further sweet and savoury options. These were strongly promoted
on social media platforms. We also added a range of high-end
bakery items to our menu to target premium customers, along
with sophisticated new bread products (e.g. walnut grain bun,
cranberry soft bun, longan and goji berry soft bun), which were
successfully promoted through a third-party social media platform.
Meanwhile, we continued to see good results from our healthy
Gym Lovers meal options, and engaged different KOLs to further
promote Fairwood to this target segment.

RRFEBERAA
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Launched 18 months ago, the Fairwood App has continued to
grow in popularity to become an important tool for recruiting and
connecting with customers, promoting new products and deals,
and cementing customer loyalty. At year-end membership of the
app stood at over 730,000, up from 660,000 six months earlier.
Three major promotions were run via the app in the year, which
proved very successful in attracting new members and driving
store visits. We were delighted to receive external recognition of
the app at the HKRMA 2023 Smart Retailing Awards, where it
won the Smart Transformation & Innovation Award (Retailer
Group) — Bronze Award for Customer Engagement.

Elsewhere, we have continued with our internal digitalisation
initiatives, continuing to roll out our Kitchen Management System
in stores, adding Mobile Order and Payment options, and installing
Digital Menu Boards.

Effective food cost controls have given the Group a competitive
edge over many of its competitors. Although the cost of many
raw ingredients did increase in the year, the Group was actually
able to reduce its overall food costs through a range of cost
savings and avoidance initiatives. We also established relationships
with some new vendors to achieve better food quality and cost
efficiencies, while locating new supply sources and increasing the
level of our direct imports of some ingredients. Cost optimisation
was also undertaken for food packaging, particularly for takeaway
dishes, while menus and SKUs were also optimised to benefit from
seasonality. In addition to all these, strategic price rises were made
in a few areas.
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Labour costs have remained high across the industry due to a
widespread shortage of labour and an over-supply of restaurants.
The Group's efforts to address this problem have included
implementing various digitalisation initiatives that are reducing
manual tasks and optimizing deployment of staff. Our Kitchen
management System (KMS), for instance, serves to significantly
reduce the workload of kitchen staff. However, implementing the
KMS involves relatively high capital investment, so it is occurring
gradually across the Group’s network in conjunction with store
renovations or openings. Other initiatives that are reducing labour
demand include digitalising paperwork in order to free up staff
time for other tasks, improving the balance of part-time and full-
time staff to create greater rostering flexibility, and encouraging
diners to use digital kiosks for ordering, reducing the need for
front-line counter staff.

Rental trends have worked in the Group's favour for the year. This
has arisen due to robust negotiations over rental contract renewals
in the year, and the sourcing of cost-effective sites for new stores.
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NETWORK

During the year under review, the Group opened 11 new stores,
of which 7 were in Hong Kong and 4 in Mainland China. In the
same period it closed 8 underperforming stores, 6 in Hong Kong
and 2 in Mainland China. As a result, at 31 March 2024 it was
operating with 182 stores, 158 in Hong Kong and 24 in Mainland
China. The Group's Fairwood fast food restaurant chain in Hong
Kong finished the year with 149 stores, after 7 were opened and
5 closed during the year. As for its specialty restaurants, at year-
end there was a total of 9 specialty stores in operation: 3 ASAP, 3
Taiwan Bowl, and 3 The Leaf Kitchen.

GIVING BACK TO THE COMMUNITY

Membership of our popular Care for Seniors Card programme
continued to climb over the year. By year end, over 470,000
seniors were members of the card programme, which offers
special meal deals and other privileges for older Hong Kongers.
This number represents a climb of over 30,000 since our Interim
Report six months ago. Meanwhile, our Fairwood Care for
Community Programme expanded its activities. The Heartwarming
Food Donation Programme was carried out on 13 separate
occasions in the year, involving donations of meal boxes and daily
essentials to needy members of the community. We also ran
Joyous Meal with Seniors events on 14 occasions, bringing
together groups of elderly people living alone for communal meals
in Fairwood restaurants.
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The Group has also continued to push towards becoming a more
sustainable and environmentally friendly operation, in line with
customer expectations and our own commitment to our future
generations. The Re-purposed Coffee Grounds and Lemon Rinds
initiative, launched this year, gave customers at 130 Fairwood
stores the opportunity to take home these items, in the process
eliminating around 210 tonnes of food waste for the Group in
2023/24. The Iinitiative also generated much positive media
coverage, calculated to be worth over HK$4.7 million. In January
2024 we also launched a Recycle Sugar Packets campaign which
is helping us to reuse unwanted packets of sugar rather than
discarding them.

Part of our sustainability initiatives involves incentivising our
customers to embrace sustainable dining. An important step has
been our initiative to encourage customers to go ‘cutlery free' by
using their own cutlery; for every customer who did this eight
times, Fairwood donated one meal to the needy. Cash coupons
were also included to further incentivise customers. The outcome
was exceptional: in 2023/24, we saw a reduction of over 1 million
pieces of single-use plastic cutlery, and donated over 35,000
meals as a result.

The installation of solar panels on the roofs of the central food
processing plant has helped the Group reduce its carbon
emissions, in support of CLP's clean energy initiatives. Since
August 2023, these panels have generated more than 36,000
kWh of electricity for the Group's use.
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PROSPECTS

From a macro perspective, Hong Kong and the GBA appear to be
entering a downward economic cycle, with consumers tightening
their belts as they wait for greater economic certainty going forward.
In Hong Kong, challenges have also appeared in the form of the
‘Shenzhen factor’, which is seeing large numbers of Hong Kongers
travelling to Shenzhen and the GBA for leisure on weekends,
weakening local consumption patterns. Offsetting this to an
extent is the fact that an increasingly large number of residents of
Mainland cities now enjoy visa-free access to Hong Kong.

Some aspects of this macro perspective are promising for the
Group. For example, the downturn is pushing rental costs lower,
and it is likely that opportunities for expansion will arise as a
result. Indeed, upcoming rental negotiations for new leases in the
year ahead are likely to improve profitability in as many as one
third of Fairwood stores. In addition, the poor economy is
attracting more customers who may not previously have
considered Fairwood, especially evening diners who are ‘trading
down’ and becoming aware of Fairwood's excellent and high
value dinner options.

As mentioned above, the Group’s food costs are being managed
well, and we expect to continue to enjoy the strong competitive
edge that this brings. Staff costs will continue to bring pressures,
and to address these we will be working to further optimise our
staff arrangements, expand our digitalisation initiatives, and re-
engineer our work processes to streamline staff workflows further.

We do expect the Mainland environment to remain a challenging
one in the year ahead, as uncertainties about the strength and
direction of the Mainland economy linger. Ultimately though, we
believe our Mainland operations are on the right track for solid
profitability once they have achieved the appropriate economies
of scale, and our plans to continue expansion in the GBA remain
firmly in place.
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Executive Chairman
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Hong Kong, 28 June 2024

APPRECIATION

As always, | would like to take this opportunity to put on record
my sincere thanks to all those who supported the Group’s
successes in the past year. The Fairwood team has continued to
do their very best, and of course the support of our loyal
customers, including many new customers this year, has been
essential. Thanks are also due to our many suppliers and business
partners, while the loyalty and backing of Fairwood's shareholders
have been much appreciated.

To our shareholders, | would like to conclude by making reference
to the Group's excellent track record and solid prospects. We are
closely associated with the essence of Hong Kong, and are a
much-loved element in countless local memories. The Group
continues to be managed by an astute and competent team, with
a separate localised and experienced management team running
its GBA operations. With these foundations underpinning our
operations, we will continue to work on delivering the things we
are best known for: good quality, low cost high value dining
experiences that meet the needs of a wide range of locals,
delivered efficiently and cost-effectively.

&
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

At 31 March 2024, total assets of the Group were HK$2,247.8
million (2023: HK$2,302.5 million). The Group’s net current
liabilities were HK$61.9 million (2023: HK$24.8 million),
represented by total current assets of HK$796.4 million (2023:
HK$792.4 million) against total current liabilities of HK$858.3
million (2023: HK$817.2 million). Current ratio, being the
proportion of total current assets against total current liabilities,
was 0.9 (2023: 1.0). Total equity was HK$660.4 million (2023:
HK$680.6 million).

The Group finances its business with internally generated cash
flows and available banking facilities. At 31 March 2024, the
Group had bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents
amounting to HK$641.0 million (2023: HK$646.8 million),
representing a drop of 0.9%. Most bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents were denominated in Hong Kong dollars, United
States dollars and Renminbi.

As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, the Group had no bank loan and
the gearing ratio was nil, which was calculated based on the total
bank loan over the total equity. The unutilised banking facilities
were HK$231.3 million (2023: HK$260.0 million).

DEPRECIATION

The Group's depreciation of other property, plant and equipment
increased by HK$4.6 million from HK$89.1 million to HK$93.7
million due to more renovation shops during the year.

The depreciation charges of right-of-use assets, which were
amortised on a straight-line basis over the lease term in
accordance with HKFRS 16, increased by HK$17.2 million from
HK$389.5 million to HK$406.7 million. The increase was primarily
due to the addition of the new shops and lease modification of
the existing shops during the year.

FINANCE COSTS

During the year, the Group recorded the finance costs of HK$33.4
million (2023: HK$31.7 million). The finance costs mainly
represented the interest expenses accrued on the outstanding
balance of the lease liabilities.
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PROFITABILITY

Return on average equity was 7.6% (2023: 6.4%), being profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company against the
average total equity at the beginning and the end of the year.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the year, capital expenditure (excluding right-of-use assets)
was approximately HK$131.5 million (2023: HK$104.7 million).
The increase was mainly due to more renovation works for the
existing shops compared to last year.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s receipts and expenditures were mainly denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The impact of the fluctuation
in exchange rate is immaterial to the Group's financial position.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through
cash at banks and other financial assets that are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the operations to
which they relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are
primarily United States dollars and Renminbi. As Hong Kong dollar
is pegged to United States dollar, the Group does not expect any
significant movements in the United States dollar/Hong Kong
dollar exchange rate. The Group ensures that the net exposure is
kept to an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies
at spot rates where necessary to address short term imbalances.

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

At 31 March 2024, the net book value of properties pledged as
security for banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of the
Group amounted to HK$0.7 million (2023: HK$0.8 million) and no
bank deposits and cash was used to pledge any loans or banking
facilities.

COMMITMENTS

The Group's capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2024
were HK$24.3 million (2023: HK$10.3 million).

APEEBEAERAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 March 2024, guarantees are given to banks by the
Company in respect of banking facilities extended to certain
wholly-owned subsidiaries.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Directors do not
consider it probable that a claim will be made against the
Company under these guarantee arrangements. The maximum
liability of the Company at the end of the reporting period under
these guarantees is the amount of the facilities drawn down by all
the subsidiaries that are covered by these guarantees, being
HK$87.7 million (2023: HK$88.9 million).

The Company has not recognised any deferred income in respect
of these guarantees as their fair value cannot be reliably measured
and there is no transaction price.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

At 31 March 2024, the total number of employees of the Group
was approximately 5,700 (2023: 5,600). Staff costs for the year
were approximately HK$1,100.4 million (2023: HK$1,020.5
million). During the last reporting period, the staff cost was net of
the employment support scheme of HK$24.0 million subsidies
from the HKSAR Government. Employees’ remuneration is
commensurate with their job nature, qualifications and experience.
Salaries and wages are normally reviewed annually based on
performance appraisals and other relevant factors.

The Group continues to offer competitive remuneration packages,
share options and bonus to eligible staff, based on the
performance of the Group and the individual employees. Also, the
Group has committed to provide related training programme to
improve the quality, competence and skills of all staff.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung, aged 72, is the Executive Chairman of
the Company and the Chairman of Nomination Committee of the
Company. He is also a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr Lo graduated from the Parsons School of Design
with a Bachelor Degree in Fine Arts and also attended a course on
food and beverage management at New York University. After
completion of his studies in the U.S.A. in 1977, Mr Lo returned to
Hong Kong and obtained a Master Degree in Business
Administration. In 1981, Mr Lo joined Fairwood Fast Food Limited.
In 1991, he played a major role in the listing of the Company. Mr
Lo was the Managing Director of the Company from 1991 to
1999. He was appointed the Chairman and Chief Executive of the
Company in January 2000. On 1 January 2009, Mr Lo relinquished
his role as Chief Executive but remained as the Executive Chairman
of the Company. Mr Lo is the father of Mr Lo Fai Shing Francis,
the Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. Mr Lo is a director of Neblett Investments Limited
which has discloseable interests in the shares of the Company
under the provisions of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance.

Mr Lo Fai Shing Francis, aged 41, is the Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. He is also a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr Francis Lo attended the
School of Computer Science at Carnegie Mellon University. Prior
to joining the Company, Mr Francis Lo held a senior management
position at an overseas restaurant and had over four years of
experience in the food and beverage industry including
management of operations, product development and business
strategy formulation. Mr Francis Lo joined the Company as
Management Trainee in August 2013. He was promoted to
Executive Manager in February 2015 and further to be Specialty
Restaurant General Manager in April 2018. Since 1 January 2019,
he has been appointed as Executive Director of the Company and
appointed as Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 1 April
2020. Mr Francis Lo is the son of Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung, the
Executive Chairman of the Company.

Ms Peggy Lee, aged 53, is the Executive Director of the
Company. She is also a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company. Ms Lee obtained her MBA and Bachelor Degree in
Marketing in the U.S.A.. She has over 20 years of experience in
brand building and management, product development, retail and
sales management across different industries. Prior to joining the
Company, Ms Lee had held senior management positions with a
number of well-known companies. Ms Lee joined the Company in
February 2011 and was appointed Executive Director of the
Company on 1 January 2018.

KPEEBEERAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin, aged 76, was appointed an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in 1991. He
is also the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a
Member of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr Chan
graduated from The University of Hong Kong, the University of
Strathclyde and The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He holds a
Bachelor of Arts Degree, a Diploma in Social Work, a Master of
Business Administration Degree and a Master of Education
Degree. He is a Fellow Member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Human Resource Management and a Fellow of The Hong Kong
Professional Counselling Association. Mr Chan has over 40 years’
experience in human resources development in public, commercial
and educational sectors and is actively engaged in the professional
development of higher education student affairs practitioners and
high school careers teachers in Mainland China and Hong Kong.

Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen, aged 71, was appointed an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in September
2000. He is also the Members of the Remuneration Committee
and Audit Committee. Dr Lau holds a Doctorate Degree in
Business Administration from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University, a MBA Degree from the University of Calgary in
Canada and a Master of Buddhist Studies from The University of
Hong Kong. He is a member of The Canadian Institute of
Chartered Accountants and the Society of Certified Management
Accountants of Canada. Dr Lau had over 12 years of management
and accounting experience in both the private and public sectors
in Canada prior to returning to Hong Kong in 1987. He was
previously an Adjunct Professor of the College of Business at City
University of Hong Kong, an external member of the School of
Business Advisory Committee of Hong Kong Baptist University as
well as the Chairman of the Advisory Committee on management
and marketing at The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Dr Lau
was the Chairman and Chief Executive of Giordano International
Limited which is listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) until 3 April 2024.
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Dr Peter Wan Kam To, MH, aged 71, was appointed an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in September
2009. He is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a
Member of the Nomination Committee of the Company. Dr Wan
is a Fellow Member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Dr Wan is also the Non-
executive Director of the Accounting and Financial Reporting
Council. He was a partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong
& China firm with extensive experience in auditing, finance,
advisory and management. Dr Wan was awarded the Medal of
Honour by the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (“The HKSAR") and conferred the degree
of Doctor of Social Sciences by Hong Kong Metropolitan University
in 2022. Dr Wan is currently an Independent Non-executive
Director of KFM Kingdom Holdings Limited which is listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange. Dr Wan was an Independent
Non-executive Director of A-Living Smart City Services Co., Ltd.
until 20 July 2023, China Resources Land Limited until 1 July
2023, Haitong International Securities Group Limited until 11
January 2024 and Target Insurance (Holdings) Limited until 9
August 2021 which are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange and an Independent Director of China World Trade
Centre Co., Ltd. which is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
until November 2022.
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Mr Yip Cheuk Tak, aged 72, was appointed an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in December 2021. He is
also the Members of the Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr Yip graduated from
Hong Kong Baptist College (now known as Hong Kong Baptist
University) majoring in Communication in 1978 and holds Diploma
in Social Science. During 1978 to 1988, he was the Marketing and
Advertising Executive for Singer Sewing Machine Co. Ltd., Buyer
and Franchise Manager for Jardine Marketing Services Limited
7-Eleven Division and Operations Vice President for Giordano
Hong Kong Limited. In 1992, he began his career in the PRC and
served as General Manager of Tiger Enterprise Ltd. (Group of
Giordano) in South China. In 1994, he was the General Manager
of Pizza Hut South China overseeing the territories of Guangdong,
Guangxi and Hainan and acquired extensive experience in the PRC
food and beverage market. Mr Yip returned to Hong Kong in July
2003 to take up the post of Chief Executive of Pizza Hut Hong
Kong and Macau. He was appointed Chief Executive of Jardine
Restaurant Group, Hong Kong and New Markets in July 2014 and
retired in 2018. Mr Yip has over 46 years' experience in the
retailing industry.

Mr Yip is now serving a number of public offices, namely,
Chairman of Retail Training Advisory Committee of Qualification
Framework under Education Bureau of The HKSAR, the Technical
Advisor of Retail Trade and Member of Industry Consultative
Networks for Retail Industry of Employees Retraining Board,
Member of Retail Trade Training Board of Vocational Training
Council, the Consultant of Retail Industry Commission Advisory
Committee of The Cosmetic & Perfumery Association of Hong
Kong Ltd, the Consultant of HKBU Communication Alumni
Association (HKBUCAA) Executive Committee of Hong Kong
Baptist University as well as an Independent Manager of
Incorporated Management Committee of Queen Elizabeth School
Old Student’s Association Tong Kwok Wah Secondary School.
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The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Fairwood Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) has pleasure in presenting its annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2024.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda. Its registered office is
situated at Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton
HM10, Bermuda and principal place of business is situated at 2/F,
TRP Commercial Centre, 18 Tanner Road, North Point, Hong
Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Group is principally engaged in the operation of fast food
restaurants and property investments. The principal activities and
other particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out on pages
169 to 171 of the annual report.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations
of the operations of the Group during the financial year are set
out in note 4(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business activities and discussion and
analysis of these activities as required by Schedule 5 to the
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) of Hong Kong, including a
discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group
and an indication of likely future developments in the Group's
business, can be found in the “Business Review"” and “Prospects”
set out on pages 9 to 16 of this annual report while the risk
management policy is on pages 58 to 63 of the Corporate
Governance Report. The relevant discussions in these sections
form part of this report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORTING

As part of the community, the Group strives to support the
environmental protection works, to strictly comply with the
relevant rules and regulations and to consider the material aspects
of our stakeholders. In light of the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix C2 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), comprehensive information as required thereunder
relating to our operating principles on our employees, food quality
and safety, environment and customers will be further discussed
in a separate Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG
Report”), which will be published together with the annual report
2023/2024. The relevant discussions in the ESG Report form part
of this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2024 and up to the date of this
report, the Board was not aware of any non-compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations in Hong Kong, Mainland China
and the respective jurisdiction of the place of incorporation of the
Company and subsidiaries that have a significant impact on the
Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2024, 32% (2023: 31%) of the
aggregate amount of purchases were attributable to the Group's
five largest suppliers with the largest supplier accounted for 16%
(2023: 14%) of the Group's aggregate amount of purchases.

For the year ended 31 March 2024, the aggregate amount of
revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
represent less than 30% (2023: less than 30%) of the Group’s
total revenue.

None of the Directors of the Company (the “Directors”), their
close associates, or any shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”), which to the knowledge of the Directors, owned
more than 5% of the issued share capital the Company, had a
beneficial interest in any of the Group's five largest suppliers and
customers.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
Results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2024 are set

out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 73 to 174
of the annual report.

RECOMMENDED DIVIDEND

An interim dividend of HK11.0 cents (2023: HK18.0 cents) per
share was paid on 28 December 2023.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK30.0 cents (2023: HK40.0 cents) and a special final dividend of
nil (2023: HK5.0 cents) per share for the year ended 31 March
2024.

More information about the Company’s dividend policy is set out
in the Corporate Governance Report.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group made charitable
and other donations totalling HK$846,000 (2023: HK$67,000).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 March 2024 are set out in note 24(c) to the
consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2024, the aggregate amount of reserves available
for distribution to equity Shareholders was HK$298,843,000 (2023:
HK$371,073,000). After the end of the reporting period, Directors
proposed a final dividend of HK30.0 cents (2023: HK40.0 cents)
and a special final dividend of nil (2023: HK5.0 cents) per share
amounting to HK$38,866,000 (2023: HK$58,298,000). The
dividend has not been recognised as a liability at the end of the
reporting period.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2024 and up to the
date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman)
Lo Fai Shing Francis (Chief Executive Officer)
Peggy Lee

Independent Non-executive Directors

Joseph Chan Kai Nin
Peter Lau Kwok Kuen
Peter Wan Kam To
Yip Cheuk Tak

In accordance with Bye-laws 84(2) of the Company, Ms Peggy Lee
and Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin shall retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and being eligible, have
offered themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for a fixed
term of three years and are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.
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Personal
IIEENS

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 109,000
Lo Fai Shing Francis -
Peggy Lee 402,000

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2024, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

(a) Interests in the Company

BRI TEBR

y Shares of HK$1 each

xpus

AEfER
Number of underlying Percentage of
Family Corporate Other shares pursuant to totalissued
EEY EESY EESY share options NEEH
- - 57,435,384 - 57,544,384 44.42%
(Bt 1 R2)
(Notes 1 & 2)
- - 55435384 1,040,000 56,475,384 43.59%
(BzE1)
(Note 1)
- - - 300,000 702,000 0.54%

* APWHNER-Z-_MFE=A=+—HARQ
AE BT 129,552,780 %51 &

MizET -

PisE2 :

1tk % A% 15 F3 Neblett Investments Limited
(['Neblett ) K CFJ Holdings Limited ([ CFJ.)
FE - ZERRAD R EMIENERE
FERBEBEAEERMBERZERY
GERMEEEE BRBEERESE
AU EREERZEEANEIEER
HEMED X2 HABRRABHH
TEFERPITEERITEAE - B
R E % A Neblett J2 CFJ T 5 6 BR 15 &9
W o

2,000,000 B AE BB Z TRYEE
WITAZ —HEHEE -

*  This percentage has been compiled based on 129,552,780 shares of the
Company in issue as at 31 March 2024

Note 1:  These shares were held by Neblett Investments Limited (“Neblett"”)
and CFJ Holdings Limited (“CFJ”). These companies are beneficially
owned by two separate trusts of which Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung
and Mr Lo Fai Shing Francis are the discretionary objects. Both Mr
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung and Mr Lo Fai Shing Francis, by virtue of
their interests in the trusts as the discretionary objects and as the
Executive Chairman and Executive Director & Chief Executive
Officer of the Company respectively, were deemed interested in
the shares held by Neblett and CFJ.

Note 2: 2,000,000 shares held in the capacity as one of the executors of

the estate of the late Madam Lee Kwee Fuen.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (continued)

(b) TEXRPEREFRE DT ([ KRER (b) Interests in Fairwood Fast Food Limited (“FFFL")
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Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung

BEREERETERNEAE
Number of non-voting deferred shares

BAEZ XikEm ArEzm HtExs
Personal Family Corporate Other
interests interests IEENS interests
11,500 - 279,357 - 290,857
(BF5E3)
(Note 3)

MiFE3 AP H Pengto International Limited
BHE ZARARRBLEEBERS -

LA RS RER o
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Note 3:  These shares were held by Pengto International Limited, a
company owned by Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung solely.

All the interests stated above represent long positions.

Apart from the foregoing and those disclosed under the
section “Share Option Schemes” below, as at 31 March
2024, none of the Directors or chief executive of the
Company or any of their spouses or children under eighteen
years of age had any other interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which had been entered in the register
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Details of Directors’ and chief executive’s interests under the
share option schemes of the Company (“Share Option
Scheme(s)”) are also set out in the section “Share Option
Schemes” below.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Share Option Scheme which was adopted on 7 September 2011
has been expired on 6 September 2021 (the “2011 Share Option
Scheme”). A new Share Option Scheme was approved by the
Shareholders and adopted on 9 September 2021 (the “2021
Share Option Scheme”). Upon expiration of the 2011 Share
Option Scheme, no further options will be granted thereunder.
However, the options which had been granted under the 2011
Share Option Scheme prior to such expiration will continue to be
valid and exercisable in accordance with the rules of 2011 Share
Option Scheme. Summary details of the 2011 Share Option
Scheme and 2021 Share Option Scheme as at 31 March 2024 are
set out below:

(A) 2011 Share Option Scheme

(@) The purpose of the 2011 Share Option Scheme is to
attract and retain the best quality personnel for the
development of the Company’s businesses; to provide
incentives or rewards to any employee, Director
(including Non-executive Director and Independent
Non-executive Director) or officer of any member of
the Group or any related trust or company (the “2011
Option Scheme Qualifying Grantee”) and to promote
the long term financial success of the Company by
aligning the interests of option holders to Shareholders.

(b)  Under the 2011 Share Option Scheme, Directors were
authorised, at their discretion, to invite any of the 2011
Option Scheme Qualifying Grantee to take up options
to subscribe for shares in the Company at a price
which shall not be less than whichever is the highest of
(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
guotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of
offer; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer and (iii) the nominal value
of a share.

() As at 31 March 2024, the total number of shares
available for issue under the 2011 Share Option
Scheme is 1,343,528 shares, which represented
approximately 1.04% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at that date.

KPEEBEERAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
(A) 2011 Share Option Scheme (continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

The maximum entitlement of each participant under
the 2011 Share Option Scheme shall not in any twelve
months period up to the date of grant exceed 1% of
the Company’s shares in issue.

The period during which an option may be exercised
under the 2011 Share Option Scheme shall be
determined by the Board in its sole discretion and
stated in the letter setting out the offer of the grant of
the option and might be varied by the Board in
accordance with the 2011 Share Option Scheme, but
shall not exceed 10 years from the date of grant of the
relevant option.

Subject to the Listing Rules, the Board may, in its
discretion, determine the minimum period for which
an option must be held before it can be exercised.

The life of the 2011 Share Option Scheme was 10
years commenced on 7 September 2011 and expired
on 6 September 2021.

(B) 2021 Share Option Scheme

(a)

(b)

The purpose of the 2021 Share Option Scheme is to
attract and retain the best quality personnel for the
development of the Company’s businesses; to provide
incentives or rewards to any employee, Director
(including Non-executive Director and Independent
Non-executive Director) or officer of any member of
the Group (the “2021 Option Scheme Eligible Person”)
and to promote the long term financial success of the
Company by aligning the interests of option holders to
Shareholders.

Under the 2021 Share Option Scheme, Directors were
authorised, at their discretion, to invite any of the 2021
Option Scheme Eligible Person to take up options to
subscribe for shares in the Company at a price which
shall not be less than whichever is the highest of (i) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
guotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of
grant; (i) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant and (iii) the nominal value
of a share.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
(B) 2021 Share Option Scheme (continued)

(©) As at 31 March 2024, the maximum number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted under the
2021 Share Option Scheme is 12,955,278 shares being
10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
9 September 2021.

(d) The maximum entitlement of each participant under
the 2021 Share Option Scheme shall not in any twelve
months period up to the date of grant exceed 1% of
the Company’s shares in issue.

(e)  The period during which the option may be exercised
under the 2021 Share Option Scheme shall be
determined by the Board in its sole discretion and
stated in the letter setting out the offer of the grant of
the option and might be varied by the Board in
accordance with the 2021 Share Option Scheme, but
shall not exceed 10 years from the date of grant of the
relevant option.

(f)  Subject to the Listing Rules, the Board may, in its
discretion, determine the minimum period for which
an option must be held before it can be exercised.

(g) The life of the 2021 Share Option Scheme is 10 years
commencing on 9 September 2021 and expiring on 8
September 2031.

The vesting date of the share options granted under 2021 Share
Option Scheme is the first anniversary of the date of grant and
there is no performance target attached to these share options.

The number of options available for grant under the scheme
mandate pursuant to 2021 Share Option Scheme at the beginning
and the end of the year ended 31 March 2024 is 12,955,278 and
9,205,278 respectively.

As at 31 March 2024, the total fair value of unexercised vested
options and unvested options, measured in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2(p)ii) to the consolidated
financial statements, amounted to HK$4,350,000 (2023:
HK$4,760,000) under the 2021 Share Option Scheme. The
options are unlisted. Once vested, each option gives the holder
the right to subscribe for one ordinary share of HK$1 each of the
Company. Assuming that all the options outstanding as at 31
March 2024 are exercised, the Company will receive proceeds of
HK$42,502,000 (2023: HK$51,021,000).
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2024, Directors and employees
of the Group had the following interests in options to subscribe
for shares of the Company (market value per share as at 31 March
2024 was HK$8.06 (2023: HK$11.78)) granted for HK$1
consideration under the 2011 Share Option Scheme and 2021
Share Option Scheme.

(A) —EB——FBERETE (A) 2011 Share Option Scheme
fxtE
" HATAY
TR K&
Weighted average
Closingprice  price of closing
Numberof Numberof Numberof Numberof Number of Number of pershare  price per share
options options options options options options immediately immediately
outstanding  granted lapsed  cancelled exercised  outstanding  Exercise  before date before date
Date of Exercisable  asat 1 April during during during during asat31March price of grant of exercise
granted period 2023  theyear  theyear  theyear  theyear 2024 pershare of options of options
ks B B
HK$ HK$ HK$
EEK(EE) @-T=%F —E--fF 40,000 - - (40,000) - - 1790 17.84 -
Lo Fai Shing Frandis +ARAE WA—HZE
(Director) (a) 6 July -
2020 ZA=t-H
(HrsE1)
1 April 2021 to
31 March 2027
(Note 1)
b)—T=—%%F —T=-F 1,000,000 - - (1,000,000) - - 17.08 17.12 -
NA+RH HA—-BZE
(b) 10 August —ECtE
2020 ZA=t-H
(WzE1)
1 April 2021 to
31 March 2027
(Note 1)
1,040,000 - - (1,040,000) - -
FER(EE) —BCoEE —E--F 300,000 - - (300,000) - - 17.08 17.12 -
Peqgay Lee (Director) NRA+H mA—RZE
10 August ZTotE
2020 ZA=t-H
(HrzE1)
1 April 2021 to
31 March 2027
(Note 1)
300,000 - - (300,000 - -
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(A) —EBE——FBRETE (&) (A) 2011 Share Option Scheme (continued)

B AR

Weighted average

Closing price  price of closing

Numberof Numberof Numberof Numberof Number of Number of pershare  price per share

options options options options options options immediately immediately

outstanding  granted lapsed  cancelled exercised  outstanding  Exercise before date before date

Date of Exercisable asat 1 April during during during during asat31March price of grant of exercise

granted period 2023  theyear  theyear  theyear  theyear 2024 pershare of options of options

B

HK$

E8 —B-N\F —T-hE 30,000 - - (30,000) - - 26.42 2635 -
Employee +ZA+NR +A—B%
18 December ZTCZRHE
2018 NA=+B
(W3E2)
1 October 2019 to
30 September 2025
(Note 2)

E& —T-ZF ZTo—F 560,000 - - (560,000) - - 17.90 17.84 -
Employees +ARA MA—-BZ
6 July ZEo4E
2020 =R=+—H
(WEE1)

1 April 2021 to
31 March 2027

(Note 1)

E8 ke k45 —T-—F 700,000 - - (700,000) - - 17.08 17.12 -
Employees NA+AE mA—-AZE
10 August —EtF
2020 ZA=t+-A
(HzE1)

1 April 2021 to
31 March 2027

(Note 1)

E8 ke St 45 —T-—F 300,000 - (300,000) - - - 17.76 17.70 -
Employee +-A=1H +=ZA-B%
30 December okt o2
2020 +—-A=+AH
(GEZ)

1 December 2021
t0 30 November

2027
(Note 3)
1,590,000 - (300,000) (1,290,000 - -
aH: 2,930,000 - (300,000) (2,630,000 - -
Total:
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BAkiEsE 2 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
(B) =E=—FERETE (B) 2021 Share Option Scheme

il E £
Weighted average
Closingprice  price of closing
Numberof Numberof Numberof Numberof Number of Number of pershare  price per share

options options options options options options immediately immediately

outstanding  granted lapsed  cancelled exercised  outstanding  Exercise before date before date

Date of Exercisable  asat 1 April during during during during asat31March price of grant of exercise
granted period 2023  theyear  theyear  theyear  theyear 2024 pershare of options of options
iR A W

~ e i
Vit ks

BEE(EE) k- St —EopE - 1,040,000 - - - 1,040,000 11456 11.420 -
Lo Fai Shing Francis +AAA +tARAZE
(Director) 5 July —E==F
2023 +AMmA
(GEZY
5July 2024 to
4uly 2033
(Note 4)

FER(EF) —To=F —EopE - 300,000 - - - 300000  11.456 11.420 -
Peggy Lee (Director) +AAA +tARAZE
5 July —B==F
2023 +AMmA
(GEZY
5 July 2024 to
4 July 2033
(Note 4)

E8 “EoCE —EoEE - 2,410,000 (40,000) - - 2,370,000  11.456 11.420 -
Employees +AIR +tARRZE
5 July —E==%
2023 +AmA
(Fiszt4)
5 July 2024 to
4 July 2033
(Note 4)

At - 3,750,000  (40,000) - - 3,710,000

Total:

BsE1: BIRESAHIRATEREE : 10% Note 1:  These options shall vest in five tranches as follows: 10% on 1 April

R-ZE-—FOA-BHE 15%% 2021, 15% on 1 April 2022, 20% on 1 April 2023, 25% on 1

—E-—FA—HBHEEBE  20%R= April 2024 and the remaining 30% on 1 April 2025.

T—FNA—HHBE 25%N_F
“HENA—BRBRHET30% R
T_AENA—BRE -

MizE2 : BERES AHIEUTREEES: 10% Note 2:  These options shall vest in five tranches as follows: 10% on 1
RZZE—NF+A—BEBE - 15%R October 2019, 15% on 1 October 2020, 20% on 1 October 2021,
—E-_TF+A—BHEBE 20% A= 25% on 1 October 2022 and the remaining 30% on 1 October
T FT+A—HHEE 25%K_F 2023.

ZZF+A—HBRBRHT0%R
T_=F+A—HRE-
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(B)
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MisE3: BERESAMRATKERE  10%
R-ZZBE-_—F+-_A—HEHEE 15%
RZE-_—F+-A—BFEE 20%
RZE_=F+-_A—HEE 25%
R-Z-_mME+ - —HHEBELHT
30%R=_ZT-_AF+-_A—AHBE-

MizEs : BERED ZHRATEREE  34%
RZZE-_NFLARBHBE  33%R
TR FtARRAABRBRHET3I3%
RZZEZ A FLARERE -

ERACETRBERENSHTERRMNENE
BB FHENER - D REII R ER
B BT 3R MY 5 2(p)(ii) B PRE 20 ©

Br batESN - RAFREATMER - A
NERELAH B ARG ES BER L
B BEARRESR KR{THRAEX
HARMAB AR +/\ B F LA ASE
BEAARBREEMERAR (AN
BREF GOSN ER) O HER
&M

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
(B) 2021 Share Option Scheme (continued)

Note 3:  These options shall vest in five tranches as follows: 10% on 1
December 2021, 15% on 1 December 2022, 20% on 1 December
2023, 25% on 1 December 2024 and the remaining 30% on 1
December 2025

Note 4:  These options shall vest in three tranches as follows: 34% on 5
July 2024, 33% on 5 July 2025 and the remaining 33% on 5 July
2026.

Information on the accounting policy for share options
granted and the weighted average value per option is
provided in note 2(p)(ii) and note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors or chief executive of
the Company or any of their spouses or children under
eighteen years of age to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations within the meaning of the
SFO.

KPEEBEERAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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FERFTFREMALTRIEGRIMERBME  SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER'S AND OTHER
HES PERSON'’S INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

RN RERBLHEDE 336 R THEFNE  As at 31 March 2024, the interests or short positions of every

TMEBER  BARREFENESTHAEIN person, other than the Directors and chief executive of the

HiWA+THW—ZS-_mE=A=+—H#HAR2A Company, in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as

AR ABRAR D EERSOAB T ¢ recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

BER X 2T
RERE Pectn 48 21
) gp) B>

Shares directly Percentage
and/or of total
indirectly held issued shares*

(i) Neblett (Ffs£1) (i) Neblett (Note 1) 48,775,384 37.65%
(i) CFJ (i) CFJ 6,660,000 5.14%
(iii) Winning Spirit International Corp. (iii) Winning Spirit International Corp.

(TwsiC 1) (F&E1) ("WSIC") (Note 1) 48,775,384 37.65%
(iv) HSBC International Trustee Limited (iv) HSBC International Trustee Limited

(THITLD) (B5E2) ("HITL") (Note 2) 55,440,384 42.79%

* AN NER-ZE_NF=A=+—HAQRRD ¥ *  This percentage has been compiled based on 129,552,780 shares of the
7719 129,552,780 5t & Company in issue as at 31 March 2024

Pz s SR ER L Neblett BB 2 Note 1:  These interests represented the same block of shares directly held by
5 o WSIC #E 5 Neblett /9 100% # %5 + B8 Neblett. WSIC owned 100% interest in Neblett and was therefore
B Neblett FTE Z G AVRERS - deemed interested in the shares directly held by Neblett.

WeE2 : BRHTLEAZEMS5E 5L AMEEAFS5000 Note2:  Except for 5,000 shares held by HITL as trustee for other trusts, these

& 17 Hh - bk %5 %519 B [F) — Bt B3 Neblett &% interests represented the same block of shares directly held by Neblett
CRE®EIBEA ZRM - HITLTY & M {E B 2 and CFJ. HITL, in its capacity as a trustee of two separate trusts of which
BahAx (Bl ARBRERER) REEHRL Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (as founder and discretionary object) and Mr Lo
H(ARBREFZUYSR)NEE2XTEA A Fai Shing Francis (as discretionary object), owned 100% interest in WSIC
WSIC J2 CRIH) 100% #E 25 - SR RHE & and CFJ and was therefore deemed interested in the shares directly held
MERFIMTEERE RO R - by these companies.

it A BT E o All the interests stated above represent long positions.

M At I R—ZT_FE=H=+— Save as disclosed above, no other interest or short position in the
A 1R AAREREAENE3IB6RETME  shares or underlying shares of the Company were recorded in the
FEHEMrE - WEmERA QTN AER  register required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO as
A H AR SOR B - at 31 March 2024.
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(ZZT—=4 : 8¥7,280,0007T) °

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The particulars of the following connected transactions of the
Group are set out below in compliance with the reporting
requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

(@) Tenancy agreement with Hibony Limited (“Hibony")

On 26 February 2021, FFFL (an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company), as tenant, entered into a
tenancy agreement with Hibony, as landlord, to renew the
lease for a term of three years from 1 March 2021 to 29
February 2024 (both days inclusive) with an option to renew
for further three years to operate a fast food restaurant. FFFL
did not exercise the option to renew within the prescribed
period under the tenancy agreement. On 29 February 2024,
FFFL entered into a new tenancy agreement with Hibony to
renew the lease for a term of three years from 1 March 2024
to 28 February 2027 (both days inclusive). Hibony is a
connected person of the Company by virtue of being an
associate of Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman
and substantial Shareholder). Thus, the said tenancy
agreements with Hibony constitutes connected transactions
of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Details of the said tenancy agreements with Hibony are set
out in the announcements of the Company dated 26
February 2021 and 29 February 2024 respectively.

As at 31 March 2024, the value of the right-of-use asset to
be recognised by the Group under the tenancy agreements
with Hibony is approximately HK$5,387,000 (2023:
HK$7,280,000).

KPEEBEERAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Tenancy agreement with New Champion
International Limited (“New Champion”)

On 8 April 2021, FFFL (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company), as tenant, entered into a tenancy
agreement with New Champion, as landlord, to renew the
lease for a term of three years from 10 April 2021 to 9 April
2024 (both days inclusive) with an option to renew for
further three years to operate a fast food restaurant. FFFL
did not exercise the option to renew within the prescribed
period under the tenancy agreement. Subsequent to year
end, on 9 April 2024, FFFL entered into a new tenancy
agreement with New Champion to renew the lease for a
term of three years from 10 April 2024 to 9 April 2027 (both
days inclusive) with an option to renew for further three
years. New Champion is a connected person of the
Company by virtue of being an associate of Mr Dennis Lo
Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman and substantial Shareholder)
and Mr Lo Fai Shing Francis (Executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company), the said tenancy
agreements with New Champion constitutes connected
transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Details of the tenancy agreements with New Champion are
set out in the announcements of the Company dated 8 April
2021 and 9 April 2024 respectively.

At 31 March 2024, the value of the right-of-use asset to be
recognised by the Group under the tenancy agreement with
New Champion is approximately HK$6,426,000 (2023:
HK$8,550,000).

As these transactions contemplated under the tenancy agreements
with Hibony and New Champion were related and to be
completed within 12-month period, these transactions shall be
aggregated and treated as if they were one transaction under Rule
14A.81 of the Listing Rules which were subject to the reporting
and announcement requirements but were exempt from the
circular and the independent Shareholders’ approval requirements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Details of the connected transactions and material related party
transactions are set out in “Connected Transactions” on pages 39
and 40 of the annual report and in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

Save for the above, no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to the Group'’s business to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31 March
2024.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 March 2024, none of the Directors is
considered to have interests in any business which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with that of the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one
year without payment of compensation, other than normal
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save for the “Share Option Schemes” as set out in this annual
report, at no time during the year ended 31 March 2024 was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, every director or other
officer of the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets of the Company from and against all losses or
liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation
thereto.

The Company has maintained directors’ liability insurance which is

in force throughout the year and up to the date of this annual
report to provide appropriate insurance cover for the Directors.

KPEEBEERAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the “Share Option Schemes” as set out in this annual
report, no equity-linked agreement that would or might result in
the Company issuing shares, or that required the Company to
enter into an agreement that would or might result in the
Company issuing shares, was entered into by the Company during
the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

DEBENTURES

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company did not
issue any debenture.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company'’s
Bye-laws and the laws in Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2024, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company'’s listed securities.

BANK LOAN
As at 31 March 2024, the Group had no bank loan (2023: Nil).

FIVE-YEAR GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 175 of the
annual report.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Particulars of the investment properties of the Group are shown
on page 176 of the annual report.
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EERED
By order of the Board

EHE
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung
HITERE

Executive Chairman

/B ZEMFARAZTANAR
Hong Kong, 28 June 2024

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees in Hong Kong under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. Particulars
of the MPF Scheme are set out in note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Employees engaged by the Group outside Hong Kong are covered
by appropriate local defined contribution retirement schemes
pursuant to the local labour rules and regulations.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
annual report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

KPMG has resigned as the auditor of the Company with effect
from 22 February 2024. The Company has appointed Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) as the auditor of the Company
with effect on the same date to fill the casual vacancy following
the resignation of KPMG. There have been no other changes of
auditors of the Company in the past three years.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2024 has been audited by Deloitte, who will retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution
for the re-appointment of Deloitte as auditor of the Company is to
be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

KPEEBEERAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Fairwood Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) is committed to achieving high standards of
corporate governance practices to safeguard the interests of
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) and to
enhance corporate value and accountability.

The Company has complied with code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix C1 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) throughout the year ended 31 March 2024,
save and except that the Chairman and/or Managing Director (Chief
Executive Officer) of the Company are not subject to retirement by
rotation, details of which and the reasons for the deviation are
stated below.

BOARD
Board Composition

The composition of the Board during the year ended 31 March
2024 and up to the date of this report is set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman)
Lo Fai Shing Francis (Chief Executive Officer)
Peggy Lee

Independent Non-executive Directors (“INED(s)")

Joseph Chan Kai Nin
Peter Lau Kwok Kuen
Peter Wan Kam To
Yip Cheuk Tak

Biographical details of all directors of the Company (the “Directors”)
are set out on pages 21 to 24 of this annual report. A list
containing the names of the Directors with their roles and
functions has been published on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman) is the father of Mr
Lo Fai Shing Francis. Other than the family relationship disclosed
above, there is no relationship among Directors of the Board and
in particular, between the Executive Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer.



EEg»)
HEAAFESEEENRERSE

BE_T_WNF=-A=+—HILFER  H£&
TIRNREREFEER  ZSEFHFREFS
ERLARFRERE (EREAFAS ([
REFAE ) EBRRFHAE ([BRREHIA
g WEFRENT

BOARD (continued)

Attendance of Board Meetings and General Meetings of
the Company

Six full Board meetings were held during the year ended 31 March
2024. The attendance record of each Director at the Board
meetings and the general meetings of the Company (i.e. annual
general meeting (“AGM") and special general meeting ("SGM"))
are set out below:

HERE, HERE
BEExg BRERE
EE TN IREX
Number of Number of
general
meetings

attended/held

Board
meetings
attended/held

HITES Executive Directors

#FEG (BTTERE) Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman) 6/6 2/2

VB A (7TIECAEE) Lo Fai Shing Francis (Chief Executive Officer) 6/6 2/2

ZEx Peggy Lee 6/6 2/2

BYFGITES INEDs

PR ER 4 Joseph Chan Kai Nin 5/6 2/2

2B Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 6/6 2/2

FEH Peter Wan Kam To 6/6 2/2

EJCEt Yip Cheuk Tak 6/6 212
EESRERE The Board and Management
EECBREARTEENEEEIE  B5%E  The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in

REBARBNEL  WEBSIBREBERR

AE  KEBARREXRRRRINEE -2
BEE— E%Eﬁi‘lﬂ{’ﬁﬂj?"/\zﬁﬁj)}ﬂxﬁﬂ/\
E’JB&E EFEANTLRERANEBEF A
REME At RERATAEEERTRIZ
REGHERE -

the Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and
control of the Company and is collectively responsible for
promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs. All Directors have taken decisions objectively
in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders at all times.
The Board recognises that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of all Directors and thus, it has adopted
terms of reference for corporate governance functions that are in
line with the CG Code.
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BOARD (continued)
The Board and Management (continued)

The Board undertakes responsibility for decision making in major
matters of the Company, including the approval and monitoring
of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal
control, financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant financial and operational matters.

The Board is supported by three board committees, namely, the
Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Audit Committee. Each board committee has been constituted
with terms of reference setting out their composition, authorities
and duties approved by the Board and its recommendation or
decision on the matters within its terms of reference. Summary of
each committee’s works is disclosed in the subsequent sections of
this report.

All Directors have been consulted on all major and material
matters of the Company. With the advice and services of the
Company Secretary, the Executive Chairman seeks to ensure that
all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board
meetings and receive adequate and reliable information in a timely
manner. Where decisions to be taken by the Board require
specialised knowledge or expert opinion, Directors may choose to
take independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at the Company’s expenses, upon making request to the Board.

When Director has a conflict of interest in a transaction or
proposed transaction with the Company, the matter shall be dealt
with by physical Board meeting. Each Director is required to
promptly disclose any actual, potential and perceived conflict of
interest, in relation to a transaction or proposed transaction with
the Company as soon as practicable after the relevant facts have
come to his/her knowledge. Any Director facing a conflict of
interest will recuse himself/herself from the discussions and
abstain from participating in any Board decisions and voting on
resolutions regarding the matter.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the Executive Committee which
comprises three Executive Directors and the senior management
of the Company. Directors may request for explanations, briefings
by or discussions with senior management on any aspect of the
Company’s operations or business. The delegated functions and
work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained
from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into
by the above-mentioned officers.
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BOARD (continued)
Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Nomination Committee is responsible for making
recommendations on all Board appointments and re-appointment.
Details of the formal and transparent process in the appointment
and re-appointment of Directors are set out in the section
“Nomination Policy” below.

The Board is empowered under the Bye-laws of the Company (the
“Bye-laws”) to appoint any person recommended by the
Nomination Committee as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition to the Board.

According to the Bye-laws, (i) new Directors appointed by the
Board during the year shall hold office until the first AGM after
their appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election; and (ii)
at each AGM, one-third of the Directors (other than any Director
holding office as Chairman or Managing Director) for the time
being or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then
the number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire
from office provided that each Director (other than any Director
holding office as Chairman or Managing Director) including those
appointed for a specific term shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

Currently, all INEDs are appointed for a specific term of three
years, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election by the

Shareholders in accordance with the Bye-laws.

Procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director are available at the website of the Company.
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BOARD (continued)
INEDs

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three INEDs with at least one INED possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. There is no INED holding more
than seven listed company directorships.

The representation of INEDs is more than one third of the Board.
The Company has received from each INED an annual
confirmation in writing of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. Furthermore, the Board is not aware of any
relationship or circumstance which would interfere with the
exercise of the independent judgement of the INEDs. All the INEDs
are considered to be independent.

Re-election of INEDs (including those who have served the
Company for more than nine years) shall be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by Shareholders at the AGM. The
documentation to Shareholders accompanying the proposal of re-
election of INED who has served more than nine years would state
why the Board believes that such INED is still independent and
should be re-elected, the process of the Board in arriving at such
determination.
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BOARD (continued)
Directors’ Training and Induction to New Director

Upon appointment to the Board, the new Director is provided
induction training, such as provision of training material (including
relevant guidelines, governance policies and financial reports), to
ensure he/she has a thorough understanding of the Group as well
as his/her role and responsibilities.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, all Directors have
participated in continuous professional development activities
either by reading materials or by attending training courses/
seminars (as summarised as below) to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills on the roles, functions and skills of a director
of a listed corporation.

BEER KR,
s E
EY ek
Reading
Materials

and/or
Attending
Training
Courses/
Seminars

HITES Executive Directors

#RG (ATEE) Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman) v
VB (TTIEABH) Lo Fai Shing Francis (Chief Executive Officer) v
£ Peggy Lee v
BYFHTES INEDs

PREEE Joseph Chan Kai Nin v
2| B 4 Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 4
FiRH Peter Wan Kam To v
BiefE Yip Cheuk Tak v

NEMETHMESIRME FHEE - %S The Company Secretary provides regular updates on the latest

FRAMEMEESNENSRHEHLERE
Ao YHEEREREENEERE RIS
HRMBEEEM -

changes and development of the Listing Rules, corporate
governance practices and other regulatory regime to the Directors
with reading materials relating to the latest development of
regulatory requirements related to director’s duties and
responsibilities.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company are
Messrs Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung and Lo Fai Shing Francis respectively.
The Chairman is primarily responsible for the leadership of the
Board, ensuring that (i) the Board works effectively and performs
its responsibilities and that all key and appropriate issues are
discussed in a timely manner; (i) the Directors are properly briefed
on issues arising at Board meetings and (iii) the Directors receive
accurate, clear, complete and reliable information in a timely
manner. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the day-to-
day management of the Group’s business. Their roles are clearly
segregated and are not exercised by the same individual.

Code provision B.2.2 of the CG Code stipulates that every
director, including those appointed for a specific term, should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years;
however, the Chairman and the Managing Director of the
Company are not subject to retirement by rotation under the Bye-
laws. The Board considers that the exemption of both the
Chairman and the Managing Director (the Chief Executive Officer)
of the Company from such retirement by rotation provisions
would provide the Group with strong and consistent leadership,
efficient use of resources, effective planning, formulation and
implementation of long-term strategies and business plans. The
Board believes that it would be in the best interest of the
Company for such Directors to continue to be exempted from
retirement by rotation provisions.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Nomination
Committee comprises two INEDs, Dr Peter Wan Kam To and Mr
Yip Cheuk Tak. Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee. The written terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are in line with the CG Code and are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board, assessment the
independence of INEDs, identifies and recommends to the Board
suitable candidate(s) to stand for election by Shareholders at
AGM, or when necessary, to fill vacancies on the Board.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)
Policy for Board Diversity

Under the Policy for Board Diversity of the Company (the “Diversity
Policy”), appointment of Board members will be made on merit
with due regard of benefits of diversity on the Board, such as
having differences in the skills, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, gender, age and other
qualities of directors.

The Nomination Committee has been delegated authority to
identify and assess potential candidates for appointment to the
Board, and if thought fit, to nominate and make recommendations
to the Board in respect of new appointments and re-
appointments. Selection of candidates will be based on the
Company’s Nomination Policy taking into account the Diversity
Policy.

The Board believes that the Diversity Policy will promote effective
decision-making and better governance and allow the Board to
consider a wider range of options and solutions to corporate
issues. The Board shall review the Diversity Policy annually to
ensure its continued effectiveness.

The Board has a balanced mix of experiences, such as business
development, brand improvement, finance, audit and accounting
experiences and each Director has sound knowledge and expertise
contributing to the performance and development of the Group.
During the year ended 31 March 2024 and as at the date of this
report, there is one female Director out of seven Directors and
thus, the female representation was approximately 14.3% of the
Board. Details of the gender ratio of the workforce of the Group
are set out in the section headed “Cherishing Our Team” of the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2023/2024. The
Company will continue to take steps to promote gender diversity
at all levels of the Group.

KPEEBEERAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

51



52

TEER®RE
Corporate Governance Report

REERE (#)

REBE

ARBERMRBEE (HRBBEK ) ART L
EEREANEEESRHHZRERRIRERE

Fr o BERIAEREE

K2 2 e F e

AFARRAMEBEL -

PR R] B A TR -

(a

& AR e - MR BEE - B
BEES BELKBREEMEE

RRETHEFeMmARES T

2488 -
-2

REAZ AN e @5 BIER
RIS T FER AR R N EE
A

EFRUBTOTLON  HEAER
DEEE

PR F BB R IE A S A0E
DABATH I

& NREE M ELEAELESLEER
SER

REEBIFBTESEME  REAZ
AR 6 HA Ko £ T AR R Pk 51 O R TE B L
H2HE K

RAZBERBERNBRIMRA LA REK
M EAD R

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

Nomination Policy

The Company has adopted a Nomination Policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria and nomination
procedure when considering the appointment and re-appointment
of Directors to ensure a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the requirement of the Company's
business.

The selection criteria including but not limited to the following:

(a)

(b)

(0)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Age, gender, skills, cultural and educational background,
professional experience and other qualities of the candidate;

Effect of such appointment on the Board’s composition and
diversity;

Potential contributions a candidate can bring to the Board in
terms of qualifications, skills, experience, independence and
gender diversity;

Needs of the Board for particular expertise, skills or
experience;

Commitment to devote adequate time to discharge his or
her duties as a member of the Board;

Any potential or actual conflict of interests that may arise if
the candidate is selected;

For appointment of the INED, the number of years the
candidate has served and the factors as set out in the Listing
Rules for determining the independence; and

Other factors considered to be relevant by the Nomination
Committee on a case-by-case basis.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

Nomination Policy (continued)

Under the Nomination Policy, nomination procedure is
summarized as below:

(a)

For appointment of new Director(s) by the Board, the
Nomination Committee is delegated by the Board to identify
suitable candidates (or may seek assistance from external
consultancy agencies, if necessary) and evaluate potential
candidates based on the selection criteria set out above
through a physical meeting (unless it is impractical that the
physical meeting be held) to rank the candidates by order of
preference based on the selection criteria and determine
whether the candidate is qualified for directorship. The
Nomination Committee shall provide all relevant information
of the potential candidate (may including the terms and
conditions of the appointment) and make recommendation
to the Board for consideration and the Board, if considered
appropriate, shall approve the appointment of the proposed
candidate as new Director(s).

For re-appointment of Director(s) in a general meeting of the
Company, the Nomination Committee is delegated by the
Board to review the overall contribution made by the retiring
Director(s) and take into account the selection criteria set out
above before make recommendation to the Board for re-
appointment. Also, the Nomination Committee shall conduct
such review through a physical meeting (unless it is
impractical that a physical meeting be held). Based on the
review made by the Nomination Committee, the Board shall
make recommendation to the Shareholders on retiring
Director(s) standing for re-election at the AGM and provide
the biographical information of the retiring Director(s) in
accordance with the Listing Rules to enable the Shareholders
to make an informed decision on the re-election of such
Director(s) at the AGM.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

Nomination Policy (continued)

(0)

During the year ended 31

For any candidate (other than a Retiring Director(s))
nominated by the Board or Shareholders to stand for
election as a Director in a general meeting of the Company,
the Nomination Committee shall, upon receipt of the
proposal of nomination and the biographical information of
the candidate(s), evaluate his/her/their suitability based on
the same criteria set out above. The Board, under advice of
the Nomination Committee, may or may not make
recommendation to Shareholders on their voting to the
proposed election in the relevant announcement and/or
circular to Shareholders.

March 2024, one Nomination

Committee meeting was held to review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board; to assess the independence of INEDs and to make
recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of retiring
Directors pursuant to the Nomination Policy.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the attendance record of
each member is as follows:

HEre/

Sy
=1 ZN ;%(

Number of meetings
attended/held

Executive Director

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Chairman) 11
INEDs

Peter Wan Kam To 11
Yip Cheuk Tak 171
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Remuneration
Committee comprises three INEDs, Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin, Dr
Peter Lau Kwok Kuen and Mr Yip Cheuk Tak. Mr Joseph Chan Kai
Nin is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The written
terms of reference the Remuneration Committee are in line with
the CG Code and are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors and members of senior
management and other related matters; reviewing and/or
approving matters relating to share option scheme and making
recommendations on the same to the Board for approval.
Remuneration of Directors is determined with reference to their
duties and responsibilities, experience, time commitment and
prevailing market practice.

Remuneration payable to Directors and individuals with highest
emoluments are set out on pages 120 to 123 of the annual
report. Furthermore, no share option has been granted to INEDs
since their appointment.

The Remuneration Committee’s major work during the year ended
31 March 2024 include assessment of performance of Executive
Directors; review of the remuneration of Directors on annual basis
and review the proposed grant of share options and make
recommendations to the Board.

While considering the grant of share options of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2024, the Remuneration
Committee was of the view that it is not necessary to set
performance target for the existing option holders and other
employees of the Group (the “Grantees”) by having considered
that (i) the grant of share options to the existing option holders
for their respective outstanding share options being cancelled; (ii)
the grant of share options to the Grantees being a recognition of
the Grantees’ past contributions to the Group and enabling them
to benefit from the business success where they made
contribution to; and (jii) the vesting date and the value of share
options being linked with the future price of the shares which will
ensure that the long term interests of the Grantees and the
Company are aligned. Thus, the grant of share options to the
Grantees will be motivated to contribute towards the Group’s
development were aligned with the purpose of the share option
scheme.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2024, two Remuneration
Committee meetings were held and the attendance record of
each member is as follows:

HERE
=N
Number of meetings
attended/held

BYFHTES INEDs
PREEEF (/%) Joseph Chan Kai Nin (Chairman) 2/2
2 B 4 Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 22
Hie(E Yip Cheuk Tak 2/2
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(EZENF=A=F—HIEFE  BRE
EEeXERE LB IFRNITE EFIBEE
T PREFEAERIBRBEEL - BREEEH
FIEETETER BRZEg o BEHE
ERATEERTRNMATE  WEFERAEA
B) R B A Fr A A8 Uk o

ERZBENTI AR EREEFTOIE
2B BHYBRRLEBE  WEREERE
SHRM ~ O BBAZ BRAM 3k SIS AZ BRED FTEE H Y )
BEARSFHIER - BRZ BT A AR NG
REMOEZBELMLE  ARARARMB R
W ERERERANREERGEAREFNT
MR - BZZ B ITARRARRIING
ZEMNEET EFREMBREAESTSEM
2% - BZZ B e S FAEAN QR INEZBE

ELBITMREH -

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Audit Committee
comprises three INEDs, Dr Peter Wan Kam To, Mr Joseph Chan Kai
Nin and Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen. Dr Peter Wan Kam To is the
chairman of the Audit Committee. The written terms of reference
the Audit Committee are in line with the CG Code and are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing the
financial statements and reports and considering any significant or
unusual items raised by the qualified accountant, internal auditor
or external auditor before submission to the Board for approval. It
is also responsible for reviewing the scope and nature of the
external audit and the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control system and associated procedures. The Audit
Committee is also responsible for making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
Company'’s external auditor. It meets at least twice a year with the
Company'’s external auditor.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2024, four Audit Committee
meetings were held to review the interim and annual financial
statements of the Company; to review the internal audit
programme, findings and management’s responses; to evaluate
the system of internal controls and risk management of the
Group; to review the remuneration of external auditors; to discuss
with the external auditors their independence and the nature and
scope of the audit; to recommend the Board on the appointment
of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the Company’s external auditor
for the year ended 31 March 2024 to fill the casual vacancy
following the resignation of KPMG.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the attendance record of
each member is as follows:

B RE
SR
Number of meetings
attended/held

BYFHTES INEDs
FHIEHE (£ E) Peter Wan Kam To (Chairman) 4/4
PREEE Joseph Chan Kai Nin 3/4
2 B Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 3/4

NEWE COMPANY SECRETARY
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Mr Chan Kang Tung is the Company Secretary of the Company.
As the Company Secretary, Mr Chan supports the Board by
ensuring good information flow within the Board and the Board
procedures and all applicable law, rules and regulations are
followed. During the year ended 31 March 2024, he undertook
not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules for securities
transactions by the Directors. Following specific enquiry by the
Company, all Directors confirmed their compliance with the
required standards set out in the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 March 2024.

OVERVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

To manage and monitor the various risk factors which the Group
may be exposed to, the Board is responsible for establishing and
overseeing the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis, and ensuring the review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
has been properly conducted.

Under the oversight of the Board and the Audit Committee, the
Group’s management assumes the first and second line roles
where the business departments are responsible for the day-to-
day risk management and control processes whereas,
Sustainability and Risk Management Working Group is responsible
for the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management framework. The Internal Audit Department assumes
the role as third line who is tasked with conducting independent
assessment of the effectiveness of our risk management
framework and internal control procedures. Material control
weaknesses identified will be reported to the Audit Committee by
both Internal Audit Department and External Auditor on a regular
basis.
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[ E R R B Risk Governance Structure
AEBMHRBREREZAEREBWOTB T > The Group’s governance structure for its risk management system
EHAERBACRET - is shown in the diagram below. Each party has well defined roles

and responsibilities.
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OVERVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Risk Governance Structure (continued)

The Major roles and responsibilities of each party are as follows:

Board

Is ultimately responsible for the risk management and internal
controls of the Group;

Evaluates and provide direction to the Group on the nature
and extent of the risks that shall be taken in achieving its
objectives (i.e. setting the risk appetite); and

Ensures the review of the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems is conducted at least annually.

Audit Committee

Reviews the Group’s risk management framework and internal
controls with the Sustainability and Risk Management Working
Group at least annually, on behalf of the Board;

Reviews the results of the annual risk assessment during the
Audit Committee meeting, including the nature and extent of
significant risks and the Group's ability to respond to changes
in these risks and in its business and the external environment;

Considers the results of any investigation into the Group’s risk
management framework and internal controls, as delegated by
the Board or that it performs on its own initiative, and the
management’s responses to the findings of such investigations;
and

Performs an annual review of the Internal Audit Department
including the adequacy of its budget and resources, the
qualifications and experience of its management and staff, and
the quality of its training program.
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OVERVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Risk Governance Structure (continued)

Sustainability and Risk Management Working Group

Assists the Board and Audit Committee in overseeing the risk
management framework;

Provides recommendations to the Board and Audit Committee
relating to the design or modification of the risk management
framework; and

Reviews the results of the annual risk assessment and submits
these to the Audit Committee for its review.

Department Heads (Operational Management)

Act as risk owners to manage risks and internal control during
their day-to-day operations;

Identify and assess risks associated with business activities
within their own departments; and

Implement risk mitigation plans to remedy the identified risks.

Department Heads (Risk Governance and Compliance)

Coordinate and monitor governance, risk and compliance
activities in collaboration with risk owners.

Internal Audit Department

Validates the effectiveness of risk controls through internal
audit and identifies improvement opportunities as appropriate;

Manages and investigates misconduct and fraud cases, and
reviews the effectiveness of remedial actions; and

Acts as independent assessor of the risk management system
by performing assessments of the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Group's risk management system; and reports to the
Audit Committee on the results of its independent
assessments.
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OVERVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Risk Assessment Methodology

The Group's methodology for its risk assessment comprises of six
core phases, namely risk identification, risk appetite formulation,
risk assessment and measurement, formulation or update of key
risk register, risk mitigation, risk reporting and disclosures. These
processes are performed at least once a year to address changes
in the Group's business environment.

Review on the Effectiveness of Risk Management and
Internal Control Systems

The Board, through the Audit Committee, conducted an annual
review on the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems for the year ended 31 March 2024, covering
categories including strategy, operations, financial, external forces,
governance, compliance and ESG related risks.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, also conducted an
annual review of the Internal Audit Department, and accounting
and financial reporting functions, including the adequacy of their
budget and resources, the qualifications and experience of
management and staff, and the quality of its training program, in
order to ensure that they are able to provide sufficient coverage of
the Group’s key risk issues.

Our Responsibility

The Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that effective
and sound risk management and internal control systems are
maintained, while the management is responsible to design and
implement an internal control procedure during the course of daily
operation.

The risk management and internal control systems can provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss, and are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk arise in the process of attaining business
objectives. Based on the results of the annual review, the Board
consider that the risk management and internal control systems
currently put in place for the Group are effective and with no
significant issue that may affect the Group being identified.
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OVERVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Communications of Risk Events

Where risk events arise, our communications, both within the
Group and to external parties, are an integral part of the risk
management system. To enable the Group to make appropriate
decisions and responses to mitigate or address any risk events,
relevant information on the incident needs to be communicated
by and to the right functions and individuals, completely and
accurately, and in a timely manner.

To ensure inside information of the Company is to be disclosed to
the public in a timely manner in accordance with the Listing Rules,
applicable laws and regulatory requirement, written policy has
been established to set out the procedures and internal controls
for the handling and dissemination of inside information.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

All Directors well understand their responsibilities to present a
balanced, clear and understandable assessment of annual and
interim reports, price-sensitive announcements and other
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements. The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing consolidated financial statements which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group.

Management provides the Board and the committees with
adequate information to enable them to make an informed
assessment of the financial information put before the Board for
approval. Further, each Director has separate and independent
access to the Company'’s senior management for enquiries and
additional information.

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, confirm that
there are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

External Auditor

A statement by the external auditor of the Company about its
reporting responsibility on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group is set out on pages 67 to 72 in the Independent
Auditor’s Report.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the fees paid/payable to
the auditor in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by
the external auditor of the Company were as follows:

—E & —E-=F

2024 2023

BT BT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

hEAS SRR E Review fee for interim results 300 362

PEEERLE Audit fee for final results 1,630 3,191
BIRRERES RSN IEBZIRE Non-audit services which covered

provision of tax compliance services 65 207

FEE Total 1,995 3,760
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The Company continues to pursue a proactive policy of promoting
investor relations and communication. Designated Executive
Directors and senior management maintain regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the
Company’s developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with
in an informative and timely manner.

The Board also welcomes the views of Shareholders on matters
affecting the Group and encourages them to attend Shareholders’
meetings to communicate any concerns they might have with the
Board or management directly. These meetings provide
opportunities for the Board to engage with the Shareholders for
soliciting their feedback. Further, the external auditor shall attend
Shareholders’ meetings to answer questions about the conduct of
the audit, the preparation and content of the auditors’ report, the
accounting policies and auditor independence. During the year
ended 31 March 2024, all Directors attended the AGM and SGM
both held on 7 September 2023.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
(continued)

Subject to the applicable laws and regulations, the Listing Rules
and the Bye-laws, Shareholders may convene SGM and put
forward proposals at general meetings. Procedures on how
Shareholders can convene a SGM, put forward proposals at the
Shareholders’ meetings and propose a person for election as a
Director are also available at the Company’s website for
Shareholders’ information.

As a channel to further promote effective communication, the
Company’s website is maintained to disseminate corporate
information and other relevant financial and non-financial
information electronically. Shareholders may also at any time send
their enquiries and concerns in writing to the Company through
channel set out in the “IR Contact” at the section of Investor
Relations at the Company'’s website.

Various channels of communication with Shareholders mentioned
above are under the framework of the Company’s Shareholders
Communication Policy adopted in April 2022 and the Board shall
review this policy annually to ensure its effectiveness.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”) which sets out the criteria to be adopted when
considering declaration and payment of dividend with aims to
provide stable and sustainable returns to the Shareholders.

The Board may consider declaring and paying to the Shareholders
by taking into account of the following factors, among others, (i)
financial performance; (ii) retained earnings and distributable
reserve; (iii) cash flow; (iv) debt to equity ratio; (v) working capital
requirements; (vi) capital expenditure requirements; (vii)
investment requirements; (viii) future prospects and expansion
plans; (ix) general business conditions and strategies; (x) general
economic conditions and (xi) other factors that the Board deems
relevant.

Such declaration and payment of dividends by the Company shall
remain to be determined at the sole discretion of the Board and

subject to all applicable laws of Bermuda and the Bye-laws.

The Board shall review the Dividend Policy from time to time and
shall update, amend or modify it whenever necessary.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company has published an up-to-date consolidated version of
its Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange. During the year ended 31
March 2024, there has been no change to these Company’s
constitutional documents.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Fairwood Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Fairwood Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”) set out on pages 73 to 174, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2024,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 March 2024, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the "Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants” (“the Code"”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgement,
was of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. This matter was addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
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The key audit matter
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BERNER - whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on this matter.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

Impairment assessment of right-of-use assets and other property, plant and equipment
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We identified the impairment assessment of right-
of-use assets and other property, plant and
equipment as a key audit matter, as significant
judgement by the management and estimates are
required to assess the amounts of impairment of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the
management performed an impairment assessment
of right-of-use assets and other property, plant and
equipment due to the indication for impairment as
disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, by comparing the recoverable amounts
of the cash-generating units to which the assets
belong with respective carrying amounts based on
respective value in use calculations. The value in use
calculations used cash flow projections based on
financial budgets and discount rate and involved
significant judgement and estimates with certain key
assumptions and inputs, namely revenue growth
rates, gross margins and discount rate.
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Our procedures in relation to management impairment
assessment included:

Evaluating management’'s consideration and
process for the identification of impairment
indicators for right-of-use assets and other
property, plant and equipment;

Evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation
methodology and challenging the reasonableness
of the key assumptions and inputs, including
revenue growth rates and gross margins based on
the historical financial performance and the future
operation plan of respective cash-generating units;
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

Impairment assessment of right-of-use assets and other property, plant and equipment
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As at 31 March 2024, the carrying amounts of the
right-of-use assets and other property, plant and
equipment amounted to HK$970.6 million and
HK$396.6 million respectively, with impairment loss
recognised during the year ended 31 March 2024
amounted to HK$21.5 million and HK$11.1 million
respectively, as set out in note 11(d) to the
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Engaging our internal valuation expert to evaluate
the appropriateness of the discount rate used in the
value in use calculations; and

Evaluating management’s sensitivity analyses on
certain key assumptions and inputs applied.

consolidated financial statements.
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OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2023 were audited by another auditor who
expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on 30 June
2023.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.



B RS
Independent Auditor’s Report

ERB(ER B LR ETEABES
BFVER T EXRAE - REF T EREREE -
BAIIL

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

st Bl AN R {i BB IO AR RF S R BR T B BN AR & B
BRRFEERERBAORAR @ &5 &
HITEHEFUEEELRR - ARER
ZRMEENBTERE  FREMERN
AW - NMFFAIBE S REBR - HE &
BER  ERRAL - OZBERAEESZ
£ EBERBEF IR E G T 8 B B A
RERAMERESNREEEREAHERMEH
EE A RR A R o

THRBEE AN AR - URETEE
MESIEF BEMLIFYE BEXEAM
EHEBREBERER

HEESARASHBRENRE EREN
ST MER R BN AR -

HEERBRAEKL ST ERNREEIE
g o IRIBPIERFRE - BT
BFHERFHEXNBERAEENENTEE
M emAEERYE BERENFELE
BRNELBERRE - MRBMA/EFEE
ATHEEN - RIBEBREZBERE PIZ
FEREIRRAMBRR T MAME
BE-BREERANEETR  ARMAEER
REERERBR - RANGEHEERZH
Bh¥R S B IEFTEVS RO RET/RE © A - R
REFKBERAAEEN BEXKETERE

AEFEMBEHRRNERIET R - &
MAR  BREEE  UWREEUBHRERE
BRFERRIBBEIHMER -

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group'’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

APRSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Independent Auditor’s Report

e 3 ERBAEBIEBEHNUBFELR
EERRR  BENENERE  UWEHES
MBHHRERBR - HZHMEE BEXEERE
ST  BEEMAIT c RAABAER
EEREEE -

BREMERS  RFEEREERTAHENE
AHEE - BETH  EXEFBERE  BER
IR BRI AR Bl B0 (E (T B AR

BfERERBRREH HARMETEE
B MR ERERER W RM AR
BRRSENKABSEFERMBILIENAE
BEMEMER  UREERNERT - B
HBRE BT EE B NITE SRR &
RN

HEEFESBNEERT  RAEEWLSFIH
HAGAMBBRNETRRER  AMBE
PR E A IR - HAERBEN RS P E
LRIE  RIDERERTATLARABEBEELS
R SESRRFROBRT - IREGEBRHE
BMRETEBRERENNEERREBBE
AR AT - RPIRE T EERS P BBZ
FH-

HAABYZBMBENBRTHEABAR
FRE-

BE  BERS FEEIT
BR B AT
N

—E-FEXNA-T\H

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matter. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Li Man Kei.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 June 2024



FEEFER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

HE_Z-_WF=A=+—BIEFE ABHIIT)
for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

WA Revenue 4(a) 3,136,947 3,024,152
SHERA Cost of sales 6(b) (2,866,353) (2,767,394)
EF Gross profit 270,594 256,758
Hbg AMEA U Z5FEE  Other revenue and other net gain 5 42,405 41,514
SHEE Selling expenses (35,530) (37,379)
1TEE R Administrative expenses 6(b) (145,324) (132,058)
Eab Y - BIRAMERAER  Impairment losses on other property,

B EE plant and equipment 11(d) (11,125) (14,033)
FREEENREEIE Impairment losses on right-of-use assets 11(d), 12 (21,509) (26,600)
HEMELEREE Valuation losses on investment properties 11(a), 11(b) (1,020) (4,840)
R R Profit from operations 98,491 83,362
& B AN Finance costs 6(a) (33,366) (31,698)
BRE AT R Profit before taxation 6 65,125 51,664
5% Income tax 7(a) (14,468) (6,784)
KA TESERRENG Profit for the year attributable to equity

AEERF shareholders of the Company 50,657 44,880
BREF Earnings per share 10
R Basic 39.10{ll cents  34.64ll| cents
g Diluted 39.101ll cents  34.644ll| cents

FLOEF17TAANMEBAGE M BHERD
— 87 - BNARREERRNREOFITE

BB E 24(b) ©

The notes on pages 80 to 174 form part of these consolidated
financial statements. Details of dividends payable to equity

shareholders of the Company are set out in note 24(b).

KIREEBEBRAE FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED 73
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BHE—Z-NFE=A=+—HILFE (LAE¥EIIT)

for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

AAREERREMLRFERR Profit for the year attributable to equity

shareholders of the Company 50,657 44,880
AEEHM2EES : Other comprehensive expense for the year:
HEAEEH A ERIBZEER ¢ Item that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
A R B (A b B BB A R AY Exchange differences on translation of financial
ISR ME N =5 statements of subsidiaries in Mainland China (578) (4,106)

AAREBRREERFEFELH Total comprehensive income for the year
W4 58 attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company 50,079 40,774

FLYOEF 74BN TB AGZAUKEHEB  The notes on pages 80 to 174 form part of these consolidated
— &5 ° financial statements.

/4



e MBARIRR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RZT—FE=A=+—H(ABEITR)
at 31 March 2024 (Expressed in'Hong Kong dollars)

FRBEE Non-current assets
KRG Investment properties 11(a) 22,240 23,260
EbYZE - SRR AE Other property, plant and equipment 11(a) 396,593 379,399
ERREEE Right-of-use assets 12 970,574 1,033,885
1,389,407 1,436,544
GES Goodwill 13 1,001 1,001
BEEeERe Rental deposits paid 60,302 68,483
EERIBEE Deferred tax assets 21(b) 703 4,070
1,451,413 1,510,098
REBEE Current assets
T8 Inventories 14(a) 52,651 55,624
JE Ui B RN EL At e U 30 Trade and other receivables 15 102,725 90,033
] Uy [0] 25 B 75 18 Current tax recoverable 21(a) 39 32
RITERRIEEH Bank deposits and cash and
BEEEY cash equivalents 16 640,983 646,758
796,398 792,447
REBEE Current liabilities
JRE 11 B RN EL A B 1 3R Trade and other payables 17 435,009 400,536
HERE Lease liabilities 18 389,911 393,575
FEH AR EARL I8 Current tax payable 21(a) 6,214 406
P Provisions 22 26,601 20,804
RERBEET Long service payment obligation 23 608 1,903
858,343 817,224
REBEEEE Net current liabilities (61,945) (24,777)
EEHABERRBAER Total assets less current liabilities 1,389,468 1,485,321

APRSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RZZBZNF=A=+—H(ABBIIR)
at 31 March 2024 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

FRBEE Non-current liabilities
HE&E Lease liabilities 18 652,270 732,878
EEFIEAGE Deferred tax liabilities 21(b) 17 76
2SS Rental deposits received 1,798 14
B Provisions 22 46,636 47,450
EHREeET Long service payment obligation 23 28,242 24,274
729,063 804,692
EEFRE NET ASSETS 660,405 680,629
EARNEE Capital and reserves 24
N Share capital 129,553 129,553
G Reserves 530,852 551,076
R TOTAL EQUITY 660,405 680,629

BN T _NNFANA-TN\BERAETFHFA  Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 June

B o 2024.
bk & ER
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung Lo Fai Shing Francis
HITEE 7T AEZ
Executive Chairman Chief Executive Officer

EYEBI1T4ENWEE ARG MBS I®MELN  The notes on pages 80 to 174 form part of these consolidated
— &5 o financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE_Z-_WF=A=+—BIEFE ABHIIT)
for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Bt
Notes

Share
capital
Fx
$'000

RIEIGER D

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

Share
premium
FIT

Capital
reserve
T
$'000

Land and
buildings
revaluation
reserve
F7T
$'000

Exchange
reserve
T
$'000

Retained
profits
Fit

N-B-—& At 1 April 2022
mA—H 129,553 55,183 8,495 5,743 527 514,735 714,236
Bz—-——-=f Changes in equity for year
=A=t+—AHL ended 31 March 2023:
FENEZSE:
REEHF Profit for the year - . . - — 44880 44880
Hib2mEEsE Other comprehensive expense - - - (4,106) - - (4,106)
NEFE2EUZELE  Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - (4,106) - 44,880 40,774
FEECIEMAE  Dividends approved in respect
of the previous year 24(b)(ii) - - - - - (51,821) (51,821
RNEFZEERMMLE  Dividends declared in respect
of the current year 24(b)(i) - - - - - (23,320) (23,320)
REE AR AE Lapse of share options - - (3,097) - - 3,097 -
PARERAEE M LARR  Equity-settled share-based
EBEWMHNLS transactions 6(b), 20(c) - - 760 - - - 760
R-ZZEZ= At 31 March 2023
=A=t+-H 129,553 55,183 6,158 1,637 527 487,571 680,629
R-BZZ=F At 1 April 2023
mA—H 129,553 55,183 6,158 1,637 527 487,571 680,629
BE-_T-_MF Changes in equity for year
=A=+—HL ended 31 March 2024:
FENEZSE:
AREL R Profit for the year - - - - - 50,657 50,657
Hit 2 HEEE Other comprehensive expense - - - (578) - - (578)
RNEELEUWZLLE  Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - (578) - 50,657 50,079
TEECHERNIRE  Dividends approved in respect
of the previous year 24(b)(ii) - - - - - (58,298) (58,298)
AEEEERAME  Dividends declared in respect
of the current year 24(b)(i) - - - - - (14,251) (14,251)
E G Lapse of share options = - (150) = = 150 -
DA 5B H ARG (D Equity-settled share-based
REBRNRZ S transactions 6(b), 20(c) - - 2,246 - = - 2,246
R-Z-mEF At 31 March 2024
=A=+-—H 129,553 55,183 8,254 1,059 527 465,829 660,405
The notes on pages 80 to 174 form part of these consolidated

FLOEFITAENMEBAGE M BHERD

Sy financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

BHE_ZT_M&F=A=1+—

HIEFE (AEKSIR)

for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

RETER Operating activities
B 358 A Profit before taxation 65,125
HEIEE Adjustments for:

Hits - #etmk Depreciation for other property,
weE plant and equipment 6(b), 11(a) 93,733
EREEENE Depreciation for right-of-use assets 6(b), 12 406,720
Hib¥nz - #a3FE Impairment losses on other property,
HUREEE plant and equipment 11(d) 11,125
EREEENNERSE  Impairment losses on right-of-use assets  11(d), 12 21,509
BEKAE Finance costs 6(a) 33,366
FBUWA Interest income 5 (28,113)
BREHMME - #2ZM  Net loss on disposal of other property,
RENERFE plant and equipment 5 7,704
REMEMESE Valuation losses on investment properties  11(b) 1,020
AR A E AR A Equity-settled share-based payment
EpR T expenses 6(b) 2,246
BEE kG Gain on lease modifications 5 (10,290)
BEEXZHALETE Operating profit before changes

in working capital 604,145

EEELRRE Changes in working capital:
FERL Decrease in inventories 2,973
BEHeRERD Decrease in rental deposits paid 4,633
JEMER SRR E B FBULFR  (Increase)/decrease in trade and other

(#m),/ mp receivables (9,698)
FERTBRIR R B A FEITAR AN Increase in trade and other payables

bl 24,625
SRS RSEMm Increase/(decrease) in rental deposits

CR) received 28
RERBEAEEM Increase in long service payment obligation 23 2,673
BEREEMAER Provision for reinstatement costs utilised 22 (2,070)
REFERE Cash generated from operations 627,309
BHFIE Interest received 28,058
(BER)/BREES Net Hong Kong Profits Tax (paid)/refunded

ST e (5,259)
RETHMERESFHE  Net cash generated from

operating activities

650,108

—=—=

—= =

2023
T
$'000

51,664

89,122
389,539

14,033
26,600
31,698
(14,757)

4,819
4,840

760

(7,238)

591,080

1,654
6,905

48,925

42,224

%)
4,779
(2,275)
693,290

11,858

4,245

£

T
$'000

709,393



II/T Eﬁﬁ/)lbi%

Consolidated-Cash'Flow: Statement
HE_Z_NF=A=+—HIEFE (LBEEHIR)

for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—T-F
2024
B s T

Notes $'000 $'000

REEH

BAEMYE - #ER

Investing activities

Payment for purchase of other property,

BB plant and equipment (119,567) (99,030)
BEEMYE - #ERM  Net proceeds from disposal of other
BEMERIEFE property, plant and equipment 762 31
Frua={EA%EI#E  Placement of bank deposits with
RITFER more than three months to maturity (102,661) (60,000)
REB=EA%EIEE  Withdrawal of bank deposits with
RITER more than three months to maturity 60,000 -
EWRAERENERZED Capital element of lease rentals receipt 626 2,222
EWAEREMNF SIS  Interest element of lease rentals receipt 2 46
RETFHFTABELFHE  Net cash used in investing activities (160,838) (156,731)
WEEE Financing activities
BERRE Dividends paid 24(b)  (72,549) (75,141)
FIGIRITIER New bank borrowings raised 4,965 -
BRFITER Repayment of bank borrowings (4,965)
ENEEREMEARILD  Capital element of lease rentals paid 16(b)  (431,355) (413,8698)
BEREKAE Finance costs paid 6(a) (33,366) (31,698)
BMEZERTAHRLFEE  Netcash used in financing activities (537,270) (520,707)
ﬁ%%ﬂﬁ%%—{” # Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
W) R EE cash equivalents (48,000) 31,955
RMUBE—BHEEMEEL Cash and cash equivalents
ZEY at 1 April 586,758 557,102
IMEERBE NS E Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes (436) (2,299)
R=A=+—HBMWEEM Cashand cash equivalents
HEZEY at 31 March 16 538,322 586,758

FEOEFI7TAAMMEBAGEEMBHRERW

—&pD e

financial statements.

APRSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

The notes on pages 80 to 174 form part of these consolidated
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BB RR M
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(B3E5BRA - AU EIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1

—RER
AREFEBERQATARRA]D & —
FEBRETMAINERRZER A
A EHRWEZTEMEXZMAER DA
(T8 pr)) Ee ARREERR B
Neblett Investments Limited ([ Neblett])
R EERBERESIMKIARF
I CFJ Holdings Limited ([CFJ)) + & — [
£ /5 7 8% & 5 A 32 &9 22 B © Neblett 2
100% 4 Winning Spirit International Corp.
(TwsICl) - A—HIAER R ST MY
B R RFTHA ° WSIC & CFI T3 & M fE T @
EREEmEAMNAERE £ & (KAFTT
BEFE) RBEASGE (RREITHEE)
REEZEROAAE - NARlEMpEE
BREZEEMBAMIERFRAAE
FHEE D WHKER -

REGSMBEHERNERERRE
KEHHEER

(a) &2
TREAVEREBEBRELSMA
SEMN(EET B RELELDFE -
RZEWEHRRNMTEWIMES L
MR A ([ EmR R ) FEBCR A
PIXMEMNBERBEEE K - LLTEAR
ALREHRBAR (KB AIAEER]) K
FARERSTBERER °

FRGAEAGRM THTHA ML
ERTRCKEEH B MELR) - FLE
AEARBEEMN ST HRRAEER
A HEERRA - EEAKEAHED
#0E A 1) 46 8 I LT AT MR B FT /Y
ERFTSIE R AAE S5 BT
MEFBRED  DRALRE PR
RARKR - BEEREIIRHEE2(C) °

1 General information

Fairwood Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an exempted
company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The substantial shareholders of the
Company include Neblett Investments Limited (“Neblett”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI") and
CFJ Holdings Limited (“CFJ"), a company incorporated in the
Cook Islands. Neblett is 100% owned by Winning Spirit
International Corp. (“WSIC") which is incorporated in BVI.
WSIC and CFJ are beneficially owned by two separate trusts of
which Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung and Mr Lo Fai Shing Francis,
Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company respectively, are the discretionary objects of these
trusts. The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information section in the annual report.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(a) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). These
consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock
Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
Material accounting policy information adopted by the
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
"Group”) are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 2(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(BRIESEERR - TR ABESIR )

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 SAMERENENERREKAXET 2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

HBREER &) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
(b) e MR FEBER (b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements
HE-_Z-_MF=A=+—HILFE The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
RS ﬁﬂ%iﬁi\%/@%$’§@ 31 March 2024 comprise the Group.
RZTE-_WE=A=+—80" && As at 31 March 2024, the Group's total current assets were
B 7R 8 & E 42 8 5796,398,000 T $796,398,000 (2023: $792,447,000) and total current
(ZF = =4 :792,447,0007T ) * M liabilities were $858,343,000 (2023: $817,224,000). As a
7 B) B & 4 1 /858,343,000 7T ( = result, the Group recorded net current liabilities of
— = :817,224,0007T ) - A It - $61,945,000 (2023: $24,777,000) mainly due to lease
RNEBE B R E A EFE61,945,000 liabilities of $389,911,000 (2023: $393,575,000)
T(Z T = = F:24,777,0007T ) ° recognised under current liabilities.

FEARALEERRTHARENAK
389,911,000 tWBEEBE (T ==
£ : 393,575,0007T) °

BER_Z_NME=A=+—BF% Despite the net current liabilities as at 31 March 2024, the
ErnBEEFEE EAKEERZAE bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents amounted to
MRTERERS fﬂ iﬁ % ZEY $640,983,000 (2023: $646,758,000) on the same day and
#3640,983,000t( = T = = the Group reported a profit before taxation of $65,125,000
646,758,000 T ) I A& B E T = (2023: $51,664,000) and recorded net cash generated
WE=ZA=+—H 17RO KA from operating activities of $650,108,000 (2023:
& F 765,125,000 ( Z T = =% : $709,393,000) during the year ended 31 March 2024.
51,664,0007T) * BESRKEEZEE Furthermore, based on the cash flow projection prepared
4 # IR & ¥ ¥ /650,108,0007T (= F by management which covers a period of not less than
— =% :709,393,0007T) ° B - RIE twelve months from 31 March 2024, the directors of the
EEERHENREA _FT _MF=H Company (the “Directors”) are of the opinion that
=Et+t—HERMR+ZEAHARNR anticipated cash flows generated from the Group's
EREFRA  ARAEEF(EFDR operations can strengthen the Group's financial position
B ARBEREELANTEHMRERE and enable the Group to have sufficient financial resources
G — S EE RSB BARR - A to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due
EAKEENRSEBTE-_FT_NF in the coming twelve months from 31 March 2024.
ZA=t+—HRBRR+TZEA R Accordingly, the Group's consolidated financial statements
BEME - At - NEBELEAEMBREIZ have been prepared on a going concern basis.
FEREEERE -

KIREEBEBRAE FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED 81
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(BRIEZSEER - TRIGUEETR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 BEOMEREMNENERREKXT 2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
HBRER &) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial

(b) FE P HRRNRMAER (&)

82

BTSN HREZAIAN
REARNG S M B RKREZIAE LKA
ERATEEE -

EEERTERUETA(EAMBREE
AW IR EL @ H SR RN
R AREE - 8F WAMXIH
Y SRR R B R H T - A A
B - ELAs AR RREREINA
ERBRMEEERNERERBARSS
EMZHAMEAZELN  RERE
BT E IR B BRI TR E A R BB
BHEERRBREERFTEL
B ey 2 - BERARATREA IR EE
28 -

EEEe T ENSBEMF MM
BR - MRGALIANETRRRE
K-8 ExeferazHNE
R MRIETHERMARKARBE
T8 RBIFE(E L& RT &9 B A0 oK 2K HA
R °

FHEEEERA(EAMBHREE
ADEAEL NG M BHRREEXN
FENHE  ARETENGHABED
ERRNTRAR - EIIRMES

statements (continued)

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost basis
except as otherwise stated in the accounting policies set
out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(BRIESEERR - TR ABESIR )

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 BAMERENENERREKAXET 2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

HEBRER &) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
(c) ST BUERMIBRT (c) Changes in accounting policies

BEGTMAGRM THTHIRE
ERTRCEBH B ME L) FELE
AIRAEEREN _—_T _=FMWA—
ARG FEHNERAENEEMBERR

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and amendments
to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the Group's
annual period beginning on 1 April 2023 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

FR R I AR
(CEBMBRELER) REBRELH HKFRS 17 (including the Insurance Contracts
ERVEACA= October 2020 and
—ETE+HAR February 2022 Amendments
e Shlent = Sl = by d to HKFRS 17)
1B8])
(CEXgFTEAD BETHETAY Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
FE8IRZIBE] E#E Estimates
(BB ERD BRI S Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to
F1255 2187 EXMEE Assets and Liabilities
MBEEH Arising from a Single
RIS IR Transaction
(EAEGFTELD B gE R Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform
F125R 2185 - EZEHK — Pillar Two Model Rules
#£ A1
(EXEgFTEAD BETHERAY Amendments to HKAS 1 and  Disclosure of Accounting
FE1RMCE BT #FE HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Policies
REEDNES
BRI 2588 5]
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2 BEOMEREMNENERREKXT 2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
HBRER &) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

() EFTBERIERT ()

84

FER(EREEER) B 125RB T A8
BEBRRSEENEENEERBIE
IEBE | NE
AEBERANFREREBAZREFER
Ko BRETREE T(EBG LA
F125R S B 15 RAE 24 RFTIE
EREBEABMECHEEERRRR
Y E P g0 - 1T N B E R A A R
REELHRAMNERNE KIEEEM
AERNEREZENRS -

RIFBEMRTE -

() AEEEHHE_T - —FOA—
Bk RBELENHERZEHER
SR

(i) FIE > AEBR - -_—_FMA—
A EFERAEEENHEERER
BT A A B INE R EEMER
HEREEZE BRELHEBEEE
(ATIR 2R AT RS RERI A AT 4K 40
TR EERENOERBFNE)
MIELERIAEE ©

ERZEFETL R AEEN MG
MRARRREEBAZE  EXEH
R E2I0F R ERRENHE—
T__FWUA-BNHEBNELEHE
& 720,259,000 7T K & 7 1H & &
20,259,000 TTRRSN » B & F HAFI 3R Y
REBBMEERE -

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 12,
“Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities Arising
from a Single Transaction”

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time
in the current year. The amendments narrow the scope of
the recognition exemption of deferred tax liabilities and
deferred tax assets in paragraphs 15 and 24 of HKAS 12,
“Income Taxes” so that it no longer applies to transactions
that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences.

In accordance with the transition provision:

() the Group has applied the new accounting policy
retrospectively to leasing transactions that occurred on
or after 1 April 2022;

(i) the Group also, as at 1 April 2022, recognised a
deferred tax asset (to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary difference can be utilised) and a
deferred tax liability for all deductible and taxable
temporary difference associated with right-of-use-assets
and lease liabilities.

The application of the amendments has had no material
impact on the Group's financial position and performance,
except that the Group disclosed the related deferred tax
assets of $20,259,000 and deferred tax liabilities of
$20,259,000 as at 1 April 2022 on a gross basis in note
21(b) but it has no impact on the retained profits at the
earliest period presented.
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2 EAMBERENENERREKXET 2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
HBEER &) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
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Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2, “Disclosure of Accounting
Policies”

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time
in the current year. HKAS 1 “Presentation of Financial
Statements” is amended to replace all instances of the
term “significant accounting policies” with “material
accounting policy information”. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together with
other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of the
related transactions, other events or conditions, even if the
amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting policy
information relating to material transactions, other events
or conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses to
disclose immaterial accounting policy information, such
information must not obscure material accounting

policy information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2, “Making Materiality
Judgements” (the “Practice Statement”) is also amended
to illustrate how an entity applies the “four-step materiality
process” to accounting policy disclosures and to judge
whether information about an accounting policy is material
to its financial statements. Guidance and examples are
added to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments has had no material
impact on the Group'’s financial positions and performance
but has affected the disclosure of the Group’s accounting
policies set out in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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2 BEOMEREMNENERREKXT 2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

HBEKER &) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
(d) KB A =) (d) Subsidiaries
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Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-
group balances, transactions and cash flows and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2(i)(i)).

(e) Goodwiill

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred and the fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash-
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 2(i)(i)).
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

(f) Investment properties
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Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 2(h)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are stated at fair value. Any gain or
loss arising from a change in fair value or from the
retirement or disposal of an investment property is
recognised in the profit or loss. Rental income from
investment properties is accounted for as described in note

2(s)(ii).

In the comparative period, when the Group held a property
interest under an operating lease and used the property to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the
Group could elect on a property-by-property basis to
classify and account for such interest as an investment
property. Any such property interest which had been
classified as an investment property was accounted for as if
it were held under a finance lease (see note 2(h)), and the
same accounting policies were applied to that interest as
were applied to other investment properties leased under
finance leases. Lease payments were accounted for as
described in note 2(h).

(g) Other property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 2(i)(i)):

— right-of-use assets arising from leases over freehold or
leasehold properties where the Group is not the
registered owner of the property interest;

— items of plant and equipment, including right-of-use
assets arising from leases of underlying plant and
equipment (see note 2(h)); and

— other items of plant and equipment, except cutlery and
utensils (see below).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of other property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

(g) Other property, plant and equipment (continued)
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
other property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

— Leasehold land and Over the remaining lease

buildings situated thereon

Other properties held for
own use

Ownership interests in
leasehold land held for

terms

Over the remaining lease
terms

Over the remaining lease
terms

own use

— Leasehold improvements  Over the remaining lease

terms

Over the remaining lease
terms

— Air-conditioning plant

— Furniture and equipment  10%-33% per annum

- Motor vehicles 15% per annum

— Computer systems 25% per annum

— Others 10% per annum

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.
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2 BAMERENENERREKAXET 2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

HEBRER &) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
(hHEEEE (h) Leased assets
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At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and
to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from
that use.

(i) EHAEBEA (i) As a lessee

RAERER - NEEERERE
BEMBERE HEHIRHE
R1R2EANEHEE (BLAKEM
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BEPIIK -

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for
short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less, for the Group are primarily restaurants. The
lease payments associated with those leases which are
not capitalised are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate
cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective interest
method. Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.
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(h) Leased assets (continued)

(i) As a lessee (continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable,
the cost of the right-of-use assets also includes an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or
the site on which it is located, discounted to their
present value, less any lease incentives received. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
notes 2(g) and 2(i)(i)), except for right-of-use assets that
meet the definition of investment property are carried
at fair value in accordance with note 2(f).

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in an
index or rate, or there is a change in the Group's
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising
from the reassessment of whether the Group will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

In the consolidated statement of financial position, the
current portion of long-term lease liabilities is
determined as the present value of contractual
payments that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the reporting period.
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(h) Leased assets (continued)

(ii) As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if
it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying assets to
the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified as
an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis. The rental income from
operating leases is recognised in accordance with note

2(s)(ii).

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the sub-
leases are classified as a finance lease or as an operating
lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising
from the head lease. If the head lease is a short-term
lease to which the Group applies the exemption
described in note 2(h)(i), then the Group classifies the
sub-lease as an operating lease.
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(i) Impairment of assets and credit losses

(i) Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

other property, plant and equipment;
— right-of-use assets;
— goodwill; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company’'s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
intangible assets that are not yet available for use and
intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.

— Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the assets belongs, including allocation of
corporate assets when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be established, otherwise
recoverable amount is determined at the smallest
group of cash-generating unit, for which the
relevant corporate assets have been allocated.
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(i) Impairment of assets and credit losses (continued)

(i) Impairment of other non-current assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if
the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of
units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a
pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value
in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.
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(i) Impairment of assets and credit losses (continued)

(ii) Credit losses from trade and other receivables,

other financial assets carried at amortised cost and
lease receivables.

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECLs") on the following item:

— financial assets measured at amortised cost; and

— lease receivables.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value
of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference
between the cash flows due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the
following discount rate where the effect of discounting
is material:

— fixed-rate financial assets and trade and other
receivables: effective interest rate determined at
initial recognition or an approximation thereof;

— lease receivables: discount rate used in the
measurement of the lease receivable.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs
is the maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.



RE B RS R R M A
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(BRIESEERR - TR ABESIR )

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 REMBERRHERERREXS
ABRER (&)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

() EENEEBERE#)

(i) FEW AR AN b UK - LU SR
FARNEMEE - URERHES
REENEEESE - (B)
BHMEEBRNTE (B)

B EEREIERIAT IAE

- REABRKREESRE: BER
WERKRI2EARNATEEEDN
BHOEHEWEREEESE
Mo &

- BEGEHAEHREESR:
KEeERTANERFERAMR
BARENENSHFELNTEAY
EEEE -

AEBENAEREEFERNASR
EFEERN BT ERKRFIAME
WHERNERER - ZEFRE
ENEHEEBRERENAKE
B EEERERETER - YR
BEGSABENRRTETAE R
i 4 s B2 R TRRI Y B B AR
ARSI TREG

HRMEREMERT A AEER
REER12ZEARBEEEFEDN
SHERABRER RIFSMIA
BERRER B 756 ERER C RS
meEERT  BIREFSIZR
HERBEFENBEHAEEBHED
SHAE -

(i) Impairment of assets and credit losses (continued)

(ii) Credit losses from trade and other receivables,

other financial assets carried at amortised cost and
lease receivables. (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)
ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected

to result from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date; and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to

result from all possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which the ECL model
applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and lease
receivables are always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets are
estimated based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions at the reporting
date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instrument since initial recognition, in which
case the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs.

APRSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

95



96

RE VISR ME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(BRIEZSEER - TRIGUEETR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 FAEMBBRRNGHERREXRS
MBERER 2

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

() EENEERBERE#E)

(i) R AR AN b UK - LU S L
AARNEHMEE - URBEWHES
RELNEEEE - (B)
EERRAERZEIE
EFEENRERRSRTANE
SRR ETBERME  ARERK
WEAMENESR T RENRER SR
VAR RN REBRETLER -
FEAETA AR - AEER /MR
ATIER BIBETEOEMF O
ERATAABER BN HEB AL
BHEAEYR  ZAETEEAR
B SRER Pl an 3R K o (I RFFH)
FERTY: A (NEREEASR
BENLTR - AEEEERBHEAX
MBERALBENME A BHNEIE
REASHBENTEEMEEER
% E AR B AL B AT IE 1

{é‘é °
[=RAAnY

BESHMTENED  HEERR
R BEE LN TG IR E R ZE%E
FARE BEEHTT o LA EEHTT
AN eRTAREXEEER
AT D48 - a0z B AR AE AN
EERBTR

BHEEBRES RS AER
B URBREVAERARESHMTA

EERBRNEL BHEEBHES
BENTAZBHERD PRSI

BRmEER AEEBBEIRE
BERFHMBEMEENKE S
BETHERAE  TREREEN
IEREETTHER

(i) Impairment of assets and credit losses (continued)

(ii) Credit losses from trade and other receivables,

other financial assets carried at amortised cost and
lease receivables. (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at the
reporting date with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment, the Group
considers that a default event occurs when (i) the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group to actions
such as realising security (if any is held); or (i) the
financial asset is 90 days past due. The Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss. The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.
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(i) Impairment of assets and credit losses (continued)
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(ii) Credit losses from trade and other receivables,
other financial assets carried at amortised cost and
lease receivables. (continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset or lease
receivable is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery.
This is generally the case when the Group determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.

(j) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average cost formula and comprises all costs of purchase,
costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised
as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs.
The amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which
the reversal occurs.
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(k) Trade and other receivables
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A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage of
time is required before payment of that consideration is
due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount
is presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses (see note

2(i)ii)).

() Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair
value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense is recognised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note 2(u)).

(m)Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Trade and other payables are subsequently stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

(n) Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue (see note 2(s)). A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable
would also be recognised (see note 2(k)).

For a single contract with the customer, a net contract
liability is presented. For multiple contracts, contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net
basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest accrued
under the effective interest method (see note 2(u)).
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL
in accordance with the policy in note 2(i)(ii).

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

The contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are charged as an expense in the year as the
related services are provided by employees.

The Group's net obligation under the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance in respect of long service
payments on cessation of employment under certain
circumstances is the estimated discounted amount of
future benefit that employees have earned in return for
their services in the current and prior periods. The
obligation is calculated annually using the projected
unit credit method, taking into account accrued
benefits related to the Group’s Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) contributions that
can be used to offset pre-transition long service
payments.
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(p) Employee benefits (continued)
(ii) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at the grant date taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled to
the options, the total estimated fair value of the options
is spread over the vesting period, taking into account
the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment to
the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On the vesting date,
the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of share options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the
Company'’s shares. The equity amount is recognised in
the capital reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium account)
or the option expires (when it is released directly to
retained profits).
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and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of
tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future
taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from
the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.
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The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
2(f), the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
using the tax rates that would apply on sale of those assets
at their carrying value at the reporting date unless the
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the property over time,
rather than through sale. In all other cases, the amount of
deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available.
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(q) FRB % (&) (q) Income tax (continued)
EMEEHRBEAARREZHEE D Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
FFIR - AN THEE o & EFHELER movements therein, are presented separately from each
BHEERSEARASIAEEBBETE other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
TS B IEEEREE HH%RIE against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
BE WAFEUTHEERENE against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group
T AR LA BI85 & HA A0 JEL?FRIE has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
afE: against current tax liabilities and the following additional

conditions are met:

- BEHBEAEEHRAR: AQASNAK - in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
SEFEIRFEEELE - AR Company or the Group intends either to settle on a net
SHRZEENGEEZEE X basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously; or

- BEEMEEEHEE: GLEEH — in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they

BENAEER -NBEEEARATH relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation

P —IERURE PTIS T ARE authority on either:

- E—MHEE =k - the same taxable entity; or

- THEMNEHRER - ST — different taxable entities, which, in each future
EERREBEEAARBEREL period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
MEEETELENARERL liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
MIBEER LA B ERE A - recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
BFHAREEREHNBIEBEEE and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
MEEZERIBEE AR realise and settle simultaneously.

BRZEENGEEZEE -
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(r) Provisions and contingent liabilities
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Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a
provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, a
separate asset is recognised for any expected
reimbursement that would be virtually certain. The amount
recognised for the reimbursement is limited to the carrying
amount of the provision.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

(s) Revenue and other income

2 REMBERRHERERREXS
ABRER (&)

(s) WA R E bz

AEBBEELR XK A BERET
HEEY RERGAREEESE
E AR AR A A P T E A O U R B AR
RN

ERMmEIRBOENREEBRREP K
EAHABREREER BRAKHE
BHARUBNKESEERKA
TEERFE =T HEGIE - KATE
RIRERKEMEER - WEHRE
B SiENR

S ES S PN STl T
REBERIIMT

() HERMERMHBAEE TER
BB TR o WA MERER
BEFM -

(i) KEMEMREHE S WAEHREDR
PrREM A ASEERm P
R EMERMELEEFFRIMR
BRfE R E B EMSH A B Rl
BRON o RS TS 10 o PO B RO BB
EEHEBRRETERARKEEF
R ABBANEX D - BFBURR
HE BN R Ay ] B A & SR H AR
M SFH EAER YA -

(i) BB B T PR R R

(iv) At WA AR & B A IR 2
FER.

(v) BRAGEITEE NEE S WD
TR 68 B X B 17 5% 478 B O BT 75 16
B AKRERSESSMHRRK
WS B il BY F SR FE R o PR SR 47
AEBECDEERXHOME - 8ERH
XEENHEAZARBERRPRE
RN -

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the sale of goods, the provision of services or the use
by others of the Group's assets under leases in the ordinary
course of the Group's business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has the
right to use the asset, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be
entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Revenue arising from the sale of food and beverages is
recognised in profit or loss at the point of sale to
customers. Revenue is after deduction of any sale
discounts.

(i) Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.

(iii) Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

(iv) Other income is recognised in profit or loss on an
accrual basis.

(v) Government grants are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position initially when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and that
the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss on a
systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred.
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2 BEOMEREMNENERREKXT 2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
HBRER &) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

(t) Translation of foreign currencies

(t) SN ]E

106

ARBIREEBKEEBOKE LR
MINEEEBHRER METBEAM
REXBOKBARNINEEEAA
ARY - REBWZ25EE /B -

FARANINER FIER 5 B OINEE =X
BE - UIINERBEUNEREEERR
BAER B ERRNINEERLE -
PE R ZR IR R R

MESERAGENIINEIEREE
HEERERRHAMINEERKE -
X5 BB /AR R R HRERZF I
EMEESBENBEH - UINERE
I3 AR REETIRMIFEREEER
RERFEAABEE BNINEER
B -

BARIMEENEAZER S BAMIH
BEXMENEXREREE - B5
ALK IR B RIS AR INE
EXMESER MELANELEZR
EHEMEEMEEDERER  LEE
BT WELFEEIFRG

ERARETBRIGEMELNE
mif EZREBENRFELEZR
CHESEHN OB RRE -

The functional currency of the Company and subsidiaries
which operate in Hong Kong is Hong Kong dollars while
that for subsidiaries which operate in Mainland China is
Renminbi. The presentation currency of the Group is Hong
Kong dollars.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the
Company initially recognises such non-monetary assets or
liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was measured.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the transactions. Statement of financial position
items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of operations outside Hong Kong, the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences relating to
that operation is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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2 BAMERENENERREKAXET 2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

HBEER (2 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)
(W) BERHA (u) Borrowing costs
REBRHEBEBENRERCEERER Borrowing costs that are not capitalised to qualifying assets
EEHMSE - are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
(v) BB (v) Related parties
(1) BT AL - BIZATHZAT (1) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
B3T3 AN R B O RRESE T related to the Group if that person:
() HARKEE TSI RS (i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(il HREBEREALE : K (i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(i) R AL B AL B QAR (iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
BEBAE o the Group or the Group’s parent.
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2 FAEMBBRRNGHERREXRS
MBERER 2

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

(v) BT ()

Q) A TIGRHNEBNEARER
AR

() %EREASERBR —S£H
(ANZBRFE - WEARMEFR
P B8 X B {5 ALt FET A A EE) o

(i) " REBES ERNBER

RIRABOE (KR —ERFB
EEETRE QNS A
KABDE) o

% -

vy " RERBRFE=-TERNGZ
X ME—EBEF=TE
BREE AT -

v) ZERBERAKERIER/AE
EREMINERNERNERR
MR AOBERR RS -

(vi) ZERXE L% )HERMR
JEA TGS EZES] o

(vil) L3t 26 (1)) B R P aR E A L8
ZERBAEATENXRZE
B(IZERSAR) WERE
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(viil) 7% T B8 o H AT B & B 0 (R (]
EPNSIORN SIS JERSTN
AR E IR A B R -

—REANIREEEEREERS
VARFEZBEAXIZBEAZEDN
KEK R °

(v) Related parties (continued)
(2) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

() The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (1).

(vii)A person identified in (1)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(vii)The entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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2 BAMERENENERREKAXET 2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

ABEER ()

(w) 7 BP R &
AEEEFEEEABEHIEAN
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HEHMBEERPEE -

BEREZMKE DB EFT AGE
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AEET -

3 WEW M TR R

82%kiR

RIERME2 P8 2 AR B &5 BRE -
EEANAKEHMENERBRZEE
RABEZREEFDLHE - S REXR-
fhaF RAERRRREEE LR MRS
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BENGE
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BRHEFHER ZERTR YA ERERT 2
HREAER(HEBETREEZHM)
HMERT 2 B & B 1R s B AR (fi
BRETZEEHNRARER) -

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued)

(w) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products or
provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY

SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 2, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.
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3 MEEHAENGHTARERMGM 3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY

RBRE2) SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)
FE FH & 5T IBUSR 1O 8 48 )l Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
BEYZERIELERIE Deferred taxation on investment properties

REERBAAEBERAFENREY
EFEANRERE  EEBR T AKE
MREMEAS  XBEHERRR A%
BRHAREMENBAERAL IS ERE
By [ )5 FE 1% B W) 3% PIT BT O 22 P AR B M 8 o
At EREREVENELEHIAR &
ERR ERAABERAGENREY
¥REeBEEAHERRERENRRSR
B R - AR REVMENIABEED
FETKA - R ANKER A R T RET
PiIA -

BB RERER
EREEEUR MM - HENREN
B

EREEEREMYE ez MREBEK
AW EREFTENRE (NEF) 55 - FE7E
EEERTRER - NEBEFHE M HE
MR - BRIEERE - (NERELETH
EFEEEEENSHITR  QBEN
ARESRERIHREENREERE
EEREENBRLT @ JRESERER
BEENFERRM G RIR SR
A ¢ ()Ml ET AT MK [ £ B s TR AR
MEEARBEMBAE BRREAE
RIFMEEITRE - ZEAGHERNEE
(BREREEE) WAIKRESEE - A%
BT ZEEMBNRSEEE TN AN
Cef  BEREFNEZAEM—HNS
REERKBHAREENSEK  BRIZEED
EAHBAREENRNREELETAMRE
ERRE SR - B RRAMMGEET - 2R
SRIBAFOIFTRRFWABRE - A5
SHANCSEELEATE

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the Directors have reviewed the Group's investment
property portfolios and concluded that the Group's investment
properties are not held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties over time.
Therefore, in determining the deferred taxation on investment
properties, the Directors have determined that the presumption
that the carrying amounts of investment properties measured
using the fair value model are recovered entirely through sale
is not rebutted. The Group has not recognised any deferred
tax on changes in fair value of investment properties as the
amount is immaterial.

Sources of estimation uncertainty

Impairment of right-of-use assets and other property,
plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets and other property, plant and equipment
are stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. In determining whether an asset is
impaired, the Group has to exercise judgement and make
estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has
occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset value; (2)
whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by
the recoverable amount, in the case of value in use, the net
present value of future cash flows which are estimated based
upon the continued use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate
key assumptions and inputs to be applied in estimating the
recoverable amounts including cash flow projections and an
appropriate discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset (including right-
of-use assets), the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the assets belongs, including
allocation of corporate assets when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be established, otherwise
recoverable amount is determined at the smallest group of
cash-generating units, for which the relevant corporate assets
have been allocated. Changing the assumptions and estimates,
including the discount rate or the revenue growth rates in the
cash flow projections, could materially affect the recoverable
amounts.
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4 WARSBERE
(a) A

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a) Revenue

AEENIZEHERCEREENY
ERE - WABEETEERMAR
mOEEBEEMES KA TEEE
ENSEMEER - b EHRAERZE
FEHTH0 o WARDITIAT

The principal activities of the Group are operation of fast
food restaurants and property investments. Revenue
represents the sales value of food and beverages sold to
customers and rental income and excludes value added tax
or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts. An analysis of revenue is as follows:

KB RRNMMmEE Sale of food and beverages at a point in time 3,135,401 3,023,549
ESikn Property rental 1,546 603
3,136,947 3,024,152

BERASBETEXHNEMERED
LI

(b) 7 BB &

AEEZEBMED S (AEEERET
Rt ERE) REERY  WIRRIbE
REEDEMEDE - AEED HEE
TUTHERS D BEE2HRTA
BEARBRESETREEZAERAR
BEPMEEH(AEEETERSE
RRBFE)WTA - - AEERE
R R AERCA T & 5 BB 1T & B
AHEMEEDE -

- BRAEE ERAIBETERLE

- FERBERE: SESBETER
MR SRR

HEBAMMEENENEEZRA
REWMFEHE YEBEERRER-

Further details regarding the Group’s principal activities are
disclosed below:

(b) Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by two divisions, namely
Hong Kong restaurants and Mainland China restaurants,
which are organised by geographical location. In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has identified the
following two reportable segments. No operating segments
have been aggregated to form the following reportable
segments.

- Hong Kong restaurants: this segment operates
restaurants in Hong Kong.

— Mainland China restaurants: this segment operates
restaurants in Mainland China.

Other segments generate profits mainly from leasing of
investment properties and include corporate expenses.
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4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i) Segment results

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s most senior executive management monitors
the results of each reportable segment on the following
bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to revenue generated by those
segments and expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation of assets
attributable to those segments.

Performance is measured based on segment profit
before taxation. Items not specifically attributable to
individual segments are not allocated to the reportable
segments.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
segment profit, management is provided with segment
information concerning revenue (including inter-
segment revenue) and cost of sales (including food cost,
labour cost, rent and rates and depreciation charged on
other property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets). The inter-segment transactions were conducted
on normal commercial terms and were priced with
reference to prevailing market prices and in the ordinary
course of business.

Segment assets information is not reported to or used
by the Group’s most senior executive management.
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4 WARSBERE &) 4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) D E R E (£&) (b) Segment reporting (continued)

() PEpEEE (&) (i) Segment results (continued)
REE_T_NER-_T_=F= Information regarding the Group's reportable segments
R=+—RIERFEERD B KT as provided to the Group’s most senior executive
EOHRBANEE RS RITHRE management for the purposes of resource allocation
HEAEBRBEBAEERSE D IH and assessment of segment performance for the years
BRI T © ended 31 March 2024 and 2023 is set out below.

Hong Kong Mainland China Other

restaurants IEENENS segments Total

=F —T-NF —T-=fF —F-NF —F-=
2023 2024 2023 2024
T T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

RENEHEFHE  Revenue from external

YA customers 2,951,897 2,873,125 183504 150,424 1,546 603 3,136,947 3,024,152
REEMAEE  Inter-segment revenue

O - - - - 348 348 348 348
HESHMBA  Reportable segment revenue 2,951,897 2,873,125 183,504 150,424 1,894 951 3,137,295 3,024,500

{EDWHER,  Reportable segment profit/

(B518) (loss) 98,784 106,112 (6,554)  (13,255) 6,549 4,280 98,779 97,137
FI2WA Interest income 28,086 14,643 25 68 2 46 28,113 14,757
FISER Interest expenses (30,748)  (29,183) (2,618) (2,515) - - (33366)  (31,698)
wE Depreciation (475,879)  (454,290)  (23,655)  (23,449) (919) (922)  (500,453)  (478,661)
Hiah% - Impairment losses on other

HEME property, plant and

EO)EREL equipment (7,680)  (11,024) (3,445) (3,009) = - (11,125 (14,033)

FAEEEN  Impairment losses on
REBE right-of-use assets (13913) (20604  (75%)  (59%) - - (21509)  (26,600)

KIREEBEBRAE FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED 1 1 3
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4 WARSZEERE (&) 4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) D EPERE (&) (b) Segment reporting (continued)
(i) 3R&E 2 SRR EE R (ii) Reconciliations of reportable segment profit

7 A Profit
BRI 3R S 9 2B A Reportable segment profit before
taxation 98,779 97,137

HEMEMEESE Valuation losses on investment properties (1,020) (4,840)
H % - EEEMREN Impairment losses on other property,

JEETR plant and equipment (11,125) (14,033)
FREEERREERE Impairment losses on right-of-use assets (21,509) (26,600)
EREBRT A& F Consolidated profit before taxation 65,125 51,664
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4 WARSEEE &)
(b) 7 EBERE (&)

(iii) #bIBE R
TRINROAKERBINEBEFH
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BE(EEFRDEE]) FME
HWEE R o B AEEREHRR
B EmAEE D - MBRERE
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7 MBREE BHEFRRBEE
BT AR IR E A DAL 2R &8
HEE D o

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(iii) Geographic information

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from
external customers and (i) the Group’s investment
properties, other property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and goodwill (“specified non-current
assets”). The geographical location of customers is
based on the location at which the services were
provided or the goods delivered. The geographical
location of the specified non-current assets is based on
the physical location of the assets in the case of
investment properties, other property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets, and the location of
the operation to which they are allocated in the case of
goodwill.

KB IR HIBA

Revenue from

EEFEMBEE
Specified
non-current assets
—EomE T =F
2024 2023
¥ ¥
$'000 $'000

external customers
—ZE 4

—E-=F
2023

Fx

$'000

2024
T
$'000

&7 (5Ef) Hong Kong (place of domicile) 2,953,910 2,873,282 1,270,333 1,309,064
P B (A 3, Mainland China 183,037 150,870 120,075 128,481
3,136,947 3,024,152 1,390,408 1,437,545

(iVVEEERF (iv) Major customer

RAEFE  NEBHERATR
BBRAZEI0%HNES -

There is no customer which contributed over 10% of
the total revenue of the Group for both years.
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5 Httg AfIk B8 5 OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET GAIN

HAp A Other revenue
ST PN Interest income 28,113 14,757
BB (B ) Government grants (note) 1,416 17,619
29,529 32,376
Hitb Wz 558 Other net gain
EEEMYIZE  HBEAEREN Net loss on disposal of other property, plant
BRI and equipment (7,704) (4,819)
P& H 518 F 58 Net foreign exchange loss (1,021) (2,062)
BREEKABEESR Electric and gas range incentives 5,093 5,412
&S MBS om Profit on sale of redemption gifts 1,035 580
HEBIEWRE Gain on lease modifications 10,290 7,238
Hits Others 5,183 2,789
12,876 9,138
42,405 41,514
Wi BE—E-——&E-A=+—RALEE %% Note: For the year ended 31 March 2023, the amount mainly represented
WY ESERERAATRE ((BE5E ) T subsidies approved by the Finance Committee of the Legislative Council
CHGE S e A ISR Y% R AR I of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“The HKSAR") for
R DA%?%%E?AE#%%E’%%I%&E@ Food Licence Holders Subsidy Scheme to cope with the operating
IR A o pressure caused by the novel coronavirus epidemic.
6 BIRBRF 6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
BBATRFIE NG Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

(a) B (a) Finance costs
HEBENEER Interest expense on lease liabilities 33,312 31,698

(B 16(b)) (note 16(b))
IRITERFEER Interest expense on bank borrowings 54 -

(P =E 16(b)) (note 16(b))

33,366 31,698
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6 FRIRAIAT (&)

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

(b) HAhEE (b) Other items
FERA (MEEG)) Cost of inventories (note (i) 772,510 789,047
nEER Depreciation charge
—H b - WRERMRME — Other property, plant and equipment 93,733 89,122
- FREEE - Right-of-use assets 406,720 389,539
ZEMBE Auditor's remuneration
— ZHR — Audit services 1,930 3,553
— RIS AR TS — Tax services 65 179
- B AR — Other services - 28
HEHEERENEA Expense relating to short-term leases 18,971 14,679
THIAHEBBEASNAIZEE Variable lease payments not included
(D¢ in the measurement of lease liabilities 5,733 6,469
BEMERBNZEH Building management fee and air
conditioning 86,562 83,517
FBE  KENERE Electricity, water and gas 180,770 175,730
Y& A Logistic expense 72,011 68,880
HIERRES Repair and maintenance 46,272 45,144
BRE Sanitation 49,569 50,349
HEFMONEZARRERNNER Cost of subsequent replacement of
cutlery and utensils 10,804 11,058
vk Directors’ fee 1,249 1,440
e TEMEMERN () Salaries, wages and other benefits (note (ii)) 1,047,731 971,148
REHEFGRIRET B Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plan 50,471 48,585
s A E UARMD AER Equity-settled share-based payment
expenses 2,246 760
HibE A Other expenses 164,330 150,225
3,011,677 2,899,452
R - Representing:
HEMKK Cost of sales 2,866,353 2,767,394
1TERE A Administrative expenses 145,324 132,058
3,011,677 2,899,452

MIREG) - FERARIERMAMBEAMA -

Note (i): The cost of inventories represents food and packaging costs.

W) : WEBENKREARRERF (AR
B Rt EAEHE AT T (2T ==
£ 1 24,000,0007T) °

Note (ii): The item was net of employment support scheme subsidies from the
Government of The HKSAR (“The HKSAR Government”) of nil (2023:
$24,000,000).

KIREEBEBRAE FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED 1 1 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(BRIEZSEER - TRIGUEETR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

7 RERRRMTHMRER 7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(a) G ABBEFRNBES (a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss represents:

AHBIE-BFRBANEHER Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax
REE AR Provision for the year 11,104 6,588
AEFEEE BT Over-provision in respect of prior years (44) (60)
BRI (H5E21(b)) Deferred tax (note 21(b))
EREENELMED Origination and reversal of temporary
differences 3,408 256
14,468 6,784
—E-= /T -NEENEERE The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2023/2024 is
T o 48 2430 AN 4E Y 1 S PR TR 5 R calculated at 16.5% (2022/2023: 16.5%) of the estimated
BA165% (- B ——/—F = =4 : assessable profits for the year, except for one subsidiary of
16.5%) B E=H & - A= E ) — the Group which is a qualifying corporation under the two-
B 2 ) 75 5 AR ) 19 B o 0 U T R ek
FEERSM
RUMBARTES - EIREFGY For this subsidiary, the first $2.0 million of assessable
2008 ST R & 58.25% + i T B e profits are taxed at 8.25% and the remaining assessable
SRS BRI 5 16.5% o RIEFER profits are taxed at 16.5%. The provision for Hong Kong
WiEs  AHBEAT —BE—— /—FT— Profits Tax for this subsidiary was calculated at the same
=EBBFIGPIRBABEESE - basis in 2022/2023.
MR AEERE N EEE - — The Group’s Mainland China operations sustained a loss
NMEM_—E - =S8 ERKER for taxation purpose for 2024 and 2023, Therefore no
o REEVER BN EAR provision has been made for People’s Republic of China (the
AN (B ) fHh % prERiotig "PRC") Enterprise Income Tax for both years.
G o



RE B RS R R M A
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(BRIESEERR - TR ABESIR )

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

7 RARSERMTHMERN 2 7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(b) FiIE X i BEE & 51 A 328 AR R 5T (b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting
HERHER profit at applicable tax rates:

k7RI Vs A1) Profit before taxation 65,125 51,664

BE165% (B =% :16.5%) Taxeffectat 16.5% (2023: 16.5%)

GG Z 10,746 8,525
A% A R g 1B B Tax effect of two-tied tax rate (165) (165)
ER—FlEERQSENHEBAT  Effect of different tax rate of

FRTRBENTZE subsidiaries operating in

another tax jurisdiction (2,155) (1,509)
AR H B & Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 5,028 5,866
BAAHRBANTHIERZE Tax effect of non-taxable income (5,571) (9,699)
REAMEREROTIBEER Tax effect of unused tax losses

HIEE not recognised 6,595 3,792

AERNEMEREZENHBETE  Tax effect of other temporary differences

not recognised 34 34
NEFEEERBT Over-provision in respect of prior years (44) (60)
HEY Tax expense 14,468 6,784

KIREEBEBRAE FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED 1 1 9
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(BRIEZSEER - TRIGUEETR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

8 EFEl& 8 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS
BRI BB CR RHEHI ) 55 383(1) & K& 55 2 &0 Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of
(AT (WERESENZEZER) RBODF M E the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
EET - Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of

Directors) Regulation are as follows:

& VARR AR 4% RIRGHE
EXZ0E RhEDNE BT BRI R

Salaries
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits Discretionary ~ Share-based scheme
fee in kind bonus payments  contributions
(B 3 )
(Note (i)
T
$'000
HITES Executive Directors
ERGEE Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 170 6,526 507 = = 7,203
EEFRSE Mr Lo Fai Shing Francis 150 2,880 507 684 18 4,239
ZER/MA Ms Peggy Lee 150 2,651 253 198 18 3,270
BT Independent
BE Non-executive
Directors
PRECE S Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin 190 = = = = 190
SIS L Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 180 = = = = 180
FREEL Dr Peter Wan Kam To 240 - - - - 240
Blemit Mr Yip Cheuk Tak 169 - - - - 169

1,249 12,057 1,267 882 36 15,491
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RE B RS R R M A
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(BRIESEERR - TR ABESIR )

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

8 EEM& & 8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

& 2R SABER 2 RIRGHE
BEHe  REDNR BT BERAXT R

NEIETES
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits Discretionary ~ Share-based scheme
fee in kind bonus payments contributions
(PHEE (1))
(Note (i)
T T
$'000 $'000
HITES Executive Directors
BREGLE Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 170 6,528 648 - - 7,346
BIBASE Mr Lo Fai Shing Francis 150 2,532 647 266 18 3,613
3N | Ms Peggy Lee 150 2,512 324 78 18 3,082
e UN ] Ms Mak Yee Mei
(B &EGi) (note (ii)) 40 975 - - 6 1,021

By BT Independent
EE Non-executive
Directors

REREE Mr Ng Chi Keung

(P Gil)) (note (iii)) 180 - - - _ 180
BREFRE Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin 190 - - - - 190
HEEEL Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 170 - - - - 170
FEREEL Dr Peter Wan Kam To 240 - - - - 240
ES eSS Mr Yip Cheuk Tak 150 - - - - 150

1,440 12,547 1,619 344 42 15,992

KIREEBEBRAE FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED 1 2 1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(BRIEZSEER - TRIGUEETR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

8 EFMe»)

BREG) :

B (i)

B Giii) -

AR RER S N B FRIBRBEARA
H Rt AR B TR L E R BAEN
HEHEE - FELiR O PR EERRIEM
FE2(p)) PPN BRI LA (D BERENZ 51
AEEESHEKAE  MREZBRR - &
BREELRERNERR TANK TTE
VATE SR [Z RO FERT OB ZE -

BELEEMN SN FE (BRERTHED
TERFMBB)HARNETERETE
ARt 8] — & AHFE20 -

BEENER T = —F+ AANAFER
NRITES -

REREE  KAARBILIFNTEER
To=F=ANBEH-

9 BEM&AL
ERUMESEOALT =R (ZF=

=FZREE BN HBEE

PHsE8 e BB (Z T =4 : Wfir)
ATHB S @FEMT

8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Note (i):

Note (ii):

Note (iii):

Share-based payments represent the estimated value of share options
granted to the Directors under the Company’s share option schemes.
The value of these share options is measured according to the
Group's accounting policies for share-based payment transactions as
set out in note 2(p)(ii) and, in accordance with that policy, includes
adjustments to reverse amounts accrued in previous years where
grants of equity instruments are forfeited prior to vesting.

Details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms and
number of options granted, are disclosed under the paragraph “Share
Option Schemes” in the Report of the Directors and note 20.

Ms Mak Yee Mei resigned as Executive Director of the Company on 6
July 2022.

Mr Ng Chi Keung, an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company, passed away on 8 March 2023.

9 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Out of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three
individuals (2023: three individuals) are Directors whose
emoluments are disclosed in note 8. The aggregate of the
emoluments in respect of the other two individuals (2023: two
individuals) are as follows:

FeMEMHE Salaries and other emoluments 4,165 3,179
LARRAD B AR Share-based payments 281 126
RIRETBIHEK Retirement scheme contributions 36 36

4,482 3,341




RE B RS R R M A
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(BRIESEERR - TR ABESIR )

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

9 EEMeAL )

M (ZZ =% : M) kS ALH
MEEATHBER :

9 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
(continued)

The emolument of two individuals (2023: two individuals) with
the highest emoluments are within the following band:

—ZT N4

2024

N
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
$1,500,001-$2,000,000 1 2
$2,500,001-$3,000,000 1 _
2 2

105KE2R
(a) FREARZEF|
EREARBNBIZBAN AL RERS
fi% 3 & 15 3% 750,657,000 T ( — & =
= 4F : 44,880,0007T) * VA K E BB
HkE 19 80129,553,000f (T ==
£ : 129,553,0000%) 5+ &

(b) B EERR
AESREERFET RBEHEARQ R
WARITEBR S BEITE - IR Z
EERETEERREE-_S-_NOF
—A=+t—BM-_ZT-_=F=ZA=+
—BIEFEERENRTEABRA
AR FIITHE -

10 EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company of $50,657,000 (2023: $44,880,000) and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of
129,553,000 shares (2023: 129,553,000 shares) in issue
during the year.

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The computation of diluted earnings per share did not
assume the exercise of the Company’s outstanding share
options as the exercise prices of the share options were
higher than the average market price of the Company’s
shares during the period when the share options were
outstanding for both years ended 31 March 2024 and
2023.

APRSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(BRIEZSEER - TRIGUEETR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

MEBIHE HttE - BEMEBHE 11 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER PROPERTY,

REELMH PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD LAND
(a) (a)
e %y HinEE U REME
Leasehold
land and Leasehold Other Investment
buildings improvements assets propemes
T Fr
$'000
RARMEE : Cost or valuation:

RZE--FWMA—H At 1 April 2022 99,070 378,242 783,696 1,261,008 28,100 1,289,108
[E 3 /% Exchange adjustments (522) (3,301) (3,284) (7,107) - (7,107)
wE Additions - 36,637 68,034 104,671 - 104,671
HE Disposals - (26,649) (41,706) (68,355) - (68,355)
EEBE (HE110) Loss on revaluation (note 11(b)) - - - - (4,840) (4,840)
WZZE-=F=A=+—H At31March 2023 98,548 384,929 806,740 1,290,217 23,260 1,313,477
RE&: Representing:

B Cost 98,548 384,929 806,740 1,290,217 - 1,290,217
HE——T-=fF Valuation-2023 - - - - 23,260 23,260
98,548 384,929 806,740 1,290,217 23,260 1,313,477
RHENRE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment:

R-ZZ-—FMAE—H At 1 April 2022 64,106 283,978 527,727 875,811 - 875,811
ERAE Exchange adjustments (506) (2,251) (1,886) (4,643) - (4,643)
REHR Charge for the year 2,160 34,434 52,528 89,122 - 89,122
AR (1) Impairment losses (note 11(d)) 242 4,944 8,847 14,033 - 14,033
HERER Written back on disposals - (26,058) (37,447) (63,505) - (63,505)
RZZE-=F=F=+—F At31March 2023 66,002 295,047 549,769 910,818 - 910,818
REFERLAEE: Net book value or fair value:

RZZEZ=F=FA=+—H Netbook value at

HEREFE 31 March 2023 32,546 89,882 256,971 379,399 - 379,399

R-ZE-=%#=F=+—H Fairvalue at 31 March 2023
MAREE - - - - 23,260 23,260
32,546 89,882 256,971 379,399 23,260 402,659
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(BRIESFRH - BRIFLBEIIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

MEBIHE HttE - BEMEBHE 11 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER PROPERTY,

RIEELH =) PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD LAND
(continued)
(a) (&) (a) (continued)

7 Hin&zE g 3 =
Leasehold
land and Leasehold Other Investment
buildings improvements assets properties
T T T
$'000
BASAE Cost or valuation:
RZZE-=FmA—AH At 1 April 2023 98,548 384,929 806,740 1,290,217 23,260 1,313,477
f& 3 % Exchange adjustments (224) (1,391) (1,405) (3,020 - (3,020)
Byl Additions - 47,395 84,067 131,462 - 131,462
& Disposals = (27,871) (45,600) (73,471) - (73,471)
SEEE (E110) Loss on revaluation (note 11(b)) = = = = (1,020) (1,020)
RZZ-WFE=F=+—H At31March 2024 98,324 403,062 843,802 1,345,188 22,240 1,367,428
CRE: Representing:
R Cost 98,324 403,062 843,802 1,345,188 - 1,345,188
HE—-T-mF Valuation-2024 - - - - 22,240 22,240
98,324 403,062 843,802 1,345,188 22,240 1,367,428
REHENRE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment:
RZZ-=FMA—H At 1 April 2023 66,002 295,047 549,769 910,818 - 910,818
E R A% Exchange adjustments 17 (1,025) (834) (2,076) - (2,076)
RER Charge for the year 2,149 36,499 55,085 93,733 = 93,733
AEBE (1) Impairment losses (note 11(d)) 249 3,600 7,276 11,125 - 11,125
HE R Written back on disposals - (25,656) (39,349) (65,005) - (65,005)
WZZEZWMEFE=F=+—H At31March 2024 68,183 308,465 571,947 948,595 - 948,595
 EESESXAAEE:  Netbookvalueorfairvalve:
RZZEZF=A=+—H Netbook value at
HEREFE 31 March 2024 30,141 94,597 271,855 396,593 - 396,593
RZZZME=F=+—H Fairvalue at 31 March 2024 - - - - 22,240 22,240
MAREE
30,141 94,597 271,855 396,593 22,240 418,833

KIREEBEBRAE FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED 1 25
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(BRIEZSEER - TRIGUEETR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

MEBIHE HttE - BEMEBHE 11 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER PROPERTY,

RS L =) PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD LAND
(continued)
(a) (&) (a) (continued)
REEMEKARKEENDTAT - The analysis of cost or valuation of the properties of the

Group is as follows:

HE T RMBEEY EEA) Leasehold land and buildings, at cost

EHEBBEANTIPEE Medium-term leasehold in Hong Kong 71,090 71,090

EREBBIINNFEEE Medium-term leasehold outside Hong Kong 27,234 27,458
98,324 98,548

BREWE RMEE) Investment properties, at valuation

EEBREIINFHEAE Medium-term leasehold outside Hong Kong 22,240 23,260
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

MBEYR - RhR - BB
RESLM &)

11 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD LAND

(continued)

(b) XM REEFE
(i) 2REERBR

AEBER RS PRIZEEE LM
ENMERABE - ZFVEER
MNERFBRELRDE 13K
AEBEAEIAREN=EIAE
BEER AEE2RUTHENE
PR BABN A BRIEENE
2 EtMEBEERAAEEFERE
PriE BRI A :

- FEMMGE: RERE B
R AEBIHERAEEXLRER
FTERHERED SN ARLH
BRE) KAELAEE-

- FERME: ERE_EBR
WAE (BIRES —EROAE
RBAE) AREEANAEH
RBWAERAEIAEBE T
ABEHABERERRTIZH
EHBAE -

- ESEBRMEE: RAEATT
BB AERTBAAEE -

PBEREMEENR T _NFEM_
T =F=-A=t—HETEH-
EfMTERBIAEMERR - P
HEBENEERARET - %A
BTN ETIHBERIEXER -
HAEM/REMENE IR
AIAEHEBNER AEEEEE
B R 8 Rl 5T iR AR T AR T
BENRRMER -

R-ZE-_NMFEM-_T-_=F=/A=
+—H AEEMRBREDEIN
FiME=RREBEELTE -

(b) Fair value measurement of properties

(i) Fairvalue hierarchy

The fair value of the Group's investment properties
measured at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis are categorised into the three-level fair
value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, “Fair value
measurement”. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance of the inputs used
in the valuation technique as follows:

— Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

— Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available.

— Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

All investment properties were revalued at 31 March
2024 and 2023 by an independent firm of surveyors
Sinoappraisal Advisory Limited, who has staff with
recognised professional qualifications and relevant
experience in the location and category of investment
properties being revalued. The Group’s management
has discussion with the surveyors on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is
performed at the end of the reporting period.

At 31 March 2024 and 2023, all of the Group's

investment properties fall into Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy as described above.

APRSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(BRIEZSEER - TRIGUEETR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

MBEEYE HthhE  EBHMEBHE 11 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER PROPERTY,

RS L =) PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD LAND
(continued)
(b)MEMN N REBESE (&) (b) Fair value measurement of properties (continued)
(i) BE=BRAAEBEFENER (i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
) 30 2 HEFE
Location of properties Valuation techniques
F BN b - P S HELEBUE
Mainland China — Commercial properties Direct comparison approach
MRFPEAHAIEEMEN R AE The fair values of investment properties located in
B EFREELSEETE &+ Mainland China are determined by using direct
BE2ELMENTE BHES comparison approach with reference to the market
AR EREAE - price of comparable properties and there is no

significant unobservable input.

iE L AR B N B3 B ) A E The movement of these investment properties in
NEVEBIT Mainland China during the year is as follows:
Fir
$'000
W-ZE-—F€mMA—Q At 1 April 2022 28,100
HEEE Valuation losses (4,840)
RZEZ=F=A=+—H At 31 March 2023 23,260
R-ZE-_=4A—H At 1 April 2023 23,260
HEBE Valuation losses (1,020)
RZEZNF=A=+—H At 31 March 2024 22,240
(o) EbEEBEERM - = - 2RE - 7 (c) Other assets include furniture, equipment, air-conditioning
B EBEREARRVAEENTINEA plant, motor vehicles, computer systems and initial

Feggm o purchases of cutlery and utensils.
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MEBIHE HttE - BEMEBHE 11 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER PROPERTY,
RESLH &) PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD LAND
(continued)

(DEAREFEAN FAEEERENREE (d)During the vyear, the Group’s management identified

HEBETIEARENGHEN  BEET
BRI EEEEFERE YHETE
wZEERAEEEAREMYE .
MR REO TR EHE BRIEME
E Hz—Z-_m&E=RA=+—H
IEFERNELEFEAREENREM
ME BENBENERESED
B2 % 821,509,000 ( =& — = F :
26,600,0007T ) &% 11,125,000 ( = =
— =% :14,033,0007T) c RIEAEE
AFEF—EEEMNATKRESE
A44,814,000 T (Z B =4 : +=F
EFEHLEE B44,091,0007T) © BRI A
SN FIERTERBEEEAREMY
¥ EEFZENTRLDSERE(Z
TEo-F:HBEEFRAREEUR
HiE HEMNRENTTREDSE
BIK) - AT EEEN G RERER
BEENAREAYE  HEBMBED
FEAEBE FRARATEERI6%(ZF
Z=F 16%) MEMBRER(EE
WA REFERNR)ETE -

it REANBREAEEEARE
i - HIR A RERNREEBFE
2 A A£21,509,0000( =& = = F ¢
26,600,000 ) #111,125,0007c ( = &
— =% :14,033,0007T) °

e R—Z-_ME=A=+—8" ' fEAXK

EBRHH BRI FTEREITERNE
SYRmEEAE721,000 (T ==
£ :821,0007T) ©

certain individual restaurants, each as a cash-generating
unit for impairment assessment purpose, which under-
performed and estimated the recoverable amounts of the
right-of-use assets and other property, plant and
equipment of these restaurants. Based on these estimates,
the carrying amount of right-of-use assets and other
property, plant and equipment was written down by
$21,509,000 (2023: $26,600,000) and $11,125,000 (2023:
$14,033,000) respectively during the year ended 31 March
2024. The aggregate recoverable amounts of 12 of these
restaurants amounted to $44,814,000 based on their value
in use (2023: 13 of these restaurants amounted to
$44,091,000). Apart from the above, the recoverable
amounts of the remaining impaired right-of-use assets and
other property, plant and equipment were minimal (2023:
the recoverable amounts of the remaining impaired right-
of-use assets and other property, plant and equipment
were minimal). The estimates of recoverable amount were
based on the value in use of these right-of-use assets and
other property, plant and equipment, determined using a
pre-tax discount rate of 16% (2023: 16%) and other key
assumptions including revenue growth rates and gross
margins.

As a result, impairment losses of right-of-use assets and
other property, plant and equipment of $21,509,000 (2023:
$26,600,000) and $11,125,000 (2023: $14,033,000) were
recognised during the year.

(e) At 31 March 2024, the net book value of buildings pledged

as security for banking guarantees granted to certain
subsidiaries of the Group amounted to $721,000 (2023:
$821,000).

APRSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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MBEEYE HthhE  EBHMEBHE 11 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER PROPERTY,

RS L =) PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD LAND
(continued)

) AEBUEEHERLRENME - & (f) The Group leases out investment properties under
LHENEAH=F(ZE_=F: 1+ operating leases. The leases initially run for three years (2023:
)  BEHEEHTIBEHERE - KN ten years). None of the leases includes contingent rentals.
SERBEIAIHRGENEEHEERR The Group's total future minimum lease payments under
R SEBE N RBEHNT - non-cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows:

—FE R Within one year 3,855 4,253
—FRERFR After one year but within two years 3,855 -
MFRERFR After two years but within five years 3,534 -

11,244 4,253
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1R2ERERE 12 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
PAFTE AR
ARH  URERE  UWEXRAE
F{EE A/ ARRH) fR A
HETH HIEEAH
HAEERER HAth s
Ownership
interests in Other
leasehold land properties machinery and
held for own leased for own equipment,
use, carried at  use, carried at carried at
depreciated depreciated depreciated
cost cost cost
T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000
B Cost:
RZZZZFMOA—H At 1 April 2022 8,098 2,342,725 16,296 2,367,119
& H AR Exchange adjustments - (11,332) 41) (11,373)
= Additions - 87,504 75 87,579
HEEIE Lease modifications - 297,832 2,890 300,722
He Disposals - (128,021) (1,180) (129,201)
WZZE-=F=A=+—H  At31March 2023 8,098 2,588,708 18,040 2,614,846
REENRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment:
RZZE-—FMNA—H At 1 April 2022 3,816 1,273,800 10,759 1,288,375
PN AR Exchange adjustments - (5,354) 41 (5,395)
REFHR Charge for the year 169 386,177 3,193 389,539
BB (T 11(d)) Impairment losses (note 11(d)) 101 26,393 106 26,600
HEREE Written back on disposals - (117,110) (1,048) (118,158)
RZZZ=F=A=+—H  At31March 2023 4,086 1,563,906 12,969 1,580,961
BRE A Net book value:
RZTZ=F=RF=+—H  At31March 2023 4,012 1,024,802 5,071 1,033,885
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12(EREEE &) 12 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)
PAFTEE R AR
ABRE)  DAIRERA  URERA
FEERH ABRH ABRHY
HETH  HIEBRN #E - EHA
HEEER Hitn4 % B
Ownership
INEES Other Plant,
leasehold land properties machinery and
held for own leased for own equipment,
use, carried at  use, carried at carried at
depreciated depreciated depreciated
cost cost cost
FT T T
$'000 $'000 $'000
B Cost:
RZZZ=FMOA—H At 1 April 2023 8,098 2,588,708 18,040 2,614,846
(ERz kS Exchange adjustments - (5,512) (19) (5,531)
M Additions - 136,562 504 137,066
HEBIE Lease modifications = 250,083 3,031 253,114
HeE Disposals = (54,706) (1,381) (56,087)
RZZE-WMFE=A=+—H  At31 March 2024 8,098 2,915,135 20,175 2,943,408
RETENRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment:
RZZE-_=FWNA—H At 1 April 2023 4,086 1,563,906 12,969 1,580,961
[ER RS Exchange adjustments - (3,105) (19) (3,124)
AREFHE Charge for the year 165 403,465 3,090 406,720
HAERE (1) Impairment losses (note 11(d)) 104 21,392 13 21,509
HE R D Written back on disposals = (32,020) (1,212) (33,232)
RZEZWF=ZRA=+—H At 31 March 2024 4,355 1,953,638 14,841 1,972,834
REFE Net book value:
R-_ZE-_WF=A=+—H At 31 March 2024 3,743 961,497 5,334 970,574
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NRERERE =)

12 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

BIEMNEEDEHFERAEEENKREFE The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by

DIEINAT -

class of underlying asset is as follows:

AT ER AR A BRAIEFE Ownership interests in leasehold land held for
BRMBEELMmEBE  own use, carried at depreciated cost
W 3,743 4,012
LAHrERL AR ABREUFAIE  Other properties leased for own use, carried
BAHAMmYZE at depreciated cost 0) 961,497 1,024,802
AT ERRARABRA#ES « Plant, machinery and equipment, carried
AR RN 2R 15 at depreciated cost (ii) 5,334 5,071
970,574 1,033,885
LAITERAABEHSVE  Ownership interests in leasehold land and
BRMHEE MRS buildings held for own use, carried at
VIR R s AR depreciated cost, with remaining lease term
HIEEHETER between 10 and 50 years
A+FZH 30,141 32,546
NARBEAERENEES Ownership interests in leasehold investment
B YRR R property, carried at fair value, with remaining
& HESEERE lease term between 10 and 50 years
TEERTFZMHE 22,240 23,260
52,381 55,806
1,022,955 1,089,691

APRSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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1N2EHESE &)
HRERTERANAERENERER
DT

12 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised
in profit or loss is as follows:

BENEEDBNEREEE
FEEM:
FEEMMBEE LB EE R

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets
by class of underlying asset:
Ownership interests in leasehold land

held for own use 165 169
HEBRMEMYIZE Other properties leased for own use 403,465 386,177
RS~ B ANER Plant, machinery and equipment 3,090 3,193
406,720 389,539
LAFTER A ABRMIFIER AR Ownership interests in leasehold land and
THE T AR HE A buildings held for own use, carried at
o AFRBEERETFE depreciated cost, with remaining lease
At+FZMHE term between 10 and 50 years 2,149 2,160
408,869 391,699

HeEaEMNEER (KFiite@) Interest expense on lease liabilities (note 6(a)) 33,312 31,698
HEHEERENER Expense relating to short-term leases 18,971 14,679
TMAHEaGEENAIEHE Variable lease payments not included

&8 in the measurement of lease liabilities 5,733 6,469

FREEENENZIEEARENAEH
HEMHENMCBAENRERH - HEMKA
B ASERRNFEAREEREE
&5 B A137,066,00070 ( — & = = 4 :
87,579,000t ) X% 130,105,000 ( =& =
=% :78,323,0007T) °

MEReRntABBMAEAGNHR O
R EEED R RHFE16(c) 18 -

Additions of right-of-use assets primarily related to the
capitalised lease payments payable under new lease
agreements. On the lease commencement, the Group
recognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of
$137,066,000 (2023: $87,579,000) and $130,105,000 (2023:
$78,323,000) respectively.

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity
analysis of lease liabilities are set out in notes 16(c) and 18
respectively.
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12ERAERE &)
(i) HEBBEAMYE

12 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

(i) Other properties leased for own use

AEBERBHEGZESEREM
MEERERRBSFENERN - ZF
HEBRBVRBRA=NAFILAE
THIRZHE -

REBEE-Z-_NF=A=+—HLHF
B AEBHEETZREE H4 B
FENEEEENHKZEMNEE KN &E
FEMEE N KGR AT #H & 5RE
ek BHEREREM10% E20%
(ZE-=F 10%£20%) & RNEK
HEMBERETE - BLENRIERE
ERAEBKLENTEERE -

EENRAEEEABLEEY
¥ - R-T-_ME=/A=+—HB ' R
BAA@MEm s HERBHEE —F
A BE—FETBEMNFNHBERN
MEBAMTFETBAADFTHEHRRBR
AWERESHAKIBELEES BB
2,568,000 L ( — & — = 4 : 630,000
JC) 2,568,000 L (ZE == : &)
}711,000c(ZE==F: Tj) °

(i) R E

AEELHEKES BREREBEHEHER
H—FE F - ETHERSEME
GREH A RER] HERREE -

The Group has obtained the right to use other properties
as its restaurants and office through lease agreements. The
leases typically run for an initial period of 3 to 5 years with
renewal options.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group leased a
number of restaurants which contain variable lease
payment terms that are based on revenue generated from
the restaurants and minimum annual lease payment terms
that are fixed. The contingent rent payments are
determined based on 10% to 20% (2023: 10% to 20%)
of the revenue over the base rents. These payment terms
are common in restaurants in Hong Kong where the Group
operates.

Part of the leased properties has been sublet by the Group.
At 31 March 2024, the total future minimum sublease
payments expected to be received under non-cancellable
subleases within one year and within a period of more than
one year but not exceeding two years and within a period
of more than two years but not exceeding five years were
$2,568,000 (2023: $630,000), $2,568,000 (2023: nil) and
$711,000 (2023: nil) respectively.

(ii) Other leases

The Group leases plant, machinery and equipment under
leases expiring from 1 to 6 years. Some leases include an
option to renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated.

APRSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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13EHE 13 GOODWILL

136

A (ROA—BRER=R=+—H)

Cost, at 1 April and 31 March 1,001 1,001

BEBHENREEHRETHNRERNR

EARKERBEE R MR

BEENE
DEEEMREELET  FBWT

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing
goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units
("CGU") identified according to the location of operation and
business segment as follows:

EE-TPEA

Restaurants — Mainland China 1,001 1,001

REeELELHIKROESELAFEREER
AEEET GEEFNEFEAFRATEERE
N BBE AEEEHNAFHERE
TEOR ©

AEEREENHERBEREEEEER
R BERMFEE - EREREBEBER
BEMEmSRROBANEEREEMNEM
BEE - IRANFTREE16%(ZF_=
F:16%) BRAFTRE  WRKRERS
ELETABENERRER

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on
value in use calculations. These calculations use cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period.

Key assumptions used for value in use calculations include
budgeted gross margin, growth rate and discount rate.
Management determined the budgeted gross margin and
growth rate based on past performance and their expectation
for market development. The discount rates of 16% (2023:
16%) used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the
relevant CGU.
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1H4ER 14 INVENTORIES

Q) REMBIRAERI TN EFEESR : (a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise:

B ME Food and beverages 46,504 50,058
SHFES - BEME R Consumables, packaging materials and
Hhz18 other sundry items 6,147 5,566
52,651 55,624
b)ERALTHNEESEINWT : (b) The analysis of the amount of inventories

recognised as an expense is as follows:

EEFEMNRESRE Carrying amount of inventories sold 772,185 788,889
FEMUR Write-down of inventories 325 158
772,510 789,047

KIREEBEBRAE FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED 1 37
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15 FE M5 AR 5k B it FE A 3R

15 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

FEWBR IR (B IR EIE2EHS) Trade debtors, net of loss allowance 20,460 9,663
H b R MR Other receivables 14,766 17,906
ENHEEMAREELRS Rental and utility deposits paid 47,806 43,901
FEURFR & 3R Lease receivables = 626
SEENEN Prepayments 19,693 17,937
102,725 90,033

B T A 575,906,000 C( — & — = £ All debtors, deposits and prepayments of the Group, apart

7,407,00070) I AFBEEZ S AEE
B FEMERER - RS MIBNFTFER TR —
FAWEHERATL - RZE - ZFK
A—H  BREZ(BENKREBEER) &5
/417,288,000 7T °

BRER 0 AT

PR AR - 1) 7 FE U SRR L At 8 M R
TR (B NREBRER) MRk
rABRRRBEAE) T -

from certain utility deposits totalling $5,906,000 (2023:
$7,407,000), are expected to be recovered or recognised as an
expense within one year. As at 1 April 2022, trade debtors, net
of loss allowance was amounted to $17,288,000.

Ageing analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
trade debtors (which are included in trade and other
receivables), based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance, is as follows:

—ZE=+H 1 to 30 days 20,130 8,737
=t—Eh+H 31 to 90 days 302 790
h+—Z=—EBN+H 91 to 180 days 25 85
—BAT—Z=AN~THH 181 to 365 days 3 51

20,460 9,663

AEEERERETHNHERS T EUR
EREFINEE - AEBTRTRAEE
BHBOBENF=TE2tTHBEMNE

The Group's sales to customers are mainly on a cash and
e-payment basis. The Group also grants credit terms of 30 to
75 days to certain customers to which the Group provides
catering services.
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16RITHERRARMARFRY 16 BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
Q) BTEZRBELNBESZEY (a) Bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents
as: comprise:

HRITER Deposits with banks 487,512 496,261
SIREIE & Restricted cash 275 3,248
RITER AR © Cash at bank and on hand 50,535 87,249
GREBRESRERMTHNIR SN Cash and cash equivalents in the
BeEEY consolidated cash flow statement 538,322 586,758
Bl =8 ARRITER Bank deposits over three months 102,661 60,000
640,983 646,758
AEBSRENESL2EEESTEA Restricted cash of the Group represents fund deposited
B R AL B B B A Rl RE R SR AT into the designated bank accounts of the operating
EE. t 54T EZHBEARERS subsidiaries in the Mainland China. Such fund is available
e E B A 1 K UG HRIE S AR to the subsidiaries when needed to manage its short-term
B AR o BRIt RSN - HSRITEE B cash commitments arising from its ordinary business
REGR S X EIRHIA o activities. Other than the specified uses, the cash

withdrawal from such bank account is restricted.
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16 RITERREEMBALER/M 2

(b) REREFHHNEEER :

EQUIVALENTS (continued)

16 BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities:
TEATEAEERESIHNAES The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
B OERSRIERSEH - kA from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
MEEZHHNEBIEES ek KA changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
SHERAEELAES REESM liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows

AREREIHESTENEE - will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated cash flow

statement as cash flows from financing activities.

FERTAR B HEBE
Dividend
payable  Lease liabilities
(Mi5E18)
(Note 18)
T
$'000
R-ZE-_—_€WA—AH At 1 April 2022 - 1,186,230
RMERSR 2B : Changes from financing cash flows:
B E Dividends paid (75,141) -
BENHEERENERILY Capital element of lease rentals paid = (413,868)
BENHERSHF SIS Interest element of lease rentals paid = (31,698)
RBR RN B R Total changes from financing cash flows (75,141) (445,566)
EHAE Exchange adjustments = (7,104)
Hip &5 Other changes:
BEEIRMEE Dividends declared 75,141 -
HeEaErNEER (Miite) Interest expense on lease liabilities (note 6(a)) = 31,698
FRFTLHEEEENEE Increase in lease liabilities from entering into
afEEm new leases during the year = 78,323
MEEIE Lease modification = 300,810
HEHE Lease disposal = (17,938)
HiEshasa Total other changes 75,141 392,893
R-E-=%=A=+—H At 31 March 2023 = 1,126,453
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16 RITERREEMBASEFR/M 2

(b) RERMEFZBNEEHIR - (&)

EQUIVALENTS (continued)

activities: (continued)

16 BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

FERT AR S RITENK HEBRE
Dividend Bank
payable borrowings  Lease liabilities
(P=E18)
(Note 18)
Tz
$'000
R=—B=-=%mA—H At 1 April 2023 - - 1,126,453
RMERSRZEE ! Changes from financing
cash flows:
B E Dividends paid (72,549) = =
FIGIRITIE R New bank borrowings raised = 4,965 =
BERRITER Repayment of bank
borrowings - (4,965) =
RITERFEER Interest expense on bank
borrowings = (54) _
BENEERENELRLD Capital element of lease
rentals paid - - (431,355)
ENAERSHFEHD Interest element of lease
rentals paid - - (33,312)
BERS RSB Total changes from financing
cash flows (72,549) (54) (464,667)
R Exchange adjustments - - (2,991)
Hi 25 Other changes:
BEEIRARKRE Dividends declared 72,549 = =
HEAEMNSBA (MiEe@)) Interest expense on lease
liabilities (note 6(a)) - - 33,312
RITIERF BB (FE6) Interest expense on bank
borrowings (note 6(a)) - 54 =
FRRIUHHEEENHEE Increase in lease liabilities
BEEMN from entering into new
leases during the year — — 130,105
HEEIE Lease modification = = 240,913
HEHE Lease disposal = = (20,944)
HEshRes Total other changes 72,549 54 383,386
R-BE-WmF=A=+—H At 31 March 2024 - = 1,042,181

RRFEBERAT

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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16BITESRESHMASEE/M ) 16 BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (continued)

(c) HEBRESRHAEZE (c) Total cash outflows for leases
BENGEEReRERNTEES SR Amounts included in the consolidated cash flow statement
B for leases comprise the following:

IR SR A Within operating cash flows 24,704 21,148
BERESMA Within financing cash flows 464,667 445,566
489,371 466,714

17 BE £ AR SR B H it BB A R 17 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

JE BRI BT B Creditors and accrued expenses 413,289 376,664
HGREE Contract liabilities 5,514 5,675
A R SRR R A Other payables and deferred income 16,004 16,239
B eZRE Rental deposits received 202 1,958
435,009 400,536
BTETHEMEMNRMELZERAS G All of the trade and other payables, apart from certain other
5,517,000 ( =& — =4 : 7,156,000 7T ) payables and deferred income totalling $5,517,000 (2023:
SN - PR AT BR SRR LAt B 5P SR TR HR A $7,156,000), are expected to be settled or recognised as
—FAEESIERBRA  HER—FA income or are repayable within one year.
BiE -
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1T7EAERRAEMEMSR 2 17 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)
JE A~ BR SRR E At FE A BB 1R IR B R B HAGT Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors, based
BREMER - MERFEHRAIRER D on the invoice date, with the following ageing analysis as of
IR the end of the reporting period:

—%Z=+H 1 to 30 days 128,020 125,045
=t+—ZN+H 31 to 90 days 421 83
ht+—=—8N+H 91 to 180 days 154 491
—BANt+—E=BTHA 181 to 365 days 32 40
—FLA Over one year 190 165
128,817 125,824
HERRNAYBBESHEELACENIZAE Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
HRAERE T T contract liabilities recognised are as follows:
REBIATHMMEREPHREEBEEEES The Group occasionally receives consideration when the
U ER B - WA TEEIE R P RE A& K customers purchase coupons from the restaurants at the time
HEMEBEHIBR TEESNAEEELSD of purchase. The respective revenue is expected to be
HARSFERR o recognised when the coupons are redeemed for future sales

by customers from restaurants or when the coupons expire.
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17 BRRMEMEMSR (2) 17 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)
EHNEENEE Movements in contract liabilities

A — B R Balance at 1 April 5,675 6,520
FRNABRTAFNELHEED Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of
WA MER S DB ERD recognising revenue during the year that
was included in the contract liabilities at
the beginning of the year (4,094) (6,179)
MEMEESEHHNENAaERD Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of
expiring of coupons (1,581) (341)
[ F P B 52 T8 R A A T 3 A Y Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of
EREERD recognising revenue for advance received
during the year (7,255) (7,244)
AFRNEITERSFMERN Increase in contract liabilities as a result of
EHRBEIL M issuance of coupons during the year 12,769 12,919
R=A=+—Ba#Es Balance at 31 March 5,514 5,675
FMEGXHEERHAIR —FRNESHER All of the contract liabilities are expected to be settled or
RWA - recognised as income within one year.
18 HE AR 18 LEASE LIABILITIES
TRENTAEENHEEBBEZRGRED The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities
HARR - of the Group's lease liabilities:

—FN Within one year 389,911 393,575
—FREMTFA After one year but within two years 275,685 303,582
MERBRERFA After two years but within five years 345,540 378,759
RFE After five years 31,045 50,537
652,270 732,878

1,042,181 1,126,453
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19 & RiR kg #1 19 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

AEEBRESCCEBERB S ENER)
WERT BREES(EEEH)NRES
EBANES  RuBESTE - BT
ZR—EREEIRAKTE  BABUNZ
AT - RIERESTE  EEFES
ZERBREREEBABNS% MEES T
EERER EEAMHEBAELRA
30,0007C (— & — =4 : 30,0007T) ° MET
EEH KBNS SRE o

AEBEFBEAIIMRERNEERRE
BHEEERLER P EHEENR
E HEBUR GBIV REE o

0 EREEMHLIRMBERORS

ARBAR-_F——FAALARA—ED
KRB —FAARNBHRNBRER
R —FAANBARRARRA
BB T —EBRESE (2=
—FREEERTE) -

R-T_—FEREAEET  EFER
RENBAFEFNEER  EF(BEIFAT
EFMELIFNITES) - AEEEMKE
REANSRBERARAXZBERE - UR
BARERD  HERTSERTI=1]
FHEEE  (REEAREBIMEA
WERAFOBRMHEHE : (R BER D
BMAAEE X B ERIME R RERMH
FAY LD T Y T 1B e (i) BR (D B © BRAR
RAEESETYREFHENBREEND
RSN — B - BRI S BN
BRETENMASENREHR - 50
BERERTHAEARBIRARR T AR
HRER o

The Group operates a the MPF Scheme under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
in Hong Kong under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution retirement scheme administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the MPF
Scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of $30,000 (2023: $30,000).
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

Employees engaged by the Group outside Hong Kong are
covered by appropriate local defined contribution retirement
schemes pursuant to the local labour rules and regulations.

20 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

On 7 September 2011, the Company adopted a share option
scheme which was expired on 6 September 2021. A new share
option scheme of the Company was approved by the
shareholders of the Company and adopted on 9 September
2021 (the “2021 Share Option Scheme"”).

Under the 2021 Share Option Scheme, Directors were
authorised, at their discretion, to invite any employee, Director
(including Non-executive Director and Independent Non-
executive Director) or officer of any member of the Group or
company to take up options to subscribe for shares in the
Company at a price which shall not be less than whichever is
the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of
offer; (i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in
the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the 5
business days immediately preceding the date of offer and (iii)
the nominal value of a share. Save as determined by the
Company’s Board of Directors and provided in the offer of the
relevant options, there is no minimum period for which an
option must be held before an option can be exercised under
the 2021 Share Option Scheme. Each option gives the holder
the right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company.

APRSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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0 EEERNLUKRNAEERMIES 20EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

(%) (continued)

@REREE 2R HGEARRGED (a) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed
T Bt FTEBREAURG 2 during the year are as follows, whereby all options
EVMRBCETEE - are settled by physical delivery of shares:

B
= EREZE = & #E
Average
Number of contractual life
Date granted options  Vesting conditions of options
RTFESHEE:
Options granted to
Directors:
-—E-ZFLAKRAE 40,000 FARZZEZ—FMOA—HZE-T_+F 6.74
— A=T—HERRS ARITE (M)
-6 July 2020 Exercisable in five tranches during the period 6.7 years
from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2027 (Note)
-—E-ZFAA+H 1,300,000 AIRZZE=—FWNA—HE-T_+F 6.6%F
= A=+—HERERS AR1TE (M)
— 10 August 2020 Exercisable in five tranches during the period 6.6 years
from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2027 (Note)
-ZE-=F+HAAA 1,340,000 AIRZZE-_WFE+ARAHE=T== 9.3%F
+ AMBASEAD =#ITEE
-5 July 2023 Exercisable in three tranches during the period 9.3 years

from 5 July 2024 to 4 July 2033
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0EEERNLUKRNASERIES 20EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

(%) (continued)

@REFERBEE 2R B IFER RGN (a) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed
Tl FEBREAURNG during the year are as follows, whereby all options
EMRTPGETEE : (8) are settled by physical delivery of shares: (continued)

fEfx e
BREZRE BEGMT T E K H
Average
Number of contractual life
Date granted options  Vesting conditions of options
RTESHWHE:
Options granted to
employees:
-—F-\F+=A+N\AH 30,000 AIR-ZE-NF+A-HE_ZE_LF 6.8%F
A :-i— BER A £Tttfﬂ§ (KsE)
— 18 December 2018 Exercisable in five tranches during the period 6.8 years
from 1 October 2019 to 30 September 2025
(Note)
-“E-TFLARA 560,000 AR-_E-_—FMA-RAE"T_+F 6.7 4
ZA=+—HEERS AR1TE (M)
-6 July 2020 Exercisable in five tranches during the period 6.7 years
from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2027 (Note)
-—ZE-TFEN\ATH 700,000 ARZZF-Z—FNA-—HBE-T=+F 6.6
= A=+—BERERS BT (M)
— 10 August 2020 Exercisable in five tranches during the period 6.6 years
from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2027 (Note)
-—E-TF+-A=+H 300,000 AR-E-—FF+-_A-HAE-ZT_LF 6.9%
T—A=THBBAS BHITE
— 30 December 2020 Exercisable in five tranches during the period 6.9 years
from 1 December 2021 to 30 November 2027
-—T-_=%+AAA 2,410,000 FIRZZE_NF+ARRE_T== 934
T AMBEBEAS =817
-5 July 2023 Exercisable in three tranches during the period 9.3 years
from 5 July 2024 to 4 July 2033
e R—ZTE_=ZF+LARH  ZEHERTT Note: These outstanding share options of 2,630,000 were cancelled and
15 B8 A% 4 2 512,630,000 3% B 15 £ 84 - replaced by 2,630,000 new grant share options on 5 July 2023.
HR ifl £ 2 9 2 2,630,000 A& 57 % T 1 i
L4 o
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(BRIEZSEER - TRIGUEETR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

0 EEERNLUKRNAEERMIES 20EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

(%) (continued)

b)EREHERMEFLTITHEE (b) The number and weighted average exercise prices
W of share options are as follows:

—ENFE —E=4F
2024 2023
INiEF i[>
IfEE BEREHE FHITEE BRESRE
Weighted Weighted
average  Number of average  Number of
exercise price options exercise price options
) At the beginning of the year $17.41 2,930,000 $18.41 4,839,000
RERNEKF Granted during the year $11.46 3,750,000 - -
RE R Lapsed during the year $17.02 (340,000) $19.94  (1,909,000)
REREH Cancelled during the year $17.37  (2,630,000) - -
RER At the end of the year $11.46 3,710,000 $17.41 2,930,000
RERAITEE Exercisable at the end of the year - - $17.59 731,000
RZZTZNF=A=+T—BKR/TEE The options outstanding at 31 March 2024 had a weighted
R Mg FHITFEER11.467T(Z average exercise price of $11.46 (2023: $17.41) and a
TT=F 0 17.4170) - mnEEFEH FIER weighted average remaining contractual life of 9.27 years
EHMHERAEI2TF(ZE =4 : 406 (2023: 4.06 years). The number of the shares that may be
F) RERABEITHRNDEBIHE B issued during the year represents 0.6% of the weighted
1T 2 N9 8E 0.6% © average number of issued shares.

(c) BRENAABENMMERS (c) Fair value of share options and assumptions
METEREMESRBOQAE The fair value of services received in return for share
B R2REUARTERENAALE options granted is measured by reference to the fair value
BitEr MEEEA=ZBABEER of share options granted. The estimate of the fair value of
ELfAE - BRENSOHMERESE the share options granted is measured based on a trinomial
EREE AR AE - ZIAA R lattice model. The contractual life of the share option is
BERPITREETER used as an input into this model. Expectations of early

exercise are incorporated into the trinomial lattice model.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(BRIESEERR - TR ABESIR )

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

20 EESEENLUKRGCEERAMNES 20EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(%) (continued)

(c) BREMNAABEMFIEREK (£) (c) Fair value of share options and assumptions (continued)

TE RITZTF R SF RZT-N\F

+ARRET + A=+H NATHET tAXBRT +TZATAH
HEERRE X THERE 0 HE P 1 R X TRERE
Options Options Options Options Options

granted at granted at granted at granted at granted at
5July 30 December 10 August 6 July 18 December
2023 2020 2020 2020 2018

BRENAABME  Fair value of share
AT ERR options and

assumptions

RETE2RMAR Fair value at
BE measurement date $1.17 $1.71 $1.65 $1.79 $2.18
(B Share price $11.30 $17.76 $17.08 $17.90 $26.40
TEE Exercise price $11.46 $17.76 $17.08 $17.90 $26.42
TEEIR IR Expected volatility 20.70% 20.82% 20.58% 20.29% 17.89%
H R HRRR Option life 9.3%F years 6.94F years 6.64F years 6.74F years 6.84F years
TE AR B s X Expected dividend yield 4.90% 4.50% 427% 4.08% 5.38%
ERR TR Risk-free interest rate 3.61% 0.49% 0.24% 0.39% 2.03%
HE-Z-_NWE=A=+—HL#F The Group recognised the total expense of $2,246,000 for
B AEEBRATHARARTH ﬁ% the year ended 31 March 2024 (2023: $760,000) in
f&#EE R 48 12,246,000 (= F relation to share options granted by the Company.

— =% :760,0007T) °

EBZE_Z_ME=A=+—HI*F During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company
EAR - ARBHMBH RITERESHH repriced and extended the vesting period for certain of its
EEBWLERTEHEBEH - TEED IR outstanding options. The exercise price was reduced from
26.427T ~ 17.907T ~ 17.08 7T M 17.76 $26.42, $17.90, $17.08, $17.76 to the then current
TREZEHERME1.30T  WEARE market price of $11.30. The incremental fair value of
B2,643000 LB ERTFHE—ZE=F $2,643,000 will be expensed over the remaining vesting
MEIREBEIHAGTRER - AQAE periods of one to three years after grant date. The
Lt AEREESFTEHEN LA Company used the inputs noted above to measure the fair
B - value of the old and new options.
DA RRBREGHET - K& Share options were granted under a service condition. The
B EMESRBERETEN AR condition has not been taken into account in the grant
BER - WA EREEEHE - KTK date fair value measurement of the services received. There
BRI M EATISE A were no market conditions associated with the share
151 - option grants.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(BRIEZSEER - TRIGUEETR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

21 FEMBRARRROMRER 21INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) &R & B FE AR R 3R FT /R B A HA R (a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of
HA financial position represents:

REEBBFESHER Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax
for the year 11,104 6,588
BT EHFIEF Provisional Profits Tax paid (4,929) (6,214)
6,175 374
AVE: Representing:
AT [B1 A B F 18 Current tax recoverable (39) (32)
FET AR BRB 18 Current tax payable 6,214 406
6,175 374
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(BRIESFRH - BRIFLBEIIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

21 RS MBIARATHRER 2

(b)EERELEREEERERS !
BHEHGE VB RAKRERNELERE
(BE)/ BENEKSIALRBE_Z
ZHMENM—E-_=F=A=+—H1t

FERBIT

21 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position and the movements during the years ended 31
March 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

HEiEEH
NEMITE
RHE
Depreciation

BISER

allowances

Revaluation in excess of
of investment related
Tax losses
T
$'000

properties
T
$'000

depreciation
T
$'000

Accelerated tax
depreciation
T

$'000

Right-of-
use assets
T
$'000

Lease
liabilities
T
$'000

RETIEBHELE Deferred tax arising
bih from:
RZZZZFWA—H At 1 April 2022
(&%) (audited) 950 - (5,304) 104 - - (4,250)
= (ME2) Adjustments (note 2(c)) - - - 20259 (20,259) _
RZE-—FNAE—H At 1 April 2022
(&) (restated) 950 - (5,304) 104 20,259  (20,259)  (4,250)
TiraBaR® (FTA)/  (Credited)/charged to
5% (M 7() the consolidated
statement of profit
or loss (note 7(a)) (950) - 1,234 (28) (2,659) 2,659 256
RZTZ=F=A=+—H At31March2023
(&) (restated) - - (4,070) 76 17,600  (17,600) (3,994)
RZTZ=FWNA—H At 1 April 2023 - - (4,070) 76 17,600  (17,600)  (3,994)
TiraBaEkT (GTA)/  (Credited)/charged to
5% (3 7() the consolidated
statement of profit
or loss (note 7(a)) - (188) 3,367 229 (806) 806 3,408
RZBZMEF At 31 March 2024
—A=t+—H - (188) (703) 305 16,794 (16,794) (586)

APRSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

21 OMBRARATHMRBMR(E  21INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
(continued)

b)ERBDELEREEEREE (&)

KA M BARRKRERR
EENIRE EFE

Net deferred tax assets recognised

in the consolidated statement of

financial position (703) (4,070)
feir e MBI R R Net deferred tax liabilities recognised
BLEBIAR BEFE

in the consolidated statement of
financial position 117 76

(586) (3,994)

() REERWIEIERIBEE -
AEBE WA BRFTHBEBEBE
176,487,000 .( — & — = £

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised:

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect
of the cumulative tax losses of $176,487,000 (2023:

152

158,069,0007T ) & & T M B 2 & &Y
Al 0 E RS = $22,794,000 T ( = F
T =4 :22,144,0007T ) FER B B H
BREMBEE BEALEEHERER
A BE_ZET-_NF=ZA=+—8"
EREEBTIAAEEEBRKEER
EESAHNBEEABEIBNRRER
A e BT R B A R M IE
&5 $8139,337,000t( — & = = & :
120,918,000 7T ) % 18 #& 3R 17 & B &t
FEBEEBHETAFEIEEN B
BIRTHE  BERBBETRER
PRER

$158,069,000) and deductible temporary differences of
$22,794,000 (2023: $22,144,000) of certain subsidiaries as
management of the Group considers that it is not probable
as at 31 March 2024 that future taxable profits against
which the losses can be utilised will be available in the
relevant tax jurisdictions. Other than tax losses of
subsidiaries in Mainland China of $139,337,000 (2023:
$120,918,000) which have an expiry period of five years
from the date of incurrence under existing PRC tax
legislation, these tax losses do not expire under current tax
legislation.
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(BRIESEERR - TR ABESIR )

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

22 i

22 PROVISIONS

MEZ TR EEKR AR

Provision for reinstatement costs for

rented premises 73,237 68,254
B BAIRBAE] s Less: Amount included under
“current liabilities” (26,601) (20,804)
BAIERBAE]NEEE Amount included under “non-current
liabilities” 46,636 47,450

HE SN EERAERE

Provision for reinstatement costs for rented premises

RIUA—H At 1 April 68,254 68,080
FHREEINER Additional provision made 7,053 2,449
2B AR Provision utilised (2,070) (2,275)
R=A=+—H At 31 March 73,237 68,254

RIFEETITINEEBHHROGER - AL
BB HA B B 15 R B R B WIS 1R R
B2 BRERARAKEARE - Bt
AEEERBEMBELENEERIERE
fhETRTH R

Under the terms of the lease agreements signed with
landlords, the Group shall remove and re-instate the rental
premises at the Group’s cost upon expiry of the relevant lease
agreements. Provision is therefore made for the best estimate
of the expected reinstatement costs to be incurred.

APRSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(BRIEZSEER - TRIGUEETR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

LREBRB&RE

23 LONG SERVICE PAYMENT OBLIGATION

RERBEET Long service payment obligation 28,850 26,177
B BmAIREBBE] 8 Less: Amount included under
“current liabilities” (608) (1,903)
SBAIERBAENEE Amount included under “non-current
liabilities” 28,242 24,274

R A—H At 1 April 26,177 21,398
FHREEINEE Additional provision made 4,922 6,346
EEAEE Provision utilised (2,249) (1,567)
R=ZA=+—8 At 31 March 28,850 26,177

Mz BERERAN - AEERTE
T€2022 FlE FAR G BDAG] (EIH L HE)
(] P ER) (MERDAR]) - BUREE
AERARREIEHMBESBREEHARE
R IMEHEMENRARE © ((RERS
1) Bz (MR ZEE]) o

REFBEFEBFOBA  EIDEAREFR
“E_RERA-HBER-ER )VEE
AESERARBESHINEEERS (BH
BREERZA - B HRZREENBSIE
= B RIS H ) RIBHEENIBIER ZATH
RHRBE () EENEE R Z BTN RAR
BegENEBERN—EANTEREES
BB IR RBFRETEE - BAT - AEH
AR BIE A BB B E LR R B R
BB EEY - BEEBRHEBRAFEHSIA—
BB S AEREIREEHELTHEZ
RO RIRBEET -

Note: The HKSAR Government gazetted the Employment and Retirement

Schemes Legislation (Offsetting Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance
2022 (the “Amendment Ordinance”) in June 2022, which abolishes the
use of the accrued benefits derived from employers’ mandatory
contributions under the MPF Scheme to offset severance payment and
long service payment (“LSP”) (the “Offsetting Arrangement”).

The Amendment Ordinance has prospective effect from 1 May 2025 (the
“Transition Date”) as announced by the HKSAR Government. In
particular, (i) employers may continue to use the accrued benefits
derived from their MPF contributions (irrespective of the contributions
made before, on or after the Transition Date, and irrespective of
mandatory or voluntary contributions) to offset employees’ pre-transition
portion of LSP; (ii) pre-transition portion of LSP of employees will be
calculated on the basis of the last month’s salary immediately preceding
the Transition Date and the years of service as at the Transition Date.
Currently, the Group does not have any separate funding arrangement
in place to meet its long service payment obligation. However, the
HKSAR Government is expected to introduce a subsidy scheme to assist
employers after the abolition.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

LRPEHERE @)
B ()

AEEREEBRERYTANEHERR
HRBERANNEZRRSHIAELENE
FHENEREEHRERESNERER -
—ENR ARERB(EESREADE
195 F 30 [MERRBFIFMERERTZ
&t AR EME B HHRED AR AR B AR 7S B RS
B AR TS A AN R B -

MREMREE S S ELEHRTBERER
[ERESHEZIENREHNB]  RAHBE
P 12 O 38 51 14 1R 3 58 1R S (R0 ] A (R K 84
BEANNRERESEL o Bt - HEkf
FERTEREFHREFIRTREN (T
BEFAERDE19REBORTNEREE
ZEHB A EER - R - BLRRHKRER
BRACEB S ERDE19%EB@BRNK
PRBERieEREN T AR ARES -

At - AREEREE=—TS=_=F=A=+
—BIEFENRBEAN  FEBARBER
BREHMELNEFSVE  RBERRE
REFHENAR  YHREBRESEHIED
TAMEFR - RHEN AR RRIBEERATE
BB ST LR FE 1958 5F93(b) R EH
RERBSESNEESHABEREZIZR
(BHEEHELDFE19REBQQEFENE
HRESESEmeRERMAN(ZZ =
ZFEARNATAR)MEBETESE -

AR T AR AR AT REGRESHEE
CHARERRTENEEELHEREILSE
BEEER>  KRREABMOETRDED
HEZE(EREOAERERTREE o R
4,922,0007C (— = = =4 : 6,346,0007T) &
REE-_ZT-_NF=A=+—HILFEA®E
RAE ©

23 LONG SERVICE PAYMENT OBLIGATION (continued)

Note: (continued)

The Group considered the accrued benefits arising from employer MPF
contributions that have been vested with the employee and which could
be used to offset the employee’s LSP benefits as a deemed contribution
by the employee towards the LSP. Historically, the Group has been
applying the practical expedient in paragraph 93(b) of HKAS 19,
“Employee Benefits” (“HKAS 19”) to account for the deemed employee
contributions as a reduction of the service cost in the period in which
the related service is rendered.

As a result of the Abolition, these contributions are no longer considered
“linked solely to the employee’s service in that period” since the
mandatory employer MPF contributions after the Transition Date can still
be used to offset the pre-transition LSP obligation. Therefore, it would
not be appropriate to view the contributions as “independent of the
number of years of service” and the practical expedient in paragraph
93(b) of HKAS 19 is no longer applicable. Instead, these deemed
contributions should be attributed to periods of service in the same
manner as the gross LSP benefit applying paragraph 93(a) of HKAS 19.

Accordingly, the Group has recognised a cumulative catch-up
adjustment in profit or loss for the service cost, interest expense and
remeasurement effect from changes in actuarial assumptions for the
year ended 31 March 2023, with corresponding adjustment to the LSP
obligation. The cumulative catch-up adjustment is calculated as the
difference at the enactment date (16 June 2022) between the carrying
amount of the LSP liability calculated under paragraph 93(b) of HKAS 19
before the Abolition and the carrying amount of the LSP liability
calculated under paragraph 93(a) of HKAS 19 after the Abolition.

As the amount of accrued benefits under the MPF Scheme that can be
used to offset pre-transition LSP is expected to decrease once the
abolition of the Offsetting Arrangement takes effect, the expected
reduction in the related negative benefits in the future has been
attributed to each employee’s past and current service periods. Service
cost of $4,922,000 (2023: $6,346,000) has been recognised in profit or
loss during the year ended 31 March 2024.

APRSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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20 BEMGER 24 CAPITAL AND RESERVES
(a) REE LR A B & B 48 5K 2B 5 A9 HF (a) The reconciliation between the opening and closing
R AR SR - HINNE77E balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated
R A EREEX - equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes

in equity on page 77.

(b) IR E (b) Dividends
(i) BAXFEEMNARATERBERN (i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
135 Company attributable to the year

BEEIRMSZATE Interim dividend declared and paid of
P EANG S ERE 11.010 11.0 cents (2023: 18.0 cents)
(ZZE==4F :18.01L) per share 14,251 23,320
REHRERERED K Final dividend proposed after the end of
RERA% 2 &A% 30.011L the reporting period of 30.0 cents
(ZZTE =% :40.011) (2023: 40.0 cents) per share 38,866 51,821
R EHRAEREEZD K Special final dividend proposed after
FRIREAR S EFRE the end of the reporting period of nil
(—ZE—=4%:501) (2023: 5.0 cents) per share — 6,477
53,117 81,618
RBEEREEZD RO REI S The final dividend proposed after the end of the
HAEREHARERAEAEG - reporting period has not been recognised as a liability

at the end of the reporting period.
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24 AN (&)
(b) RE (&)
(i) BRE—MBFE  TRAFERZ
ENIRE A AN R ERRR
3=

24 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(b) Dividends (continued)

(ii) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the previous financial

year, approved and paid during the year

BN E—MREE TR

Final dividend in respect of the previous

RNFEAZERZHA financial year, approved and paid
REARR S &A% 40.01L during the year, of 40.0 cents
ZE =4 :40.01) (2023: 40.0 cents) per share 51,821 51,821
BN E—MBEE - R Special final dividend in respect of the
REEAEREZA previous financial year, approved and
FERIR EARR S &R 5.01L paid during the year, of 5.0 cents
—E-=F F) (2023: nil) per share 6,477 -
58,298 51,821

(c) R () Share capital
—T O
2024
EnE 2¢=! iz & B
Number of Number of
EILES shares
Fix TR
‘000 ‘000
EERA Authorised:
FREE1TEBR Ordinary shares of
$1 each 240,000 240,000 240,000 240,000
ERTRAR: Issued and fully paid:
RUWA—HE=A=+—H At1 Apriland 31 March 129,553 129,553 129,553 129,553
KIREEBEBRAE FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED 1 57
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20 BF G (&)
(d) BV EE AN AR
(i) BRtEE
B aERNEAXIAREER
AD RIS 150 {6k M 55 157 16 A1 B R =
(1981 FRBLEVFIARE °

(i) ARER
RE-NANANFN—REH A%
B RER QB EXBAR R RK B
NA] e ARBHEAN B R R AR
BEEFEBAARRDETRND
EENBBEIAKRRFHHA
AR e

RRARRBABBRT B FiE(1981
FRAEIARE - BREARE
1981 FRRE) - KARIMWBMAR
FRAI A DR ©

R - ETRIERT - KRR TE
A BERE Rk SR B AR B3 fE
DK

(@) P BRSO 3K A8 R ST 3
HImBE %

b) REEMAEREERM IR
HEERASHTRAREN
i B RREV AR o

(i) EA
12 R B 5E 2(p) (i) P 8 3E A B 0 8
B B S AT ER A B0 B BT B RE AR
B ERTAREMRBERITER
BRENETEHNAABED

2B o

24 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Share premium

The application of the share premium account is
governed by sections 150 and 157 of the Company’s
Bye-laws and the Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

(ii) Contributed surplus

Pursuant to a reorganisation in 1999, the former
holding company of the Group became a subsidiary of
the Company. The excess of the consolidated net assets
of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company over the
nominal value of the shares issued by the Company has
been credited to the Company’s contributed surplus.

The application of the Company’s contributed surplus is
governed by the Bermuda Companies Act 1981. Under
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, contributed surplus
of the Company is available for distribution.

However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus if:

(a) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be
less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued
share capital and share premium accounts.

(iii)Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the grant date fair value
of unexercised share options granted to employees of
the Company that has been recognised in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in note 2(p)(ii).



RE B RS R R M A
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(BRIESEERR - TR ABESIR )

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

24 AN (&) 24 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(d) BB MAR (&) (d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(iv) B 5% & (iv)Exchange reserve

BEE 5% 6 6 B2 4R 1 5 P B PR 3 SE A5 A
MBMRAELNMBINEZR -
PE 3 IR IR A 20 PR B DI 0 &
BRI

(v) TR E (LA
TIMBEYE [ FEEHRRRRE
BERNYMRBARENERETE
BAEEN AR BEZS) -

(e) EXAEE

AEBEEREANTEBNRRER
SEAFBAERLE  KMAEER T ERE
B EmEBILASGERAE
EERENST  #ELSBRREMHD
W WARHMAEARE SR -

AEEBEGERARINERRLEAR
B NEARRSEEKFAESER
B IR [ e R AR 2 A AR P R g
HWEBMEREME 2HREFE I
FEKER NS MR ENRE -

RZE_NER_ZTE_=ZF=Z/F=+
—H ARBRETERHE R A
EAEENESERMER -

R-_ZE-_WME=A=+—H' K&
ENRTERERENESCEED
4 #£640,983,000T( = T — = F:
646,758,000 7T) °

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of Mainland China operations. The reserve
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
set out in note 2(t).

(v) Land and buildings revaluation reserve
The land and buildings revaluation reserve comprises
the fair value change arising on the revaluation of
property held for own use upon transfer to investment
property.

(e) Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are
to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholder, by pricing
products commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries had outstanding interest-bearing
loans and borrowings.

The Group had bank deposits and cash and cash

equivalents as at 31 March 2024 amounting to
$640,983,000 (2023: $646,758,000).

APRSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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S eREEERNMARMKRE 25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
() ¢RMEMREENAAEE (a) Financial risk management and fair value

AEEBAELREXRBRARTARE
5 nRBpENEERER - AEEYHE
LR AERARSEERELRR
PER AR B Bl L e B P2 BR AR AN 1B H i
EEFIR T

HERRBBTUAEEN S RHER
B A PIEIE -
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Exposure to credit, liquidity and currency risks arises in the
normal course of the Group’s business. The Group's
exposure to these risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these
risks are described below.

These risks are managed by the Group’s financial
management policies and practices described below.

(i) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group's credit risk is
primarily attributable to trade and other receivables and
other financial assets. The Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents is limited because the counterparties are
banks for which the Group considers to have low credit
risk. Based on the historical experience of the collection
of the rental deposits from the landlords and the
financial position of the landlords, the Directors
assessed that expected credit loss of these deposits as
at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 was insignificant.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group does not
have any significant concentration of credit risk. The
maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Except for
the financial guarantee given by the Company in
respect of banking facilities granted to certain
subsidiaries as disclosed in note 27, the Group does not
provide any other guarantees which would expose the
Group to credit risk.
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25 eMEBREENARERE 2

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

(continued)
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(a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(i) Credit risk (continued)

(1) Trade and other receivables

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on customers of
catering service requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s
past history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which
the customer operates. Trade and other receivables
are due within 30 to 75 days to certain customers to
which the Group provides catering services.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

ECL rates of the trade and other receivables are
assessed to be minimal, because of the customers’
good background and reputation and no past
default history. Thus, the loss allowance provision
for such balances was insignificant and no loss
allowance provision was recognised in respect of the
trade and other receivables for the years ended 31
March 2024 and 2023.

No credit evaluations are performed to customers
that are made in cash, Octopus or via major credit
cards. The Group’s trade receivables in connection
with sales settled through payment platforms such
as Octopus, Alipay or WeChat Pay are with high
credit rating and no past due history. These assets
are short-term in nature and the probability of
default is negligible on the basis of high-credit rating
issuers during the years ended 31 March 2024 and
2023, and accordingly, no loss allowance was
recognised in respect of the trade and other
receivables.
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

(continued)
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(a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(i) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the Company’s Board of
Directors when the borrowings exceed certain pre-
determined levels of authority. The Group'’s policy is to
regularly monitor its liquidity requirement and its
compliance with lending covenants, if any, to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.

The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group's financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the end of the
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can
be required to pay.
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BLEeMEAREEMAAEE®) 25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
(continued)
(a) eWEMEEMAAEEE) (a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(i) REBVE SRR (&) (ii) Liquidity risk (continued)

—ENE MENE
EMEA BRER
More than More than
one year two years

contractual but less but less

Carrying undiscounted Within than than More than

amount cash flow  oneyear twoyears fiveyears five years

T T T T T T

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Bl ske Rental deposits received 2,000 2,000 202 1,798 - -
FEREBERMEER  Creditors and accrued

expenses 413,289 413,289 413,289 - - -

HEBE Lease liabilities 1,042,181 1,102,113 416,782 291,894 361,788 31,649

1,457,470 1,517,402 830,273 293,692 361,788 31,649

STHRHTR
R —FUE WERE
—%R ERER BEER

More than More than

Total oneyear two years
contractual but less but less
Carrying undiscounted Within one than than More than
amount cash flow year twoyears five years five years
T T T T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Bl ske Rental deposits received 1,972 1,972 1,958 14 - -
[EREEZAERtERA  Creditors and accrued
expenses 376,664 376,664 376,664 - - -
HEBE Lease liabilities 1,126,453 1,189,208 420,674 320,362 396,248 51,924

1,505,089 1,567,844 799,296 320,376 396,248 51,924
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25 &M EBEEENARKREE)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

(continued)
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(a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)

(i) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which they relate. The
currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily United
States dollars and Renminbi. The Group ensures that
the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level by
buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates where
necessary to address short-term imbalances.

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the
end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate. For presentation
purposes, the amounts of the exposure are shown in
Hong Kong dollars, translated using the spot rate at the
end of the reporting period. Differences resulting from
the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’s presentation currency are
excluded.

SN R\ B RRE
(ABEZIR)

Exposure to foreign currencies

(expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
e 115 3 i
2024
ETT
United States
Dollars
T
$'000

AR
United States
Dollars
Tt
$'000

Renminbi
Ft
$'000

Renminbi
Tt
$'000

RITERREESH Bank deposits and cash and
ReFEY cash equivalents

33,800 20,036 46,999 35,066
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5 eMEBEENMARKE @) 25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
(continued)
(a) eWEMEEMAAEEE) (a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(i) B mE kR (&) (i) Currency risk (continued)

TR E B R BR & E T R AR The following table indicates the change in the Group's

B EEAE B AR ERER profit after taxation and retained profits that would
WEEXNREMRDEE (RI arise if foreign exchange rates to which the Group has
BEMERRE SR TE) i HR significant exposure at the end of the reporting period
B - EEHE - HREKESE had changed at that date, assuming all other risk
TEME - REBRBAETEBELN variables remained constant. In this respect, as Hong
[EXRTeHRERENEE - Kong dollar is pegged to United States dollar, the

Group does not expect any significant movements in
the United States dollar/Hong Kong dollar exchange
rate.

—T-F
2024
BBt 1 v F
HNEER  RIRBEF HNETER  RIREREF
R #n, R B,
(T Ok 2) (F) ()

Increase/ Increase/

Increase/ (decrease) in Increase/ (decrease) in

(decrease) in profit after (decrease) in profit after

foreign taxation and foreign taxation and

exchange retained exchange retained

rates profits rates profits

T T

$'000 $'000

AR Renminbi 5.0% 837 5.0% 1,464
(5.0%) (837) (5.0%) (1,464)
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25 &M EBEEENARKREE)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

(continued)

() emEREEMAEEE)
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(b) £mt T B2 5|

(a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)

(iv)Fair values

Fair value hierarchy

During the years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023,
there were no transfers between financial instruments
in different levels. The Group's policy is to recognise
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the
end of the reporting period in which they occur.

Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than
fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are not
materially different from their fair values as at 31 March
2024 and 2023.

(b) Categories of financial instruments

cEMEE Financial assets
BBHEKATENSREE Financial assets measured at amortised
cost
- EUWERT - 1R MW E R — Debtors, deposits and lease
receivables 143,334 140,579
-RITFEREBESNESEEY — Bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents 640,983 646,758
784,317 787,337
SEesE Financial liabilities
birg: £ 10N N At amortised cost or cost
-BlHEeEe — Rental deposits received 2,000 1,972
- EERZFEER — Creditors and accrued expenses 413,289 376,664
415,289 378,636
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26 COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments for acquisition of other property, plant
and equipment outstanding at 31 March 2024 not provided
for in the consolidated financial statements were as follows:

BT Contracted for 9,945 351
EEREERETHN Authorised but not contracted for 14,352 9,899
24,297 10,250

27RBAR

F_?_Ei A=+—8 ARQEER
ET2ENBARESRITHEAERMMA
RITIELTELR

RBEHR EETRALARTREEL
BRZHEMBIREAR - RIREHPR - A
NERBEZEREBENSGANEBREME
BB 2 A E SR IRV 4% A 1= §'%8.87,702,000
L (—Z — =4 :88,939,0007T) * EHF %
ERASEBERREE -

AN B 4 L R PR AR A SRR AR AR YA
RREBEAABEEALISEMAE ME
BRERXHER -

27 Contingent liabilities

At 31 March 2024, guarantees are given to banks by the
Company in respect of banking facilities extended to certain
wholly-owned subsidiaries.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Directors do not
consider it probable that a claim will be made against the
Company under these guarantee arrangements. The maximum
liability of the Company at the end of the reporting period
under the guarantees is the amount of the facilities drawn
down by all the subsidiaries that are covered by the
guarantees, being $87,702,000 (2023: $88,939,000).

The Company has not recognised any deferred income in
respect of these guarantees as the amount is insignificant.

APRSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

BARGEAEMBRREMBOAEENLS In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed

RaERRAIN » REBEITT 5 E K elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the

R Group entered into the following material related party
transactions:

28EXRABA XS

(a) IEANPEES FT#E 55 © BESREIE A B AP (a) Remuneration for key management is the amounts paid to

168

ERENEZFNFIA - RBEC
ATETHA]H (25HE6(b)

O)EAFER ARE—RHBAFR

Fiﬁﬁﬁﬂj(fg_LJ)ﬁ)\_IE%
% o F 3/ A Pengto International Limited
(ZRRARERBGEEERE)E
wHEA N BRABEAEERELN
EE -ABE_ZT_NF=A=+—
HIEFEAN MBAREBYEET
%iﬁ_iﬁﬂ%%ﬁ%’] ﬁWEiE’J@E

2 Al &1,853,0007T ( = g - E
1,859,0007‘5) 21500 (ZE ==
£ :273,0007T) °

R-E-_NWF=A=+—H A&EHE
DRERERAEEEARTEEAER
5,387,000t (=& — _$ 7,280,000

JT ) 5,982,000 c( = & = =
8,715,0007T) °

() EREERN ARF—KKBRF M

FRBEBRERAR(HFEDEAA—IE
ME - FERERBELE  BEAE
ERBREREBERER - o &
FELTEBTENES - FRELEN
@Wiéﬁ&?ﬁ%u&%ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂag
2Bl 52,124,000 (T = =
212400075)%222 000 (===
£ :282,0007T) °

m:::mﬁ_ﬂ_-k A AL£E

DRIERERAEEEARTBERRES
642600071:(_ = — = £ :8,550,000
JT ) #6,987,000T( = & = = & :
9,051,0007T) °

the Directors as disclosed in note 8. Total remuneration is
included in “staff costs” (see note 6(b)).

(b) During the year, a subsidiary of the Company leased a

property from Hibony Limited (“Hibony”). Hibony is a
company beneficially owned by Pengto International
Limited (@ company beneficially owned by Mr Dennis Lo
Hoi Yeung). In addition, Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung is a
director of Hibony. The subsidiary has renewed the tenancy
of the property for a term of three years with Hibony
during the year ended 31 March 2024. Depreciation of the
right-of-use assets and interest expense on lease liabilities
incurred during the year amounted to $1,853,000 (2023:
$1,859,000) and $215,000 (2023: $273,000) respectively.

At 31 March 2024, the Group recognised right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities of $5,387,000 (2023: $7,280,000)
and $5,982,000 (2023: $8,715,000) respectively.

(c) During the year, a subsidiary of the Company leased a

property from New Champion International Limited (“New
Champion”). New Champion is a company beneficially
owned by Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung, Mr Lo Fai Shing Francis
and his family members. In addition, Mr Dennis Lo Hoi
Yeung is a director of New Champion. Depreciation of the
right-of-use assets and interest expense on lease liabilities
incurred during the year amounted to $2,124,000 (2023:
$2,124,000) and $222,000 (2023: $282,000) respectively.

At 31 March 2024, the Group recognised right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities of $6,426,000 (2023: $8,550,000)
and $6,987,000 (2023: $9,051,000) respectively.
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28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

28EKEBMA RS (&)

(d)EEEXZEBENCLEMRA)HNE (d) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
A connected transactions

BE(ETRIDFEUVAENFESE - &
(o) () IBREEE T R S IEAK EER
S RBCEMHRA) BUAERTE
EREFSHREANIBERS ] —HF

The related party transactions in respect of (b) and (c)
above constitute connected transaction as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The disclosures required
by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are provided in the

TEH R EE - section “connected transactions” of the Report of the
Directors.
29 EEMBELF 29 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

NTIES ]

Name of company

E

R AR B
Place of incorporation/
establishment and
operation

11/ AREFFRR
5 Bt FEXH
Percentage of
Particulars of issued/ shares held
registered capital by the Company
B LikES

Direct  Indirect

Principal activity

BEERARLDA B 2R 1n - 100% MERE

Benley Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment

RBECRYD BERBERAA] o 10,000 %% 17 - 100% REER

Fairwood (Shenzhen) Development Hong Kong 10,000 shares Investment holding
Limited

Fairwood (BVI) Management KBRRRES/ 1REE  100% - REER
Limited B8 1€ TR

Fairwood (BVI) Management The British Virgin 1 share of US$1 Investment holding

Limited Islands/Hong Kong
Fairwood B.V.I. Limited KBRBRES/ 579,437 & 100% - RARK
&E  EEOIETKNR
Fairwood B.V.I. Limited The British Virgin 579,437 shares of Investment holding

Islands/Hong Kong

US$0.01 each

Fairwood Consolidated Investments BEBERRES/ 1TREE  100% - BEER
Limited B 1€ TRG
Fairwood Consolidated Investments The British Virgin 1 share of US$1 Investment holding

Limited Islands/Hong Kong
RRERE (ER) BRAA &t 2 A A0 - 100% HAEREMR
Fairwood Fast Food (Management) Hong Kong 2 shares Restaurant licences
Limited holding

KIREEBEBRAE FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED 1 69
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29 FEMBLAT &) 29 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

170

Name of company

gt/

AL RS

Place of incorporation/
establishment and
operation

;

17/
A EAFE

Particulars of issued/
registered capital

A/NCIVIEST ah)
Bt
Percentage of
shares held
by the Company
B LiEES

Direct

Indirect

Principal activity

RREREBR AR BE 100 A& &3 A% & - 100% R EHREE

579,437 B RE

IR R
Fairwood Fast Food Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares Operation of a chain of
and 579,437 fast food restaurants

non-voting deferred

shares
Fairwood Trademark B.V.I. Limited EBERRES/ 1REE - 100% EREE

0 [ETH3)
Fairwood Trademark B.V.I. Limited The British Virgin 1 share of US$1 Trademark holding

Islands/Hong Kong

Figata Holding Limited B 1TREE - 100% REEKR
Figata Holding Limited Hong Kong 1 share Investment holding
Figata Limited B 1REE - 100% RERE
Figata Limited Hong Kong 1 share Operation of a restaurant
HEERBMRAE BB 2R - 100% MERE
Great Choice Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
BMAREERERERAA REAME AR 16,000,000 - 100% REBHIRER
Guangzhou Fairwood Catering Mainland China RMB 16,000,000 Operation of a chain of
Management Limited fast food restaurants
FEERBRANE EE 2B - 100% MERE
Joybo Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
AZBERAMAA o 2[Rt - 100% MERE
Leon Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
REERABRARE] EE 2D - 100% MERE
Maxlane Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
EERRAMRRA N 2[R {7 - 100% MERE
Profit Hero Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
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29X EBEMBLAT (&) 29 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

B17 /. ARAIFERG
/ : M E AR Btk
Place of incorporation/ Percentage of
establishment and  Particulars of issued/ shares held

Name of company operation registered capital by the Company Principal activity
B ke

Direct  Indirect

BEEEREBR AT B8 Gl - 100% MERE
Santic Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
RYNRREREFR A FEIAM 24,550,000 7T - 100% R EHIREE
Shenzhen Fairwood Fast Food Mainland China US$24,550,000 Operation of a chain of

Limited fast food restaurants
BARERBRAT BB 21D - 100% MERE
Smarteam Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
MHEERERAF B 2% A& 1R - 100% MERE
Suncity Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
RRERBRAF BB 2R - 100% MERE
Tacco Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
REBRAMRAA i 2[R 7 - 100% MERE
Time Best Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
BHEERARAE EE 2D - 100% MERE
Union Hero Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
FERBERAMAA i 2R AR R - 100% MERE
Wallam Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment

REFE - ZHEREREEITEMES - None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the

end of the year.

KIREEBEBRAE FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED 1 7 1
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30 AFIBEMBEH 30 COMPANY-LEVEL FINANCIAL INFORMATION
(a) A A B FEAR R (a) Company-level statement of financial position

FREEE Non-current asset
RH B AR 2w Interests in subsidiaries (a) 456,394 512,810
REEE Current assets
R Other receivables (b) 65,412 79,675
HITEREBESNBSEEY Bank deposits and cash and cash

equivalents 1,157 1,156

66,569 80,831
nEBAE Current liability
E At JET K Other payables (b) 31,130 31,674
REEEFE Net current assets 35,439 49,157
EEZRE NET ASSETS 491,833 561,967
EAXRN#HE CAPITAL AND RESERVES 30(b)
(&N Share capital 129,553 129,553
& Reserves 362,280 432,414
R4 EE TOTAL EQUITY 491,833 561,967
BEFeRr T _NEASAA-FTNBZ Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
JENPFRF AT B o Directors on 28 June 2024.
EHE EEA
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung Lo Fai Shing Francis
HITFEE TTIEABEL
Executive Chairman Chief Executive Officer

MizE(a) : PABH B D B HE RS FR IR A AN DI BR B9 Note (a): The interests in subsidiaries represent the unlisted shares stated
LR - TEMBRAIAFRE at cost and amounts due from subsidiaries. Details of the
HNE169F171H - NEB W B principal subsidiaries are set out on pages 169 to 171. The
A1 B A R A EAFEIR AR RS © Group does not have any subsidiary which has a material non-

controlling interest.

Mk (b) + B2 35 E L fth 8 U 5K RN H b FE 15 3K Note (b): Included in other receivables and other payables are amount due
HEW, (1) M B A T RIE D R from/(to) subsidiaries of $65,107,000 (2023: $79,348,000) and
/65,107,000 ( — & = = £ $27,867,000 (2023: $27,867,000) respectively, which are
79,348,000 7T ) 127,867,000 7T ( = unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

T~ =4 :27,867,0007T) © HEE
- BB RIEEREE -
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30 AT EBEMBEH (#) 30 COMPANY-LEVEL FINANCIAL INFORMATION
(continued)
(b) AR BHEREE & (b) Company-level statement of changes in equity
THREH A QR ER MR B ED T Details of the changes in the Company’s individual
RE Y EI R E B S components of equity between the beginning and the end

of the reporting period are set out below:

N B HARR AXEHE REBEN
Share Contributed Capital Retained
capital  premium surplus reserve profits

s T T T T T
Notes $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

RZZE-ZFMA—HB  At1April 2022 129,553 55,183 28,182 8495 417,866 639,279
FEEERERNRE Dividends approved in
respect of the previous

year 24(b)(ii) - - - - (51,821) (51,821)
FEEEERARKE Dividends declared in respect
of the current year 24(b)(i) - - - - (23,320) (23,320)
AEZGF Profit for the year - - - - 166 166
KA EE A Lapse of share options - - - (3,097) - (3,097)
PARE %R 45 8 ) AR £ Equity-settled share-based
BEBHNR S transactions 20(c) - - - 760 - 760
RZZE-=F At 31 March 2023
=A=t+—H 129,553 55,183 28,182 6,158 342,891 561,967
R-Z-=% At 1 April 2023
MA—H 129,553 55,183 28,182 6,158 342,891 561,967

FEEEAERMRKE Dividends approved in
respect of the previous

year 24(b)(ii) - - - - (58,298) (58,298)
AEEEERNKRE Dividends declared in respect
of the current year 24(b)(i) - - - - (14,251)  (14,251)
AEEEF Profit for the year - - - - 319 319
RBIERE Lapse of share options - - - (150) - (150)
PARE 2R 45 B AR (D Equity-settled share-based
BEENR S transactions 20(c) = - - 2,246 - 2,246
RZTZMF At 31 March 2024
=A=+-H 129,553 55,183 28,182 8,254 270,661 491,833
31 ER 31SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
BEGAEVEHRREMM H RN EE Other than those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
G AN BMRERRE B AEMNEASEIE - financial statements, the following significant events took

place subsequent to the end of the reporting period.

EERMmERRERZ)RAPRE - & After the end of the reporting period, the Directors proposed a
BB H R 24(b) ° final dividend. Further details are disclosed in note 24(b).

KIREEBEBRAE FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED 1 73
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(BRIEZSEER - TRIGUEETR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

NEHFRERERWY(EEBMIERSE 32 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSS

ERMERTHEREE R FE IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HEAREWBHETIER &5 G50 Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial
AEERMEFEABE_T_MF=A= statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments
T—HILEFERRER  TNEBEARERS to HKFRSs, which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
BT RRIR A (BB ISR ELERINERT March 2024 and which have not been adopted in these
7R o 5 LRSS (L B R TSI fE A AR £ [F consolidated financial statements. These developments include
BEMIER - the following which may be relevant to the Group.

EAT HEAs 2 18
FaH) & 5T B A X
Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

(BB BREERDFE 105 (BRI A) RCEBGFTER])E 2858 (IBE]A) : & FH HHEH FFE R
ErEREELEIALENIRAELE
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, “Sale or Contribution of Assets between a date to be determined

an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture”

(BREEADE 165 (BFATA) : EREETNHEERE —TomME—-A—H
Amendments to HKFRS 16, “Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback” 1 January 2024

(BEE /EE|J>>%17J*?(f TR) : BESEARDBEGEIIFRDEELEEREESTEE 2 —T_NF—A—H
& .JZK (ZE=ZF)

Amendments to HKAS 1, “Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and related 1 January 2024
amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)”

(BEREEGFTEINDE 1R BETR) - IWBERONERBD ARG —Z-_WFE—-H—H
Amendments to HKAS 1, “Non-current Liabilities with Covenants” 1 January 2024
(EEEEADETH (BFTA) RCEBFBRE LB 75 (BFTAR) - HEERE 28 —ZE-WF—-H—H
Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7, “Supplier Finance Arrangements” 1 January 2024
(EREGFTEIDE 215 (BFTAR) - =7 Kkt —Z_h¥—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 21, “Lack of Exchangeability” 1 January 2025
BT BAEIIATS YRS MBR The Directors anticipate that the application of the
REABATE - amendments is unlikely to have a significant impact on the

consolidated financial statements.
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AEELFRBHE
FIVE-YEAR GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

(ABEHETITR)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

*E: Results:
A Revenue 3,136,947 3,024,152 2,881,942 2,646,469 3,030,198
LR Profit from operations 98,491 83,362 80,208 175,223 110,075
BE AR Finance costs (33,366) (31,698) (32,404) (36,824) (37,995)
BB AT 7 Profit before taxation 65,125 51,664 47,804 138,399 72,080
FrisR: Income tax (14,468) (6,784) (5,164) 15,218 (11,213)
RABEZRR Profit attributable to equity

JEAR R R shareholders of the Company 50,657 44,880 42,640 153,617 60,867
BENEE: Assets and liabilities:
KEYE  EbE Investment properties, other property,

HBNREREE plant and equipment and

+ib leasehold land 418,833 402,659 413,297 454,696 513,111
EREEE Right-of-use assets 970,574 1,033,885 1,078,744 1,110,609 1,433,611
T E R Lease receivables = - 609 2,768 -
FEES Goodwill 1,001 1,001 1,001 1,001 1,001
BEfffeke Rental deposits paid 60,302 68,483 68,797 72,737 76,732
HipepEE Other financial assets = - - - 15,821
REHIBEE Deferred tax assets 703 4,070 5,336 3,935 22
TREVEE Current assets 796,398 792,447 769,484 802,293 668,620
EEHAE Total assets 2,247,811 2,302,545 2,337,268 2,448,039 2,708,918
MENEE Current liabilities (858,343)  (817,224)  (782,322)  (811,902)  (915,652)
FERBEE Non-current liabilities (729,063)  (804,692)  (840,710)  (858,301) (1,072,460
EEFE Net assets 660,405 680,629 714,236 777,836 720,806

APRSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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AEREFSNREN =
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP

RZZEZWNE=A=+—H
As at 31 March 2024

bk R AT THEH
Location Existing use Term of lease

H 4 A Hj
T

Feiliay

5k

BHEEN 2

£51035% 104057

Shop Unit Nos. 1035-1040 on Level 2 Shops Medium-term
Lowu Commercial Plaza

Guangchang South Road

Luohu District

Shenzhen

PRC
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